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DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BELRRER

“Adoption Date”

[5R45 H H#1

"AGM"
[ERBEFAE]

“Articles of Association”
[#E =24 A) ]

“Audit Committee”
[BZZEE]

“Auditor”
[ 1M ]

“Board”

B2

"CAD" or "Canada Dollars”
(i

“BVI"
[RBERRES]

"CG Code”
[TEER~FAI]

“Companies Act”

[AEDE]

“Companies Ordinance”

IPNSIESTN

“Company”, "our Company”

or “the Company”

[ARR7F]]

December 6, 2019, being the date on which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally
approved and adopted by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company;

201912 A6 H » BIAARA RIS REE S A (R & MR BB AR R T 2l B 8

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on June 2, 2022;

RATER20225F6 A2 BRITHRERERS

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time;

ARAABERAR (ETRIERT)

the audit committee of the Company;

AAREZEZEE

KPMG, the auditor of the Company;
SNSRIV ERPT - AR FZBED

the board of Directors;

EFg:

the lawful currency of Canada;

MERXEEEY

the British Virgin Islands;
REBERRES

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

ERAIM S 4 E B AT A

the Companies Act (As Revised), Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961) of the Cayman Islands, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time;

HEMSEEFENERADE (1961 FEIFIEM - LIER]) - KIAKIER] ~ HRIUAEMT
AAERL

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time;

FEEPIF622ERBMRE (BAEHER] ~ fFEsk AT B2

Jiumaojiu International Holdings Limited (NLENLEPRIERBFR A 7)), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on February 1, 2019;
NENERGRZERBERAR - 7H2019F2 A1 BEREHSTMRINERRER AR
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“Deed of Non-competition”

[ 35 RIE ]

"Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Double Eggs”
[2FEZE

“Global Offering”
[ 23RS |

"ou

“Group”, "our Group”,

",

vve”, “our” or “us”

[RS8 [ 3]

“Guangzhou Jiumaojiu”

[EMNEN]

“Guan Family Trust”
[ERRIKEIEFE

"GYH BVI"

[GYH BVI]

“GYH LIMITED”
[GYH LIMITED

"HKD" or

"Hong Kong Dollars”

&)

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERAREH

the deed of non-competition dated December 6, 2019 and entered into by the controlling
shareholders of the Company with and in favor of our Company (for ourselves and as trustee
for each of our subsidiaries), details of which are set out in “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus;
RRTERBRERD B WIARA R (REAS RIEABRMEMBRARNRTIEAN) SRR
AR20195F 12 6 AFT UM TR RIE - AAFBHNBRER [ BERRROEE - T
BMERE]

the director(s) of the Company;

KRREE:

our Double Eggs (2FB#E %) brand;
HMr2BEERRE

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering of the Shares;
BRIV E B LREE MEIREE

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where the context so requires, in respect of the period
before our Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);

RRAR RPN E AR (MXEAME) RARFIKREEME R RSERA R ZA
HIMZEMBRARSEAFEENER (RIERAME)

Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Catering Chain Co,, Ltd. (BN ENEFEEFRAF]), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on August 30, 2005 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company;

BMAENESEHEEGR AT - 7200558 H30 BEF BB AR EER A RAR A
B2 ERBRA

the discretionary trust established by Mr. Guan Yihong as the settlor on August 30, 2021;
ERREEVEBEZEAN2021F8 F30 BRI DS

GYH J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVl on December 7, 2018 with
limited liability, which is owned as to 1% voting shares by Mr. Guan Yihong and as to 99% non-
voting shares by GYH LIMITED, and a controlling shareholder of our Company;

GYH J Limited » R2018F 12 A7 A ERBHB AR SEMKNERRBEREEAR - A
ERBIERA 1% LR FEORM RAGYH LIMITEDHER 99% T EFKREN D - AKX
NCIEOER g

GYH LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of Bahamas and wholly-owned by M.T.B.;
GYH LIMITED - REBEEMR S EAEEMK LN RE - AMTBREHS ;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

BREEER - BT
~Z 4 ANNUALREPORT 2021 | 3



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERLAAER

"Hong Kong”
[&E]

"

“Huzhou Jiajun’

Mz

“IFRS”

[ B B 75 s 5 R

“independent third
party(ies)”
[BE=7]

“International Underwriting

Agreement”

[ B B85

“J.P. Morgan”

[JP. Morgan ]

“Jiu Mao Jiu"

[NEN]

“Joint Global Coordinators”
[ Bt 2 BRI A

“Latest Practicable Date”
[&&RI{THH

“Listing”
[ £

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
PEEFERATTHE

Shanghai Chunsi Business Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/848 B 5%
HAEBLE(BRAEE)) (formerly known as Huzhou Jiajun Business Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (M B EEEEZEE (BRE%))), a limited partnership established in the
PRC which is owned by the Company's employees;

FERRABHRAEREE (ARER) (AIEENEERBEeRLE (BRER))  £F
B EREEEE  BARGEESHES

International Accounting Standards (“IAS”), International Financial Reporting Standards,
amendments and the related interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB");

Bt ARESEE ((ARSTERESE ) BANBER S 2R ([EREER ) -
B 81 s S 22 R - BRT AR BRI RE

person(s) or company(ies) who/which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information

and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not our connected persons;

REEFEL—AEEREMMA - MERAELIFRMNBEALOALIAR

the international underwriting agreement relating to the international offering, which was
entered into by, among others, the Joint Global Coordinators, the international underwriters
and our Company on January 8, 2020;

B (CEREE) BE2ERBAA - BREEHEEERRRN2020F1 A8ASBEREEFT LN
B A

J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Bahamas and the trustee of the Guan Family Trust;

J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited * —ERIEE R S A REMAZHAR] - BE
REEETENZFTEA

our Jiu Mao Jiu (LFE ) brand;
KM ENGDE

CMB International Capital Limited and China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong

Securities Limited;

AREEREERARLTEERERBBZSFERAF]

April 19, 2022, being the latest practicable date prior to the bulk printing and publication of

this annual report;

202248198 - BIAFRN N R AMATRREAIITAL

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020;
M&AD P 202041 A 15 BIEBE AT EAR 7
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“Listing Date”

[ 7 A

“Listing Rules”

[ LAl

‘MTB.”

[MTB.J

“Machang Restaurant”

[ 5528

“Main Board”

[EHR]

“Model Code”

[E%E<T Al

“MT BVI"

[MT BVI]

“MX BVI"

[MX BVI]

“Nomination Committee”

[REZEBeg

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERAREH

the date, being January 15, 2020, on which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and

from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange;

RE D PO R P BT M AR (D IR TE RS X T E E R A R - BI2020F1 B 158 ¢

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as

amended or supplemented from time to time;

EABMERHMARARES LHRA - ETRETHMER

M.T.B. CLIENTS NOMINEES LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of the BVI and
a nominee shareholder appointed by J.P. Morgan (in its capacity as the trustee of the Guan
Family Trust);

MT.B. CLIENTS NOMINEES LIMITED » —EIRIR R B4 B R B S AR MAIZH DR - BIP.
Morgan (AEMERE RFRIGEAHNZEAFH) TENBERRE

Guangzhou Tianhe District Zhujiang Jiumaojiu Shanxi Noodles Restaurant (J& M &8 25T ¥,
AFER I FAEEER), an individual business entity established in the PRC which was owned by
Mr. Guan Yihong before its deregistration on January 24, 2022;

BN R OLMAEA LT ZMEE - — NP B AERE TP - £2022F1H248
BEHMATR ERE AR

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the Stock Exchange;
B X FTEERNRE S 15 (T REEETIS) - BB FIGEM - I EEGEMITTTIE(E

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules;
FRAIM S0P E M BITAESETESF R HNIRETE]

MT J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVI on December 7, 2018 with limited
liability and our Shareholder, which is wholly-owned by 27 individuals, who are our employees
or former employees;

MT J Limited » 720185 12 A7 HERBHBARHSEMA LN ERCERETARL AR
PR - Em27 2 @A (BRMEEXFER) 2EHEA

MX J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVlI on December 7, 2018 with
limited liability and our Shareholder, which is wholly-owned by 33 individuals, who are our
employees, former employees and one independent third party external investor;

MX J Limited * 7A2018 5 12 A7 A ERBH AR SEMA LN ERCERETARL AT
IR - HA33BFEA (REFEE - FHEE R —RBUE=FINEIREL) 2E%E

the nomination committee of the Company;

ARAREEER

ZZZ—FF W ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 5



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERLAAER

“Over-allotment Option”

[ B R A R |

“Pandemic”

(&)

“PRC”
B

"Prospectus”

[ R E?E

"Reorganization”

[E4]

“RMB" or “Renminbi”

[ARE]

"SFO”

(5% R HIE &) ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[Ag3R ]

“Share Option Scheme”

§-Hell

the option granted to the international underwriters pursuant to the International
Underwriting Agreement, exercisable by the Joint Global Coordinators (on behalf of the
international underwriters), pursuant to which our Company was required to allot and issue
an aggregate of 50,010,000 Offer Shares, representing in aggregate 15% of the initial size of
the Global Offering at HKD6.60 to cover over-allocations in the international offering as further
described in the section headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus;
REBREDHEGER TER2HEM T AT AR 2RBAA (REERHEE) /TR
BRI AR RIAZ6.60B TR BB AL HE M ETTA 2£50,010,000 B E R (AFHEER
FIREEVRRRN15%) U EEREENBEENE - HEE - PHBHNBRER
[ B EREEE R | —f

the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19) globally and in the PRC since
early 2020;
FR 20204 S FFE 2 Bk K R B AR B A B BY T AR R F A 48 (COVID-19)

the People’s Republic of China, and “Chinese” shall be construed accordingly;

REARKAME - [HE | EIERERE

the prospectus of the Company dated December 30, 2019;
RARBEIA2019F12 A30 BHBRER

the reorganization of the Group in preparation of the Listing, details of which are set out in
“History, Reorganization and Corporate Structure” in the Prospectus;

AEBSBHELTETNER  FBEEARNBRERIEL EERARRE]

the lawful currency of the PRC;
HEVEE EH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or

supplemented from time to time;

BREHFS71 B RS RMEERD) - ETREFTTHMR

holder(s) of Share(s);
B A

our share option scheme conditionally adopted pursuant to the written resolutions passed by
our Shareholders on December 6, 2019, the principal terms of which are set out in “Statutory
and General Information — D. Share Incentive Schemes — Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV
to the Prospectus;

RIFRER R 2019512 e B BB EMAZRB G RMNBERETE - HXZRFERN
B ERMT 8 DEE R —MRER —DIRM B8 — BARERTE]

6 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AENEBRERERR A 7



“Share(s)”
[ ]
“Song”

[ 7]

AR

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bst 22 P

“Tai Er"
(e

“Tai Er Catering”

“Tai Er Investment”

[R=#&KE ]

“Uncle Chef”
[ABARARR

“United States”

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERAREH

shares in the capital of our Company with nominal value of USD0.0000001 each;

AR B A% AN A A% T E0.0000001 = TTHIAE (D

our Song (#) brand which consists of cold pot skewers (/2§88 &) and Chongqing Hot Pot
Factory (ZEBE X $MR);
MW BIEZ R R R EE N RRA R RS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
EEMERXZMAERATA

our Tai Er (X) brand;
B R=—mhg

Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co., Ltd. (BINAKZE#EHER A F]), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which is owned as to 88% by Tai Er Investment and 12% by Huzhou Jiajun;
BMA—EEHEERAR - —HRTBIKNINERETARRAATNEEIFZENE
NAE - HRIRAK R E KON B IEF 88% M 120 2

Tai Er (Guangzhou) Investment Co., Ltd. (K= (&) B BR A F), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability on June 28, 2020 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company;

RZ(BM)BREBFRAF - —HR20205F6 A28 BEFEKIWAEREED A RAR AL
HEzEHEAR

our Uncle Chef (ABAR AR brand;
EPIOBRABIE

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to its jurisdiction;

[ £ | EMNBERE - BEHET B RIXEAEEENMEMRE

‘uUsD” United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States;

[t EBUEEEY® - ETT

“%" per cent.

[%)] Btk

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “close associate’, “connected RARFHA  FHFXFESFHIE  GRIHE
person’, “connected transaction”, “continuing connected transaction’, “core A [BEBHEA] [FHEAL] [BER
connected person’, “controlling shareholder’, “subsidiary” and “substantial S [HEHEX G [BOBEAL] - [1F
shareholder” shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Listing BIR ]~ MR AR [ ERERF &R

Rules, unless the context otherwise requires.

B_E AR AIRE T 3% 5 Al AR o

—Z =44 ANNUALREPORT 2021 | 7



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERAAER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

Room 404-A197

1 Mingzhuyi Street, Hengli Town
Nansha District

Guangzhou, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1615-20, Level 16

Tower II, Grand Century Place
193 Prince Edward Road West
Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

WWW jiumaojiu.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Mr. GUAN Yihong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Zhuoguang

Ms. CUI Longyu

Mr. HE Chengxiao

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. DENG Tao

GRS

Walkers Corporate Limited

190 Elgin Avenue, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

B0

A E N T
AR — 1198
4045 —A197

ERTEEEME
B

FLEERT A

ANFEF1935%
it ag ES —H
161£1615-20F

NGIE N

WWW jiumaojiu.com

Exg
HITES

ERBRE (T ERITHAEEL)

FREE
EFFRLE
IR S
BYFHTES

BEELL (R2021F4 816 HEZ(T)
KBELZL (R20216F4 816 HEZ(E)
SEERIR SR (R2021 4.5 16 A BHE)
BIRE (R2021F4 8 16 HF(T)

Ms. TANG Zhihui (appointed on April 16, 2021)
Ms. ZHU Rui (appointed on April 16, 2021)

Mr. ZHONG Weibin (resigned on April 16, 2021)
Mr. lvan XU (resigned on April 16, 2021)

8 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AENERERER AR



DEFINITIONS.AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERAAER

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEATWE
Mr. LI Zhuoguang FRHFE

Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI ERELLE

(a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) (BBCFHEIASEE)
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES REARRK

Mr. LI Zhuoguang T E

Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI ERHEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREE®

Mr. DENG Tao (Chairman) S A (FE)

Ms. TANG Zhihui (appointed on April 16, 2021)

Ms. ZHU Rui (appointed on April 16, 2021)

Mr. ZHONG Weibin (ceased to be a member on April 16, 2021)
Mr. lvan XU (ceased to be a member on April 16, 2021)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. TANG Zhihui (Chairman) (appointed on April 16, 2021)

Mr. DENG Tao

Mr. LI Zhouguang

Mr. ZHONG Weibin (ceased to be a member on April 16, 2021)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GUAN Yihong (Chairman)

Ms. ZHU Rui (appointed on April 16, 2021)

Mr. DENG Tao

Mr. ZHONG Weibin (ceased to be a member on April 16, 2021)

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Miao & Co. (In association with Han Kun Law Offices)
Rooms 3901-05, 39/F

Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

EEEBLL (R2021F4 516 HEZ(T)
KBELL (R20216F4 516 HEZ(E)
BEMEE (Ro021F4 /16 TARA—F)
BREE (R2021F4H16 AT HAE— &)

FHEES

BRIt (FEF)(R2021F4H16 HEZ(F)
BB L

TN E

BB AE (R2021F4 816 ATHEA—E)

REZE®

ERRIE(TE)

KREL L (R20215F4 716 HEZE)
BB E

BEXSAE (R2021F4 816 HTEAE—S)

BEREEER

BINEAEGAT (BERZANEH TR E)
B

ERREHRI55H

BMEISNEAE

39183901-05F
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DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERAAER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor

Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Central China International Capital Limited
Suites 1505-1508

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

THE CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower
28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANK

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Dongfeng Sub-branch

First Floor, Jin'an Building

300 Dongfeng Middle Road, Yuexiu District
Guangzhou, PRC
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

hFEIREEE

FHARFEZERER

For the year ended December 31,

BE1N2ABLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 201746
RMB'000
AREFT
Revenue N 4,179,704 2714830 2,687,287 1,892,821 1,469,183
Profit before income tax R PS5 Al A 505,920 176,608 259,151 104,381 99,474
Profit for the year F &% A 372,153 138,006 185,770 73,848 71,647
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE 2B 425,154 5,858 185,479 73,848 71,647
Non-IFRS measures; BRI SRS ERIGTED -

Store level operating profit® EHEmLETIE 809,297 404,602 534,218 337,913 270,129
Adjusted net profit GRS 380,427 116,141 216,600 78,638 75336

Notes : MiaE -

(1) See "Management Discussion and Analysis — Non-IFRS Measures” in this annual
report.

(2)  We define store level operating profit as revenue for the year deducting the
following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii)
staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related
expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utilities expenses,
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses. We consider
this change in definition to be more meaningful to the management for
review and analysis purposes. We have updated the figures for the years ended
December 31,2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 accordingly.

g

RAFERIEEEBIRADN — FERMBEHRS
HERFTE] & -

BB EEEECETEREALCMBRA TGS
EBEMAZEOFERRA - ()VFTARMEREN
(HBIKA : (iNVFEAREERE : (WEMES
RABAY  WEMEETEREN  (viKER
T (viDEEREERS 0 Rvil)HMAZ o FKiM
RELTESHUERERMESTEASE -
RSB B FEE20174F - 20184 - 2019F K
2020 12 A1 A IEFEMLREF -

—ZT——FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 11



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FBEBE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31,

AR S MR &

#Z12831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20175
RMB'000
ARBF T
Assets 5E
Non-current assets SERBAE 2,575,666 1,944,741 1,271,101 960,351 759,303
Current assets MEEE 2,559,430 2,861,710 383,250 226,618 183,116
Total assets mEE 5,135,096 4806451 1,654,351 1,186,969 942,419
Equity and liabilities BnRAE
Equity attributable to the equity ARFIERERAA
owners of the Company eI 3,082,574 3,016,555 133,088 191,308 191,948
Total equity s 3,137,596 3,060,402 170,676 203,569 207,181
Non-current liabilities FERBARE 1,192,955 997,104 689,834 543,344 444,775
Current liabilities mEaE 804,545 748,945 793,841 440,056 290,463
Total liabilities BaEE 1,997,500 1,746,049 1,483,675 983,400 735,238
Total equity and liabilities BIEENAE 5,135,096 4,806,451 1,654,351 1,186,969 942,419

12 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRER AR AR



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the

Group for the year ended December 31, 2021. The year ended December

31,2021 was a remarkable year for the Group. By implementing our growth

strategies, we achieved outstanding operational results.

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEHE

BRPR -

AANERRESEMAREAEEHE2021F
NANBEFENFERS - HHE2021F12A8
SIBLEFEHAEEME RERELN—F -

BERERER - RAMET S ARMBENHL

FEMBRH

For the year ended December 31,
BE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT

Revenue WA 4,179,704 2,714,830

Store level operating profit® JEAEEAEFEO 809,297 404,602

Profit before taxation B 35 B A 505,920 176,608

Profit for the year FERF 372,153 138,006

Profit for the year attributable to equity AR RE AR

Shareholders of the Company EIEFE R 339,936 124,063

Adjusted net profit® KRR R 380,427 116,141

Final dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREEZ RS 70,968 24,367

Special dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREEZZFRRE - 24,367

Notes: Mf3E -

(1) We define store level operating profit as revenue for the year deducting the ) BMBEEEELCLFNERATALEHBRUTIESR
following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii) EF‘;@S‘;{&E’\]EWH&]\ :\(i)ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ ;
staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related (B IRA (Hi)ﬁﬁﬂéﬁ@jﬁ% C(iv) H AR E
expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utilities expenses, KRR - (EMEETE R#E  (vi)kER
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses. We consider 35 : (Vii)ﬁ%t:ﬁ&?&ﬁ%l?ﬁ?i P R il EAbFE S o B
this change in definition to be more meaningful to the management for review E%%&ti%ﬁ?)ﬁﬁfi@%ﬁi&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%% °
and analysis purposes. We have updated the comparative figure for the year ﬁfFﬁEﬁiﬁt;ﬁ%ﬁEﬁ;ﬁzozoiuﬂm BIEFENE
ended December 31, 2020 accordingly. BREF -

(2)  We define adjusted net profit as profit for the year adjusted by excluding all non- 2 BMIBEABRGHRERLI R 2MIFLEEX

recurring charges/gains, namely, adding (i) equity-settled share-based payment
expenses and (i) listing expenses, deducting (iii) interest income on subscription
monies received from the Global Offering.

WS - BIANE () AR RS 4 B UARR 19 B B R /Y
R R (i) EMFESE - WHIR (i) B 2EREE W
B RBBRROF WA MARNEEHEF -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

KEY OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

FTERERH

As of/for the year ended

December 31,

HZ128318
BZ12A31HLEE
2021 2020

202145 20204
Number of restaurants” EEZE" 470 381
Seat turnover rate®@ BERO
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 1.9 17
Tai Er = 3.4 3.8
Average spending per customer (RMB)® BEEAGHE (ARET)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 59 60
Tai Er = 80 79
Same store sales (RMB’000)*® RIEHE (ARETFiL)®
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 370,120 297,391
Tai Er = 1,553,558 1,470,215
Same store sales growth (%) B EIL R (%)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 24.5 (34.0)
Tai Er K= 5.7 (9.3)
Notes: ffsE -

) Including both self-operated and franchised restaurants.

(2) Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average seat count during the year.

(3) Calculated by dividing revenue for the year by total customer traffic for the year.
(4)  Same store sales for the year refers to the revenue of all restaurants that qualified

as same stores during that year. We define our same store base to be those
restaurants that opened for at least 300 days in both 2020 and 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Overview

In the year of 2021, we adhered to our multi-brand and multi-concept
strategy and explored new business opportunities, aiming to further
expand our market share and maintain our market position as a leading
Chinese cuisine restaurant brand manager and operator in the PRC. We
accelerated the expansion of our restaurant network when the operation of
our existing restaurants recovered from the outbreak of the Pandemic. As of
December 31, 2021, we operated 453 restaurants and managed 17 franchised
restaurants, covering 85 cities in the PRC, one city in Canada and one city in

Singapore.

We have expanded our brand portfolio by introducing our Lai Mei Li (f83€
BE) brand in the second half of 2021. We opened two Lai Mei Li restaurants
offering grilled fish with green peppercorns (S{EMUE) and other side
dishes and drinks. Leveraging our extensive experience and success in the
operation of our Tai Er brand, we aim to create a unique and amusing dining

experience for our customers.

We recorded a 54.0% growth in revenue and a 169.7% growth in net profit,
respectively, in 2021 as compared to 2020, despite the continuing impact
of the Pandemic, primarily due to (i) the continuous restaurant network
expansion of Tai Er with the number of restaurants boosted from 233 as of
December 31, 2020 to 350 as of December 31, 2021 and (ii) the increase in
total restaurant operation days in 2021 compared with that in 2020, as a

result of the recovery of the Group's operation from the Pandemic.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

E 3 AC Y SETE
BE

2021%F - BMEBEZmERZSHEER - WK
ENEBHRE  SEE—TEREMOTHH
B WRFEATBRELENTEEREEER
REBEmnmisii - ERMREBEBEBRK
EIERERE  RMEMRAREREALE - 8
F2021F12A318 - HAER RS @M - A0
2R ER T RN 1 S T AR & 453 A BE &
EE17EMBERE -

BMIR2021 F T HF|ABEERE - BAm
[B4EE - RMEFASMEBEBZRE - #IES
TEME B R H A NE R G - BERMLLE
RImEHEEEREKY  RMRERER
EEBFmMABNAEER -

BERBNBELE  H2020F 8 - MR
2021 599 RI$%15 54.0% B YA G &= 12 169.7% H) 458
MER FERAROAZEBRRABNBER
R BEHENEZE2020F12A31 BHAY233fE1E
MEEZ2021F12 831 B350 ¢ K(i) 2021
FEEEREEREE 20205 - tTAR
REBEEENEBHIRE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

The Impact of the Pandemic

The business operation of substantially all of our existing restaurants has
recovered from the Pandemic by the end of 2021. However, due to regional
outbreaks of COVID-19 in several provinces in the PRC, including Guangdong,
Henan, Jiangsu, Fujian and Shaanxi, the dine-in services of certain of our
restaurants were temporarily suspended for up to 30 days during 2021. The
estimated loss of revenue resulting from the temporary suspension of our
restaurant operations or dine-in services in 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB365.6 million.

We have been closely reviewing the performance of our restaurants and
adjusting our business strategies from time to time to mitigate the impact
of the Pandemic on our business operations. However, it remains difficult
to predict the full impact of the Pandemic on the broader economy and
how consumer dine-out behavior may be affected, which may impose
a continuing adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition going forward. The extent to which our operations
continue to be impacted by the Pandemic will depend largely on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be accurately
predicted, including, among other things, the possible reemergence and
further spread of COVID-19 in the PRC and the effectiveness of actions
and measures undertaken by the government authorities to contain the

Pandemic or treat its impact.

Our Directors believe that our liquidity position remains healthy and
we possess sufficient cash and banking facilities available to meet our
commitments and working capital requirements. For details, see "-
Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Capital Resources and

Gearing”.
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2021 Business and Financial Performance Review

Restaurant network

In 2021, we opened 133 new restaurants, which comprise one Jiu Mao Jiu

restaurant, 122 Tai Er restaurants, one franchised Double Eggs restaurant,

seven Song Chongqging Hot Pot Factory restaurants and two Lai Mei Li

restaurants. Among our restaurants, 44 restaurants were closed in 2021

primarily due to (i) the termination of the relevant lease agreements and (ii)

their underperformance based on our evaluation.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our restaurants by brand as of the

dates indicated:

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

2021 FEK R T RIREEE
BERE

TR 2021 FHF133MEE - B 1BAEL
BE - 102BA-EE RERENSNEE
B /MEEEARBREER BABEBEE -
IR 2021 FRIRA44IERE - T EHMN()EE
HERRKERGO)BERMOTE - HEEE
RERBTME -

TRIEEERTARRREEDNHMEE
HUBRA -

As of December 31,

BZ12A831H
2021 2020
20215 20204
Number of restaurants Z2EZE
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 83 98
Tai Er K= 350 233
Double Eggs (self-operated) QREHERIS (BE) 8 14
Double Eggs (franchised) REFERISE (hNEE) 17 32
Song (cold pot skewers) 2 SRR AR - 1
Song Chonggqing Hot Pot Factory KB N 9 2
Uncle Chef AR KRB AR 1 1
Lai Mei Li JEES 2 -
Total et 470 381

—ZT——FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 17



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

Restaurant performance BERR
The table below sets forth the key performance indicators of our restaurants TRINBRIRFEEMEE SR MERED

by brand for the years indicated: FEEERR:

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12AALEE

2021 2020

20215 20204F
Revenue (RMB’000) WA (AR#FT)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 758,756 698,320
Tai Er A= 3,285,180 1,960,170
Double Eggs (self-operated) DEHERISH(BE 12,608 14,425
Double Eggs (franchised)" DQREZEERIS (HNER) O 16,399 15,791
Song (cold pot skewers) 2 SRR AR 2,232 2,993
Song Chongging Hot Pot Factory WEE N R 87,405 7,482
Uncle Chef BARKZ AR 12,402 9,757
Lai Mei Li JEES 3,152 -
Seat turnover rate® BER
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 1.9 17
Tai Er A= 3.4 38
Double Eggs (self-operated) QRRHERIS (BE) - -
Double Eggs (franchised) 2FRERISE (HNEE) - -
Song (cold pot skewers) S 1.8 2.2
Song Chonggqing Hot Pot Factory KB N 2.5 26
Uncle Chef AR RBUE AR 1.7 16
Lai Mei Li JEES 2.4 -
Average spending per customer® (RMB) BEEADHES (AR¥T)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 59 60
Tai Er A= 80 79
Double Eggs (self-operated) DREHERS (BE) 22 22
Double Eggs (franchised) DREZEERIS (HNER) O 21 22
Song (cold pot skewers) 2 R R R 57 61
Song Chongging Hot Pot Factory KB N 129 19
Uncle Chef AR AR K BT 144 142
Lai Mei Li B 84 -
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Notes:

(1) Restaurant performance for franchised Double Eggs restaurants is shown for
reference only. Revenue generated by franchised Double Eggs restaurants as
shown in the table above does not represent the Group's revenue recognized
from these restaurants. Our revenue recognized from these restaurants is
contributed from fees we charge our franchisees in accordance with the relative
franchise agreements. In 2020 and 2021, our revenue recognized from franchised
Double Eggs restaurants amounted to RMB2.4 million and RMB2.0 million,
respectively.

(2) Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average seat count during the year. Seat turnover rate does
not apply to Double Eggs.

(3) Calculated by dividing revenue for the year by total customer traffic for the year.

Restaurant performance of most of our brands improved due to the recovery
of the operation of our restaurants from the Pandemic. Notably, revenue
contribution from our Tai Er restaurants increased by 67.6% as a result of the
rapid expansion of restaurant network of Tai Er in 2021. The seat turnover
rate of Tai Er decreased in 2021, primarily because (i) the general consumer
sentiment was weakened due to the prolonged and unstable COVID-19
pandemic, in particular as a result of regional outbreaks of COVID-19 in
several provinces in the PRC where our restaurants were in operation, during
2021; and (ii) we further expanded the restaurant network of Tai Er to lower-
tier cities and fringe commercial districts in 2021 where both customer traffic
and operating costs are relatively lower than the locations of existing Tai Er

restaurants.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

P
=
&
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B) BREFARABRAFRNATREFH -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

Same store sales

The table below sets forth details of our same store sales by brand for the

years indicated.

BEHE
TR DIE R PR E 42 R R 8 5 69 RS 8 S 5

l‘\i

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2021 2020 2020 2019

20215 2020 2020 2019%F
Number of same store” EEEHE®
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 39 48
Tai Er A= 124 68
Double Eggs (self-operated) 2RHERIS (BE) 1 8
Song (cold pot skewers)? Ve IESEl 1 1
Same store sales® (RMB'000) [RIEHEY (AR FT)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 370,120 297,391 368,779 558,390
Tai Er XK= 1,553,558 1,470,215 886,755 977,334
Double Eggs (self-operated) QREHERIS (BE) 11,951 9,678 7,562 10,371
Song (cold pot skewers)? #HRMEPHEO 2,232 2,993 2,993 5,399
Same store sales growth (%) BESHEER (%)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 245 (34.0)
Tai Er A= 5.7 (9.3)
Double Eggs (self-operated) QREERIBH(BE) 23.5 (27.1)
Song (cold pot skewers)? KRR RO (25.4) (44.6)

Notes:

(1) We define our same store base to be those restaurants that opened for at least
300 days in both 2019 and 2020, and in both 2020 and 2021. Figures for Uncle
Chef are not available since the only Uncle Chef restaurant opened for less than
300 days in 2019 and 2020.

(2)  We ceased to operate the Song (cold pot skewers) brand permanently in
November 2021.

(3) Same store sales for the year refer to the revenue of all restaurants that qualified
as same stores during that year.
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Outlook for 2022

We remain fully devoted to providing a marvelous dining experience to our
customers through exquisite dishes, high-quality services and unique dining
ambience, and with a view to maintaining a strong market position and
enhancing our competitiveness, we will continue to implement the following

growth strategies:

®* Replicate our success through further expansion. We have been
closely monitoring the development of the Pandemic in the PRC and
adjusting the timeline of our restaurant network expansion plan for
different brands as and when appropriate. We expect that we will remain
on track with our restaurant network expansion plan for Tai Er set forth
in the Prospectus while adopting a moderate approach in the timeframe

of our restaurant network expansion plan for other brands.

® Continue to expand into more market segments by pursuing a
multi-brand and multi-concept strategy. We plan to further promote
the brand image and recognition of Tai Er as it has achieved higher
operating profits compared with our other brands. We will continue
to develop our Song Chongging Hot Pot Factory and Lai Mei Li brands
which we believe to have great growth potential. We will also invest in
companies in the catering service industry. We intend to identify targets
which adopt innovative business models and possess development and
growth potential, or whose business models can create synergies with
our business and fit into our multi-brand development strategy. We
currently have not yet identified any potential target. We believe that
our multi-brand and multi-concept strategy allows us to further expand
into more market segments, capture market opportunities, broaden
our customer base and ultimately increase our market share. The
collaboration with various young and innovative brands would enable
us to stay attuned to market trends. We will keep exploring potential
opportunities and may further expand our brand portfolio to maintain

our competitive advantage.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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® Continue to strengthen our supply and support capabilities. \We
rented a new warehouse near our central kitchen in Foshan. The existing
warehouse of our Foshan central kitchen has been converted into a food
processing center to enhance our supply chain capabilities in support of
our future expansion plan. We have also commenced the construction
of our new supply chain center in Southern China to enhance our supply
chain capabilities in support of our future expansion plan. In addition,
we will continue our cooperation with suppliers of our key ingredients
by way of joint ventures or other means to secure stable supply of key

ingredients.

® Expand into the global markets to gain international presence. In
2021, we continued to expand the restaurant network of Tai Er overseas
and extended our presence to Singapore. We will continue to carry out
comprehensive research into potential overseas target markets and
carefully evaluate and select appropriate locations for our expansion
to gain international presence. We will prioritize countries with high
population of Chinese people, such as Singapore, the United States and

Canada, for our future expansion.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the shareholders,
suppliers and customers of the Company for their continued support and
trust. The Board would also like to thank all the employees and management
team for executing the Group's strategies with professionalism, integrity and

dedication.

GUAN Yihong
Chairman

Hong Kong

March 23, 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE

Our revenue increased by 54.0% from RMB2,714.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB4,179.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2021.

Revenue by brand

We generate revenue from three segments classified by brands, including
Jiu Mao Jiu, Tai Er and all other brands. The following table sets forth a

breakdown of our revenue by brand for the years indicated:

BIE w7 AT

WA
HFIWBABEZ2020F12A31BIEEEHA

i —

R¥E2 7148 A BTG IN54.0% 2 EH E2021F12 8
JTALEFEMAREEL41797EHET o

B RMEE 5 B A

BPMBRAREZREE DN =EDH - 2%
NEN - KZRFEEMbmIE - TRIFKA
NEERMIRDEE DB AR

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2021 2020

20214 20204F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR®T % ARBFT %
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 760,462 18.2 715,513 26.3
Tai Er K= 3,292,184 78.8 1,961,811 723
Others Hib 127,058 3.0 37,506 14
Total et 4,179,704 100.0 2,714,830 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

Our revenue from Jiu Mao Jiu increased by 6.3% from RMB715.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB760.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to an increase in the number of
operating days in 2021 compared with 2020. Our revenue from Jiu Mao Jiu
as a percentage of total revenue decreased from 26.3% in 2020 to 18.2% in
2021, primarily due to the combined effects of the closures of Jiu Mao Jiu

restaurants and an increase in the number of our Tai Er restaurants in 2021.

Our revenue from Tai Er increased by 67.8% from RMB1,961.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB3,292.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the significant increase in the
number of Tai Er restaurants from 233 as of December 31, 2020 to 350 as of
December 31, 2021 as a result of their popularity and outstanding operating
performance. Consequently, our revenue from Tai Er as a percentage of total
revenue increased from 72.3% in 2020 to 78.8% in 2021.

Our revenue from other brands increased by 238.8% from RMB37.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB127.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, primarily due to the recovery of our operation from the
Pandemic and the increase in revenue from Song Chongging Hot Pot Factory.
Revenue from other brands as a percentage of total revenue increased from
1.4% in 2020 to 3.0% in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue by service line

Services provided by us or activities we engage in comprise (i) restaurant
operations, (i) delivery business, (iii) sales of specialities and (iv) others
including franchising and management and operation of Machang

Restaurant. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue from

EEENWED T

BARASE R Bl BV A

BMRHEORS N ENFDRIENERLE
(INEETE - (i) FEHESE Riv) M (BFENR
NREEREEFSERE) o TRINBKMN
TFEERESRISIEE MU AR

each service line for the years indicated:

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MHLEE

2021 2020

20215 20204F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARBT % ARBT T %
Restaurant operations BRKE 3,524,424 84.3 2,213,459 81.5
Delivery business INEFETE 621,506 14.9 473,792 17.5
Sales of specialities REHE 15,855 0.4 3,070 0.1
Others Eith 17,919 0.4 24,509 0.9
Total Mt 4,179,704 100.0 2,714,830 100.0

Revenue from restaurant operations increased by 59.2% from RMB2,213.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB3,524.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the recovery of our
restaurant operations from the Pandemic as well as the expansion of
restaurant network of Tai Er from 233 as of December 31, 2020 to 350 as
of December 31, 2021. As a result, revenue from restaurant operations as
a percentage of total revenue increased from 81.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to 84.3% for the year ended December 31, 2021.

BEELWAREZE2020F12831BLEEER
AREE22135BE T M59.2% FHE 202112
A31BLEFENARBIM44EETT T2/
REBREBPFMELE  URAKZ-HNEEH
HAEZE2020F 12431 BB HEEREESE
2021912831 HM350M « Bt - BEEZEK
MEB AR BIRE E2020F 12 A31 HIEF
ERI81.5% EAHEHZE2021F12A31 B IEFEHR
84.3% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

Revenue from delivery business increased by 31.2% from RMB473.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB621.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the increase in the number of
our restaurants which also offer delivery services. Revenue from our delivery
business as a percentage of total revenue decreased from 17.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to 14.9% for the year ended December 31, 2021,

primarily due to the recovery of our restaurant operations from the Pandemic.

Revenue from sales of specialities increased by 416.4% from RMB3.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB15.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, primarily due to our continued development of the
Tai Er brand’s specialities products. Revenue from sales of specialities as a
percentage of total revenue increased slightly from 0.1% for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to 0.4% for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Revenue from others decreased by 26.9% from RMB24.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to RMB17.9 million for the year ended December
31,2021, primarily due to a decrease in the number of our franchised Double
Eggs restaurants from 32 as of December 31, 2020 to 17 as of December
31, 2021, resulting in a decrease in revenue generated from our franchised
Double Eggs restaurants (including franchise income and sales of raw
materials to franchisees). As a result, revenue from others as a percentage of
total revenue decreased from 0.9% for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
0.4% for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER REVENUE

Our other revenue decreased by 23.5% from RMB83.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to RMB64.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2021, primarily due to (i) a decrease in interest income on bank deposits
of approximately RMB17.9 million attributable to the decreased balance
of our bank deposits, and (i) a decrease in income from super deduction
and exemption on value-added tax granted by the relevant government
authorities in the PRC of RMB4.7 million.

RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED

Our raw materials and consumables used increased by 47.0% from
RMB1,045.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB1,537.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 in line with our business
expansion. Our raw materials and consumables used as a percentage of
revenue decreased from 38.5% for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
36.8% for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily because we have
secured lower costs of procurement of key raw materials, namely bass and

sauerkraut.

STAFF COSTS

Our staff costs increased by 41.3% from RMB747.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB1,056.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2021, primarily due to an increase in the number of our employees as we
recruited new employees for the newly opened restaurants in 2021. Our staff
costs as a percentage of revenue decreased from 27.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to 25.3% for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily
due to the rapid growth of our total revenue attributable to the expansion of
restaurant network as well as recovery of our restaurant operations from the
Pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

DEPRECIATION OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased by 40.9% from RMB243.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB342.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the increase in the number of our
restaurants. Depreciation of right-of-use assets as a percentage of revenue
decreased slightly from 9.0% for the year ended December 31, 2020 to 8.2%
for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the rapid growth of
our total revenue attributable to the expansion of restaurant network as well
as recovery of our restaurant operations from the Pandemic.

OTHER RENTALS AND RELATED EXPENSES

Our other rentals and related expenses increased by 94.5% from RMB49.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB96.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the increase in variable rent
payment as a result of the expansion of our restaurant network as well as
recovery of our restaurant operations from the Pandemic. Our other rentals
and related expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 1.8% for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to 2.3% for the year ended December 31,
2021, primarily due to the decrease in COVID-19 related rent concessions in
2021.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION OF OTHER
ASSETS

Depreciation and amortization of other assets increased by 43.9% from
RMB110.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB159.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to an increase in
restaurant renovation costs resulting from the expansion of our restaurant
network. Depreciation and amortization of other assets as a percentage
of revenue decreased slightly from 4.1% for the year ended December 31,
2020 to 3.8% for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the
rapid growth of our total revenue attributable to the expansion of restaurant
network as well as recovery of our restaurant operations from the Pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

UTILITIES EXPENSES

Our utilities expenses increased by 39.8% from RMB94.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to RMB132.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 along with the recovery of our restaurant operations from the
Pandemic. Our utilities expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased
slightly from 3.5% for the year ended December 31, 2020 to 3.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily because revenue contribution from
Tai Er restaurants grew in 2021 and Tai Er restaurants incurred lower utilities

expenses compared with our other brands.

TRAVELLING AND RELATED EXPENSES

Our travelling and related expenses increased by 41.5% from RMB16.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB23.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021, primarily because our staff traveled more
frequently for daily operations as a result of the nationwide expansion of our
Tai Er restaurant network in 2021. Our travelling and related expenses as a
percentage of revenue remained relatively stable at 0.6% in both 2020 and
2021.

LISTING EXPENSES

We recorded no listing expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 in
relation to the global offering of the Company’s shares in connection with
the Listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020,
compared with that of RMB7.3 million (equivalent to approximately HKD8.3
million), representing 0.3% of our revenue for the year ended December 31,
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION EXPENSES

Our advertising and promotion expenses increased by 123.0% from RMB21.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB47.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily because we organized more marketing
campaigns to raise our brand awareness. Advertising and promotion
expenses as a percentage of revenue increased slightly from 0.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to 1.1% for the year ended December 31, 2021.

OTHER EXPENSES

Our other expenses increased by 33.8% from RMB194.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to RMB259.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2021, primarily due to the increase in (i) external professional service
fees by RMB22.8 million, (ii) transportation and related expenses by RMB25.4

million and (iii) cleaning fees by RMB9.7 million.

SHARE OF PROFITS/(LOSSES) OF ASSOCIATES

We recognized share of profits of associates of RMB1.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, while we incurred share of losses of associates of
RMB8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, primarily due to the

gains of our minority equity investments in associates in 2021.

OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSSES)

We recognized other net income of RMB11.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, while we incurred other net losses of RMB28.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020, primarily due to (i) a decrease in
losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
and losses on rental deposits, net of RMB21.2 million, and (ii) net foreign

exchange gain of RMB17.9 million recognized in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by 11.7% from RMB67.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to RMB75.3 million for the year ended December
31,2021, primarily due to an increase in interest on lease liabilities of RMB11.7
million recognized in accordance with IFRS 16 associated with our increasing

number of leases as a result of the expansion of our restaurant network.

INCOME TAX

Our income tax increased by 246.5% from RMB38.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB133.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2021, primarily due to the increase in our taxable income. Our effective tax
rate increased from 21.9% for the year ended December 31, 2020 to 26.4% for
the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily because the interest income on
subscription monies received from the Global Offering was exempted from

income tax for the year ended December 31, 2020.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year increased by 169.7% from
RMB138.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB372.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

NON-IFRS MEASURES

We adopt the store level operating profit and adjusted net profit, which are
not required by or presented in accordance with IFRS as important financial

measures to supplement our consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

Store Level Operating Profit and Store Level Operating Profit
Margin

We believe that store level operating profit helps shareholders and investors
better understand our multi-brand and multi-concept strategy by directly
illustrating the profitability of our different brands at store level, and that it
is frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the
evaluation of companies in our industry.

We define store level operating profit as revenue deducting the following
expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (i) staff costs,
(i) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related expenses,
(v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utilities expenses, (vii)
advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses. The following
table illustrates our store level operating profit and store level operating
profit margin by brands for the years indicated:
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For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2020
202145 20204

Store Level Store Level

Store Level Operating Store Level Operating

Operating Profit Operating Profit

Profit Margin Profit Margin

JEEE JEHEE JESETE JEEE

KR BERBE e FHE B R

RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)

ARBT T (%) ARBTT (%)

Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 97,965 12.9 39,570 55

Tai Er K= 718,540 21.8 362,415 185

Other Brands E g (7,208) (5.7) 2,617 7.0

Total st 809,297 19.4 404,602 14.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted Net Profit Margin

The presentation of adjusted net profit facilitates comparisons of operating
performance from period to period and company to company, by eliminating
potential impacts of items that our management does not consider indicative
of our operating performance. Listing expenses and interest income on
subscription monies received from the Global Offering are one-off expenses
in relation to the Global Offering. Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses are non-operational expenses arising from granting restricted stock
units and share options to selected executives and employees, the amount
of which may not directly correlate with the underlying performance of our
business operations. We believe that the adjusted net profit is frequently
used by other interested parties when evaluating the performance of a

company.

We define adjusted net profit as profit for the year adjusted by excluding
all non-recurring charges/gains, namely, adding (i) equity-settled share-
based payment expenses and (ii) listing expenses and deducting (iii) interest
income on subscription monies received from the Global Offering. The
following table illustrates a reconciliation from profit for the year to adjusted

net profit for the years indicated:
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For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTFT
Profit for the year FE A 372,153 138,006
Add: Pl
Equity-settled share-based ARz A5 E DA A AR EY
payment expenses BN 8,274 7,240
Listing expenses EmAx - 7,344
Deduct: W
Interest income on subscription monies received B 2 IRE S IR A SR B AR /Y
from the Global Offering F B WA - (36,449)
Adjusted net profit RRBEAR 380,427 116,141
Revenue A 4,179,704 2,714,830
Adjusted net profit margin (%) T AT (%) 9.1 43
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

INVENTORIES

Our inventories mainly represented our (i) food ingredients, (ii) condiment
product, (iii) beverage and (iv) other materials used in our restaurant
operations. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our inventories as
of the dates indicated:

E
BN EFEF2RERMEBRCESBNOERM
(DFHKm - G : R (v E MR - TRET
AR B B E S RRAR

As of December 31,

HZ12H318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Food ingredients B 34,919 26,094
Condiment product TR @ 17,203 12,828
Beverage gkt 2,218 1,167
Other materials H AR} 16,410 11,005
Total wst 70,750 51,094

Our inventories increased by 38.5% from RMB51.1 million as of December 31,
2020 to RMB70.8 million as of December 31, 2021 in line with the expansion

of our restaurant network.

Our inventory turnover days in 2020 and 2021, being the average of the
beginning and ending inventories for that year divided by raw materials and
consumables used for the same period and multiplied by 365 days, was 22.0
days and 14.5 days, respectively. The decrease in our inventory turnover days
was primarily due to the faster consumption of food ingredients as a result of

the recovery of our restaurant operations from the Pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Our right-of-use assets, which represented the leases for our restaurant
premises, headquarters offices, central kitchens and certain kitchen
equipment, increased by 18.8% from RMB1,216.0 million as of December 31,
2020 to RMB1,444.1 million as of December 31, 2021, primarily due to the

increase in the number of our Tai Er restaurants.

TRADE DEBTORS

Our trade debtors primarily consisted of (i) bills settled through third party
payment platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay, which were normally
settled within a short period of time, (ii) bills for our delivery business settled
through third party delivery services platforms, which were settled within
three calendar days, and, to a lesser extent, (iii) bills received by shopping
malls on behalf of us for certain restaurants, which were normally settled
within one month. Our trade debtors decreased by 19.0% from RMB15.1
million as of December 31, 2020 to RMB12.2 million as of December 31,
2021, primarily due to normal fluctuation at year end as a result of timing
differences of settlement of bills from certain third party payment platform.
As a result, our trade debtors turnover days, being the average of the
beginning and ending balances of trade debtors for that period divided by
revenue for the same period and multiplied by the number of days in that

period, decreased from 1.8 days in 2020 to 1.2 days in 2021,

TRADE PAYABLES

Our trade payables primarily consisted of payables to our suppliers. Our
trade payables increased by 2.5% from RMB137.7 million as of December
31, 2020 to RMB141.2 million as of December 31, 2021, primarily due to our
business expansion. Our trade payables turnover days, being the average of
the beginning and ending balances of trade payables for that period divided
by raw materials and consumables used for the same period and multiplied
by the number of days in that period, decreased from 40.9 days in 2020 to
33.1 days in 2021, primarily because we negotiated with our suppliers for the
extension of credit terms for the year ended December 31, 2020 due to the

Pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Our total assets increased from RMB4,806.5 million as of December 31, 2020
to RMB5,135.1 million as of December 31, 2021. Our total liabilities increased
from RMB1,746.0 million as of December 31, 2020 to RMB1,997.5 million as
of December 31, 2021. Liabilities-to-assets ratio increased from 36.3% as of
December 31, 2020 to 38.9% as of December 31, 2021.

The current ratio, being current assets divided by current liabilities as of the
respective date, decreased from 3.82 as of December 31, 2020 to 3.18 as of
December 31, 2021.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

For the year ended December 31, 2021, we financed our operations primarily
through cash generated from operations, proceeds from the Global Offering
and proceeds from the Subscription (as defined in the announcement of
the Company dated July 16, 2020 in relation to the subscription for new
Shares under the general mandate). We mainly used Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars to make borrowings and loans and to hold cash and cash
equivalents. We mainly utilized our cash on procurement of food ingredients,
consumables and equipment, and restaurant renovations. Our cash and cash
equivalents decreased by 27.2% from RMB1,843.9 million as of December 31,
2020 to RMB1,342.1 million as of December 31, 2021, primarily attributable to
payment of RMB300.0 million for the acquisition of non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries as detailed in the section below headed “Material Acquisitions

and Future Plans for Major Investment”.

Our gearing ratio, being interest-bearing bank loans divided by total equity
and multiplied by 100%, decreased from 1.4% as of December 31, 2020 to
nil as of December 31, 2021, as we had no outstanding bank loans as of
December 31, 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures, which referred to the payment for purchases of
property, plant and equipment, are incurred primarily for opening new
restaurants, procuring property, plant and equipment for new restaurants,
renovating existing restaurants and purchasing furniture and equipment
used in our restaurant operations. Our total capital expenditures increased
by 19.9% from RMB280.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
RMB336.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.

INDEBTEDNESS
Bank Loans

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had no outstanding bank loans (as of
December 31, 2020: RMB43.0 million). As of December 31, 2021, banking
facilities of the Group amounted to RMB60.0 million (As of December 31,
2020: RMB100.0 million) and none was utilized (as of December 31, 2020:
RMB43.5 million).

Lease Liabilities

Our lease liabilities increased by 17.2% from RMB1,284.2 million as of
December 31, 2020 to RMB1,504.8 million as of December 31, 2021, primarily

due to the restaurant expansion of Tai Er.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2021, we did not have any material contingent liabilities,
guarantees or any litigations or claims of material importance, pending
or threatened against any member of our Group that was likely to have a
material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of

operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of December 31, 2021, bank deposits of RMB1,792,000 was restricted by
the relevant courts for two contractual disputes and RMB1,045,000 has been

released as at the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2021, the Group did not have

any pledge on its assets.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Except as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, there
are no material events subsequent to December 31, 2021 which could have a
material impact on our operating and financial performance as of the date of

this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has cash and deposits
denominated in other currencies which are exposed to foreign currency
exchange risks. The Group has not hedged its foreign currency exchange
risks, but will closely monitor the exposure and will take measures when

necessary to make sure the foreign exchange risks are manageable.

38 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRER AR AR

EHEE

HE2021F12A31H  VBITIFERARE
1,792,000 T A R SR & B AL 4 h #4748 B3 VA B IR
Bl - MAAFERBE - ARY1,045000LE#
iR fR o

M EXET#EEEESN  BE2021F128318 » &
SEWEERETMREE -

BREPREREE

B RAEMBREMENHENSTEIN - B
20215 12 A31 B AR A e BB E AR
FHRAMNCE R BRAELEEATENE
REMHEAE -

S BEE L B % e

AREBEXEEREELE  ABORXZIAAR
BAEREE - A AEEKEUNEMER
FHEMBR ® RFR - HRRIATEIMEE K E
@ o AEE I EE HHIMNEE KRR - B
PIESTR A B R X e s B A BRERIE 5 - DATE
RINERBREE N AT IZ S [E



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

On March 22, 2021, the Group entered into a state-owned construction land
use rights transfer agreement (the “Land Use Rights Transfer Agreement”)
with Guangzhou Municipal Planning and Natural Resources Bureau and
a project investment agreement (the “Project Investment Agreement”)
with Guangzhou Nansha Economic and Technological Development Zone
Bureau of Commerce. Pursuant to the aforementioned agreements, the
Company shall, among others, acquire the land use rights of the parcel of
land numbered 2021NGY-3 located at the north side of Hengli Industrial
Park Feng Ma Road, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a site
area of 39,488 square meters (the "Land”) and to construct and establish a
multifunctional Jiumaojiu National Supply Chain Center Base (12 H
g L EM) on the Land (the “Project’). The plot ratio of the Land is
not more than 3.5 and the permitted use of the Land is industrial use. The
Project has commenced construction in late December 2021 and is expected
to be completed within three years from the date of the Land Use Rights
Transfer Agreement. Pursuant to the Project Investment Agreement, the
total investment amount by the Group in the Project shall be not less than
RMB500.0 million. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated March 22, 2021 and April 13, 2021.

On September 5, 2021, Tai Er Investment, which is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as the purchaser, and Huzhou Jiajun as the
vendor entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to purchase 3% of the equity
interest in Tai Er Catering, which is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, at a total consideration of RMB300.0 million. Please refer to
the section headed “Directors’ Report — Connected Transactions — Connected
Transaction — Acquisition of 3% Equity Interest in a Non-Wholly Owned

Subsidiary” in this annual report for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Group did not conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals.
In addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections headed
“Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and
the intended use of proceeds from the Subscription as disclosed in the
Company's announcements dated July 16, 2020, July 23, 2020 and July 30,
2020, the Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for
major capital assets or other businesses. However, the Group will continue to

identify new opportunities for business development.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 14,495 employees,

substantially all of whom were based in the PRC.

Our success depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified
personnel. The remuneration package for our employees generally includes
salary and bonuses. We determine employee remuneration based on factors
such as qualifications and years of experience. Employees also receive
welfare benefits, including medical care, retirement benefits, occupational
injury insurance and other miscellaneous items. We make contributions to
mandatory social security funds for our employees to provide for retirement,

medical, work-related injury, maternity and unemployment benefits.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020. The net

proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately HKD2,372.9

million. The following table sets forth the status of the use of net proceeds

from the Global Offering™:

BB WD

FriERIERAZE
>R EFEIERR

RAAR2020F 1 15 BEB AT £ » 2 BRE
EMEHIBFELYA23720B888T « NREH
PR EMBFIBFENBABR

Percentage of Intended use of Percentage of Percentage of
intended use  proceeds fromthe  used amountas unused balance as Timeframe for the
Intended use of proceeds of proceeds Global Offering  of March 15,2022  of March 15, 2022 unused balance
hBE2022% hBE2022%
LSRR EREE  3A15AEBA 3A1SEAEA
FsRERERR RERZEINL FERERTAZ SEA BHENL ABREHRER
(%) (In'HKD millions) (%) (%)
(%) (BEET) (%) (%)
Expand our restaurant network 774 1,837.9% 51.4 48.6 By the end of 2024%
BREERS WUFFEZAS
Further strengthen the supply and support capabilities
for our restaurants and enhance our centralized
procurement system 5.6 133.7 754 24.6 By the end of 2023
E-SRBAMNRENHER BN LBERN
WERRBAS 03FEEZH
Construct and establish a supply chain center
in Southern China by 2023 32 764 57.0 430 By the end of 2023
ROBEFZFEERRR R A EED L WRFFEZH
Renovate our existing central kitchens and
upgrading our equipment and facilities 24 573 100.0 - -
PRRENPRERUARRENRE
Repay part of our bank loans 8.9 210.2 100.0 - -
BEHIRITEN
Working capital and general corporate purposes 8.1 191.1 100.0 - -
EEEAR-REERRE
Total 100.0 2,372.9 61.0 39.0 By the end of 2024
@t 2014FEFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmED T

Notes:
(1) The figures in the table are approximate figures.

(2) Including the net proceeds of approximately HKD315.0 million (after deducting
the underwriting fees and commissions and other estimated expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the exercise of the Over-allotment Option)
for the 50,010,000 shares issued upon the exercise in full of the Over-allotment
Option.

(3) The net proceeds from the Global Offering have been used according to the
intentions previously disclosed, except that, in light of the persistently uncertain
business environment and the outbreak of the Pandemic, barring any unforeseen
situations beyond the Group's control, it is expected that the unused net proceeds
of approximately HKD893.4 million for the expansion of our restaurant network,
including opening of new restaurants and the renovation of existing restaurants,
as of March 15, 2022 are to be fully utilized by the end of 2024.

The expected timeline of full utilization of the unutilized net proceeds is
based on the Directors’ best estimation barring unforeseen circumstances,
and would be subject to change based on the future development of market
conditions. The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’'s business
objective and may change or modify plans according to the changing market
condition to ensure the business growth of the Group. The Directors will also
take a cautious approach continually when considering using the proceeds
and closely monitor the changes of the market conditions from time to time.
Should there be any material change in the intended use of the unutilized
net proceeds, the Company will make appropriate announcement(s) in due

course.

As of the date of this annual report, the Directors are not aware of any
material change to the planned use of the proceeds as disclosed in the
section under “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the

announcement of the Company dated March 22, 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

Use of Proceeds from the Subscription RBEEABRIERR
The following table sets forth the status of the use of net proceeds from the TREHNRBEFIEMETIEFENBAER (H
Subscription which is consistent with the intentions previously disclosed: SRIEENER ) :
Intended
Percentage of use of proceeds Percentage of Percentage of
intended use from the used amountas  unused balance as Timeframe for the
Intended use of proceeds of proceeds Subscription  of March 15,2022 of March 15, 2022 unused balance
HEZ202% HEZ202F
SR RBBE  3A15AEHA 3A15EABA
FEnERERR RERAZASN FHENERERZ Ex Y EHASN RBAESBREE
(%) (In HKD millions) (%) (%)
(%) (BEET) (%) (%)
Invest in suppliers for key raw material 550 456.5 266 734 By the end of 2026
RERTERMHES 2026FFE Al
General working capital 300 2490 100.0 - -
Invest in other companies in the catering industries 15.0 1245 69.5 305 By the end of 2026
RERESTENEMRT] 206 FEE R
Total 100.0 830.0 55.1 44.9 By the end of 2026
) 20265 FEZH
Note: MEaE -
(1) The figures in the table are approximate figures. (1) REFPHETHABOET -
ROUNDING B

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report REFRMBFNETESBLEOLEFELED
have been subject to rounding adjustments. Any discrepancies in any table B oo (I RASFTHN Y R 2 K2 & R T HI EREE Y
between totals and sums of amounts listed therein are due to rounding. R 2 EIE R EE - HRLEME -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEE

OUR DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Yihong (B# &), aged 52, is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, and chief executive officer of our Group. He is also
our controlling shareholder. He is responsible for formulating the overall
development strategies and business plans of our Company and overseeing
the management and strategic development of our Company. Mr. Guan
started his first noodle restaurant in Haikou, Hainan Province in 1995 and
founded our Group in 2005. Mr. Guan has over 25 years of experience in the
catering industry. He has been the chief executive officer of our Company’s
subsidiary, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since August 2005. He also served as
chairman of the board of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from August 2005 to May
2019 and has been the executive director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since May
2019. Mr. Guan received his bachelor’s degree in business management from
Tianjin Institute of Textile Science and Technology (KJE#H#E T E2ET) (now
known as Tianjin Polytechnic University (RIZETEKRE)) in 1990.

Mr. LI Zhuoguang (Z##), aged 39, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of our Group and Director on February 1, 2019, and was redesignated
as an executive Director on December 6, 2019. He has been appointed as our
joint company secretary with effect from the Listing and is responsible for
overseeing finance, strategic investments and investors' relationship of our
Company. He has also been appointed as the vice president of our Group
with effect from May 1, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Li held
1.7% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held approximately
2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. Since January 4, 2013,
he has been the chief financial officer of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu, and served
as a director and the board secretary of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from October
2015 to May 2019. He worked at Tianji Real Estate Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ld. (REREMERE ORYI) R AR, a real property development
company as vice financial controller from April to December 2012 and KPMG
Huazhen LLP (EEEZERSHAISEEAT (KL @A) as manager from
June 2005 to April 2012. He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Li graduated from Sun Yat-sen University (1 1L K E2)
in July 2005 with a bachelor's degree in English.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CUI Longyu (EFF), aged 47, was appointed as our Director on May
22, 2019, and was redesignated as an executive Director on December 6,
2019. She is responsible for overseeing the supply chain and human resource
management of our Group. She has also been appointed as the vice president
of our Group with effect from May 1, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Ms. Cui held 1.7% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. She has
been the director of human resources of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since joining
the company in December 2014 and served as a director of Guangzhou
Jiumaojiu from November 2018 to May 2019. Before that, she worked as the
senior brand manager at McDonald (China) Co., Ltd. (XE4 (FRE) AR A
7)), an international fast food franchise, from 2013 to 2014 and the operation
manager at Guangdong San Yuan McDonald Food Co., Ltd. (BR=TTEE %
RMmAMRAF]) (“San Yuan McDonald’s"), a McDonald's franchised business,
from 1997 to 2012. Ms. Cui obtained a higher diploma in secretary and public
relations from Guangzhou University (BN AZ2) in 1996.

Mr. HE Chengxiao (fIE®), aged 44, was appointed as our executive
Director on July 2, 2020. He joined our Group in 2013 and has served as
the general manager of Tai Er Catering, a subsidiary of our Company since
November 2017. He is responsible for coordinating the brand management
and operational business of our various brands. He has also been appointed
as the vice president of our Group with effect from May 1, 2020 and as a
director of Jiumaojiu (Guangzhou) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of our
Company with effect from July 2, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Mr. He held 2.1% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. Mr. He
served as the operation director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from November
2013 to October 2017. Before joining our Company, he worked at San Yuan
McDonald’s from July 1999 to November 2013. He served as an operations
manager before leaving San Yuan McDonald’s. Mr. He has extensive
experiences in both brand and operation management over 21 years. Mr. He
graduated from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (ERIMNEINE

B2 in 1999, specializing in international finance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. DENG Tao (&), aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on August 12, 2019. He is responsible for providing
independent advice and judgment to our Board. He was an independent
director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from October 1, 2015 to May 30, 2019. From
August 2017 to May 2020, he served as chief financial officer, and later as
the vice president and board secretary of Guangzhou Holike Creative Home
Co., Lid. (BN HFEIBERERNDER AT, a furniture customization
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603898). From
May 2020 to April 2021, he worked at Guangzhou U&I Technology Company
Limited (BN A FEEHERRD AR 2 R)), a wireless Bluetooth solution provider
company listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock
code: 839438), and served as the vice president and secretary of the board
of directors of the company from June 2020 to April 2021. Since April 2021,
he has served as the vice president of Towngas China Energy Investment
Limited (BERLRIEE B A F]). He has acquired rich industry experience
and obtained a number of industry awards, including Sina Finance 3rd
Board Secretary Gold Award CHTRMEE =B ME W), Guangdong
Listed Companies Quanjing Annual Investor Relations Gold Award (/& 5 &8
& EHRAR'"FEE2RREEMESLIE), New Fortune 15th Golden Board
Secretary Award (T84 & % + A8 £ K E ), 12th Chinese Listed Companies
Information Disclosure Outstanding Board Secretary Award (551 —f@+ &
FHARMEBEHER T EM), Chinese Listed Company The Most Valued
Board Secretary Award (FE L ABIEENEEFBEM), Sina Finance
4th Golden Board Secretary Award GETR I A€ 2 MU fE & M2 EEM)), 2017 Jinniu
Investor Relations Management Award (2017 FE & F R EEBRE IR L)
He worked at KPMG Huazhen LLP (2HBERS T EHT KR LBE
%)) from August 2006 to August 2013, where he served in various positions,
including manager. From August 2013 to June 2015, Mr. Deng worked as
the deputy director of accounting at Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd. (&
B EEERMAMR AR, which is engaged in the plastic manufacturing
business and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000659).
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Deng graduated from South China University of Technology (312 T KE2)
in 2003, with a bachelor's degree in materials science and engineering, then
a master's degree in physics from Sun Yat-sen University (F1 LLIKZ2) in June
2006.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TANG Zhihui (FEEHE), aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on April 16, 2021. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has extensive
experience in human resource management and had held various senior-
level positions in listed companies. She previously served as a vice president
of JD.com, Inc. (NASDAQ: JD) from 2014 to 2017 responsible for human
resources function and as a vice president of Renren Inc. (NYSE: RENN) from
2007 to 2013 responsible for human resources function. Currently, Ms. Tang
is a director of Tianjin Binhai Jingyuan Crowdfunding Trade Centre Co., Ltd
(REBESRTREXSHOLAERAT), a company principally engaged
in providing consultancy services for private companies on crowdfunding,
corporate finance, and mergers and acquisitions. Ms. Tang obtained a

bachelor of arts degree from Wuhan University in July 1990.

Ms. ZHU Rui (5K %), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on April 16, 2021. She is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has
extensive knowledge in branding, consumer behavior, consumer information
processing and psychology and corporate social responsibility. Ms. Zhu has
been a Professor of Marketing, Director of the Social Innovation and Business
for Good Centre and Academic Director for the EMBA Program of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business from 2013 to present. Prior to that, Ms. Zhu
was an associate professor at the University of British Columbia, Canada, from
2005 to 2013 and an assistant professor at Rice University, the United States,
from 2003 to 2005. Ms. Zhu received her Ph.D. in Business Administration
from University of Minnesota, the United States, in 2003.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GUAN Yihong (B8 %), aged 52, is also our chief executive officer. See
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.

Mr. LI Zhuoguang (ZEXI}#), aged 39, is also our chief financial officer
and vice president. See the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his

biography.

Ms. CUI Longyu (BFF), aged 47, is also our vice president. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for her biography.

Mr. HE Chengxiao (fIA{%%), aged 44, is also our vice president. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.

Mr. FU Danwei (f3f1&), aged 48, joined our Group as the director of
information technology of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu on September 11, 2017 and
is primarily responsible for overseeing the information technology matters of
our Company. Prior to joining our Group, he accumulated extensive working
experience in the information technology sector. He worked as the chief
technology officer at Shenzhen Holpe Commercial Chain Co., Ltd. (YT
5% P 2B M D ABR A 7)), which provides sales and repair services of
telecommunication and digital products, from August 2015 to September
2017. From June 2013 to August 2014, he worked at McDonald (China) Co.,
Ltd (BE4 () BR2AA]) as the information technology manager.
From November 2011 to December 2012, he worked as a senior manager
at Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd (ZERIXMAMR A E]). Mr. Fu graduated
from Hubei Institute of Technology (#1t TZ2F%) (the predecessor of Hubei
University of Technology (3t T K2)) in 1995 with a bachelor's degree
in electrical engineering. He then obtained a master's degree in law in
South-Central University for Nationalities (F7 B TR & A E2) in 2002.

Mr. HU Zhonghua (## %), aged 43, joined our Group on September 20,
2008 and has been the director of development of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
since January 1, 2014 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the
restaurant expansion and development. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Mr. Hu held 2.9% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. Mr. Hu
graduated from Hunan Construction Materials College (i ZM 2 EH R £

1), now known as Hunan Institute of Technology (# & T &), in 2003.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. LI Zhuoguang (Z#¥), aged 39, is also one of our joint company

secretaries. See the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.

Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI (%5 #)), aged 40, has been appointed as one
of our joint company secretaries with effect from the Listing. He is a member
of the CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has assisted in numerous IPO projects and has deep knowledge of
the listing procedures and regulatory requirements of listed companies,
including internal controls, accounting and financial disclosure. Mr. Tsui
has served as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the
audit committee, and a member of each of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and corporate governance committee (currently
known as environmental, social and governance committee) of Grand Field
Group Holdings Limited (#3985 B HFR 2 F]%), the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 115) since July 23, 2021. Mr. Tsui has
been a corporate consultant of Richdale Consultants Limited, a consultancy
company that provides corporate advisory services to both private and
listed company clients, including financial reporting matters, compliance
with various rules and regulations, fund raising and corporate development
planning, from October 2018. He was the company secretary and financial
controller of Poly Property Management Group (Hong Kong) Limited (R FI#)
¥EEEBE (F8) BRAT]), a company providing property management
services in the PRC, from September 2017 to September 2018. He worked as
assistant financial controller at Ocean Empire International Co., Ltd. (& 2 B
BRA7], which operates chain restaurants of traditional Cantonese congee
in Hong Kong and Macau, from September 2016 to September 2017 and the
chief listing officer of Linglun Daycrown Case & Bag Industries (Shenzhen)
Co, Ltd. (RBIRAIEMEBREZE ORYI) BBRAF]), a company primarily
engaged in sales of various luggage, and other products from September
2014 to June 2016, primarily responsible for group restructuring as well as
further the improvements in financial reporting framework. Mr. Tsui worked
from May 2007 to August 2014 in KPMG and his last position was manager.
Before that he worked as an accountant in Hertzberg Yong & Co., Chartered
Accountants in Australia from August 2003 to November 2006. He obtained a

bachelor's degree in commerce in Macquarie University in Australia in 2003.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to
the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
formulating and implementing corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company’s needs. The Company has adopted the principles and
code provisions of the CG Code as the basis of the Company's corporate

governance practices.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code save for the
deviations from code provision C.2.1 which are explained in the relevant

paragraphs of this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Key corporate governance

principles and practices of the Company are summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the Board. The
Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the development of
Company business, and provides leadership in the creation of value for
Shareholders. All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith,
have been in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, have taken
decisions objectively and have acted in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times. The Directors shall disclose to the Company details

of other offices held by them.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, risk management and internal control systems, material transactions
(particularly those involving conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational

matters.
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The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is

spending sufficient time performing them.

All Directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the joint company secretaries and senior management
of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable laws and regulations are followed. Any Director may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the

Company's expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are led by the Board and senior management of the Company. The
Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the management
for implementing Board decisions, and directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company. The Board reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks regularly. The management has to obtain

Board approval prior to entering into any significant transactions.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a potential conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the relevant Director shall abstain from voting and a Board
meeting attended by independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the matter shall be held to

discuss and vote on the same.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual

basis.
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Board Composition

The composition of the Board during the year ended December 31, 2021 is as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Yihong (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Zhuoguang

Ms. Cui Longyu

Mr. He Chengxiao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Deng Tao

Mr. Zhong Weibin (Note)
Mr. Ivan Xu (Note)

Ms. Tang Zhihui (Note)
Ms. Zhu Rui (Note)

Note: Mr. Zhong Weibin and Mr. lvan Xu resigned as independent non-executive
Directors and Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui were appointed as independent
non-executive Directors on April 16, 2021.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly

identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
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During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent
non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirement and objectives of the

Group and for the exercise of independent judgement.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Guan Yihong currently serves as both the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company. Since the founding of the Group
in 2005, Mr. Guan Yihong has been responsible for formulating the overall
business development strategies and leading the overall operations, and
therefore has been instrumental to the growth and business expansion of
the Group. Mr. Guan Yihong's vision and leadership have played a pivotal role
in the Group’s success and achievements to date, and therefore the Board
considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person is beneficial to the management of the Group. The long-serving
and outstanding senior management team of the Company and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high-caliber individuals, provides a check
on the balance of power and authority. The Board comprises four executive
Directors (including Mr. Guan Yihong) and three independent non-executive
Directors, and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its

composition.
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The chairman provides leadership to the Board by ensuring the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities in time. The chairman himself, or
a Director or a joint company secretary delegated by him, is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. The chairman
ensures that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established. The chairman encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in
the best interests of the Company. The chairman ensures that all Directors
receive adequate information to fulfill their duties, which must be accurate,
clear, complete and reliable in a timely manner. The chairman ensures
effective communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The chairman promotes a culture
of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-
executive Directors in particular and ensures constructive relations between

executive and non-executive Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a letter
of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors for a
term of three years. Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The retiring

Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association, Mr. Li Zhuoguang,
Ms. Cui Longyu and Mr. Deng Tao shall retire at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Board recommended
the re-election of the above retiring Directors at the AGM. The Company's
circular, sent together with this annual report, contains detailed information

of such retiring Directors as required by the Listing Rules.
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Training and Continuing Professional Development of Directors

The Directors keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company in order to

effectively perform their responsibilities.

Every newly appointed Directors has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally

supplemented with meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for the Directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials relating to the
Company'’s business or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, updates on
salient laws, corporate governance, regulations applicable to the Group are
provided to the Directors from time to time for their studying and reference.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the

Company's expenses.

The Directors are required to submit to the Company details of the training
they received in each financial year for the Company’'s maintenance of
proper training records of the Directors. During the year ended December 31,
2021, Mr. Guan Yihong, Mr. Li Zhuoguang, Ms. Cui Longyu, Mr. He Chengxiao,
Mr. Deng Tao, Ms. Tang Zhihui, Ms. Zhu Rui, Mr. Zhong Weibin and Mr. Ivan
Xu attended training sessions on regulatory development, directors’ duties
or other relevant topics. In addition, relevant reading materials have been

provided to the Directors for their studying and reference.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having
made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the provisions of the Model Code during the year ended
December 31, 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company (the "Guidelines for Securities Dealings by
Relevant Employees”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. No
incident of non-compliance with the Guidelines for Securities Dealings by

Relevant Employees by the employees has been noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company's securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant

employees in advance.

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to the Directors in advance. Notice of a regular Board meeting
is served on all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting. For other

Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all Directors at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of the latest development
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent access to

the senior management where necessary.

The senior management normally will attend regular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory

compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.
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The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at the meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have

a material interest.

The secretary of the meetings is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or

dissenting views expressed.

Draft minutes are normally circulated to all the Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting. Final versions of the minutes are sent

to the Directors for their records and are open for their inspection.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings and annual general meeting of the Company held during the year

ended December 31, 2021 are set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

R, ERRE
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director EEpE Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting
EX® ERZEE® FHEEE REZEE RREFKE
Mr. Guan Yihong ERRIE 5/5 - - i 11
Mr. Li Zhuoguang EN b 5/5 - 1/1 - 11
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFIT 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. He Chengxiao Al R SE 5/5 - - - 11
Mr. Deng Tao RSk a 5/5 2/2 1/1 11 11
Mr. Zhong Weibin EEMEED 1 1/1 1/1 11 -
Mr. lvan Xu®? BRFEEED 1/ 1/1 - - -
Ms. Tang Zhihui® EERE A1 4/4 11 - - 1/1
Ms. Zhu Rui® KREL LW 4/4 /1 - - 1/1
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In addition, Mr. Guan Yihong, the chairman of the Board, held a meeting

with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Directors during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Notes:

M

Mr. Zhong Weibin resigned as an independent non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee on April 16, 2021. Before his resignation, there
were 1 Board meeting, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 1T Remuneration Committee
meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting of the Company held during the
year ended December 31, 2021.

Mr. Ivan Xu resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee on April 16, 2021. Before his resignation, there were 1 Board
meeting and 1 Audit Committee meeting of the Company held during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Ms. Tang Zhihui was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on April 16, 2021. After her appointment, there were 4 Board meetings,
1 Audit Committee meeting and an annual general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Ms. Zhu Rui was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a
member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee on April 16,
2021. After her appointment, there were 4 Board meetings, 1 Audit Committee
meeting and an annual general meeting of the Company held during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee

and Risk Management Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs. The Board committees have sufficient resources to execute

their requisite duties. All the Board committees should report to the Board on

their decisions or recommendations made.
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Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2021, the Audit Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Deng Tao (Chairman), Ms. Tang Zhihui
and Ms. Zhu Rui. Mr. Deng Tao possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company's

existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the relationship with the
external auditors by referencing to the work performed by the external
auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors; (iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; and (iv) establish a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns
in confidence about possible improprieties in any matter related to the

Company.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the annual financial results and report for the year ended
December 31, 2020, the interim financial results and report for the six months
ended June 30, 2021, major audit findings, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function, scope
of works and re-appointment of external auditors, continuing connected
transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about

possible improprieties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AL s S
TEERWRE

BEREES

HZE2021F12A318  EXZEEH=-%B
SIERATEEMER  BENESLE (EE)  BEE
Bzt RAELL  WEEEHEA LTHAE
30 EFTIRE MBS EE AR o I EEZ
ZEGXEARARRRIRAINEZEA AT ES
BA -

EZZEENEIERARNENVBERERLES
WEEhAEENEERAB KIS BENIR
HOERNERLREER  YEZRAEES
W (NRBIMNSZBMZ TE - ERNRER
R AT R BB RN BN 2 IR - W
SNERBEZRE EREEBAEFTSRN
WM (iR ARRMIEES - ARREEE
NEBEREREIE R (v)HE ERBEE MR
EREENMNEADNBDFERETERENERT
RERARARNERNEEROAETETR
REET -

ERZEENEEBRESEIRNBIMRAR
RIMILER] o

REZE2021F12A3BLEFE  BXEEGHR
TTMREE  AEHEZE2020F12A3181F
FEMFEMBEERRE - BHE2021F6H30
HIEAEAMEO PG BEERERSE =2
BZEL  BUMERREAREFNERSE
B AEEERERERE  AQFANNE
STELAER B - SNEEARZ AT T RS B R A
B HEMEXSURBEEERATETETS
RHEBENZHE -

—ZT——FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 59



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings
without the presence of executive Directors to discuss with the Audit
Committee issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee

regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

As of December 31, 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely,

Ms. Tang Zhihui (Chairman), Mr. Deng Tao and Mr. Li Zhuoguang.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) assess
performance of executive Directors and approve the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts; (ii) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by referencing to corporate goals and objectives; (iii) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted); and (iv) establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the performance

of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and conditions.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Group and considered and recommended the remuneration packages of the
newly appointed independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Tang Zhihui and
Ms. Zhu Rui.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set

out below:
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BEBELEERTAZTANEXEE S - HE
F221F12A3BIEFE  aREEEXNE 2
FEHFWEESH T

Number

of senior

management

Remuneration Band HriN i E BREEE A
RMBO to RMB1,000,000 AR#0TE AR 1,000,0007T 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,001 72 AREE1,500,0007T 2
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR#1,500,001 702 A K% 2,000,0007T 2
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001 702 AR 2,500,0007T 1
7

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2021 are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

As of December 31, 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Guan Yihong (Chairman), Mr. Deng Tao and Ms. Zhu Rui.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommend any changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy; (ii) identify qualified
and suitable individuals to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company, having regard to the requirements under the
Listing Rules; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief

executive of the Company.
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The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance its performance and has adopted a board diversity policy
aiming to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
implementation of the policy is monitored by the Nomination Committee. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from
a number of measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation
to the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives will be reviewed from time
to time and at least on an annual basis to ensure their appropriateness in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, 2 new female Directors (representing 100% of the
new independent non-executive Directors) joined the Board, bringing the
female representation to 3 or about 42.9% of the Board. As of December 31,
2021, the Group had a total of 4,582 female staff out of 14,495 employees,
representing 31.6% of the employees of the Group. The Group will continue
to take opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members

and workforce over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.

The Company has also adopted the Procedures for the Nomination
Committee to nominate to the Board a person as Director which sets out the
criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation, and provides
guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of the
Company. The Board believes that the defined selection process is good
for corporate governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate
leadership at Board level, and enhancing better Board effectiveness and

diversity as well as in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character including
integrity, honesty and fairness, backgrounds and qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience, independence and
other relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select
candidates for directorship from various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other members of the

management and external recruitment agents.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group and reviewed the Board diversity
policy; considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2021 annual general meeting; assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and considered
and recommended the appointment of Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui as

independent non-executive Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and the
Guidelines for Securities Dealings by Relevant Employees, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
and regulatory requirements. The management has provided to the Board
such explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company's financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The management provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,

positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out

in the Independent Auditor's Report of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the Company's strategic
objectives, and for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’

investments and the Group's assets.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems. The
Company has developed and adopted different risk management procedures
and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be conducted each year to confirm
that the Company has properly complied with the risk management
and internal control policy. All divisions would conduct internal control
assessment to identify risks factors with potential impact on the Group's
business. The management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board and the

Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general guide
to the Company's directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company has recruited experienced personnel for providing the
internal audit function and performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The internal audit function examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee. The Company
has also engaged an external professional firm to provide an ongoing
review of the Group's execution and launch of its procurement system in
order to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks, including ongoing
review of the segregation of duties, enhancement of the organizational
structures, fine-tuning of the standard operating procedures, goal settings,
KPI management as well as provide training and updates to shape the

continuing improvements.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the management, has
reviewed the report from the management and the internal audit findings,
and reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls for the year ended December 31, 2021. The annual review also
covered areas on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company's accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as those relating
to the Company's environmental, social and governance performance
and reporting. The Board considered that such systems are adequate and
effective and ongoing review of the same nature would be conducted in

subsequent years.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS'
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the Company's financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2021 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s

Report” in this annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the

preparation and content of the auditor’s report and auditor’s independence.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the remuneration paid/payable

to the Company'’s external auditors, KPMG, is set out below:

NI A BB B2 A% BB oz S

RRFSNEZBEI LB AR R REE 2021 F
NAMALFENTBRR cAREEZE
B SN AFERBIREEIRE | & -

RRARSNEZBEN B BB HERRBFRE -
NRERBEZONT  ZBERENREN
NERZEEVB R -

HE2021F12831BILFE - ARBEN JE
N FINEZ AN R S B et R B FT 2 i &
FlanR

Remuneration (RMB’000)

Nature of Services RIEHE HFH(AR®ET )
Audit services BRI 2,600
Non-audit services (Note) JEEE RIS (B E) 800
TOTAL: st 3,400

Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance services.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Zhuoguang and Mr. Matthew Mo Kan Tsui, being the joint company
secretaries of the Company, report to the chairman of the Board and are
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as the applicable

laws, rules and regulations are followed.
Mr. Li Zhuoguang and Mr. Matthew Mo Kan Tsui have taken not less than

15 hours of relevant professional training and comply with the requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors' understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the best

investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.jiumaojiu.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Group's business operations, developments and financial

information are available for public access.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, are available to answer questions at general
meetings. The chairman of a meeting will provide the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from the Shareholders on
voting by poll. A notice to Shareholders is sent by the Company at least 21
days before the annual general meeting and at least 14 days before all other

general meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them posted of the Company's

developments.
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POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders' views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The

policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, interim, special,
final dividends and any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the

Shareholders” approval.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’” meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, for
Shareholders' consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company immediately after the relevant general meetings.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or either of the joint company secretaries of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There is no provision allowing the Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Companies Act or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the

preceding paragraph.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, the Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meeting shall lodge a written notice, duly signed by the
Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to
be elected. The minimum length of the period during which such notices
may be lodged at the Company’s head office in Guangzhou, PRC or the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong shall be at least seven days and
that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as Director” are available on the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with

verbal or anonymous enquiries.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice, statement or enquiry (as the case may
be) to the following address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may

be disclosed as required by law.
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Address:  Room 404-A197, 1 Mingzhuyi Street, Hengli Town, Nansha District,
Guangzhou, the PRC (For the attention of the Board/Company
Secretary)

E-mail: comsec@jiumaojiu.com

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders should direct their enquiries

to the Company's Hong Kong Share Registrar. Their details are as follows:
Name: Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited

Address:  Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong

Tel No.:  (852) 3707 2600

Fax No..  (852) 3707 2699

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company has not made
any changes to its constitutional documents. The amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31,2021.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on February 1, 2019
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act. The
Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15,
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in managing and operating Chinese cuisine restaurant brands in
the PRC. Details of the principal activities of the significant subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2021 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance is set out in the chapter headed “Chairman’s Statement” from
pages 13 to 22 and "Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 23 to

43 of this annual report which constitute part of this directors’ report.

OUTLOOK FOR 2022

In the year ending December 31, 2022, the Group will continue to pursue the
following: (i) replicate our success through further expansion; (ii) continue
to expand into more market segments by pursuing a multi-brand and
multi-concept strategy; (i) continue to strengthen our supply and support
capabilities; and (iv) expand into the global markets to gain an international
presence. Further discussion of the future development in the Group's
business is set out in the chapter headed “Chairman’s Statement” from pages

13 to 22 of this annual report which constitutes part of this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

EESMARZERSERNAEERE2021F
12A3NHIEFENKLEZSERMBERE

—RER

R2019F2A1H  ARGBRERAREERSE
SHMKLAERRERETAR - RHER
20201 RS BB R FTEIR 70 ©

FEEK

KNG A —RICELBRAR - ZK’*@E;:Z—ECP
BEHEEEREETERERE - BRAARQ
%’&M\‘JJ%’AETE’UI%%%‘%E’\J%’%%F%Aﬁﬂ%iﬁ
FMIzE12(60)

£ e

DNRAMGOIM RSN EN B AAREEBE20214
12A31BIEFEMEBREREED MHRK
FWMEVBEREN[EFERE | REB3E43EH
[BEEENREDNT | EH (BRAZESTEREN
—HH) o

2022 F WA=

MREZE2022F12831HIEFE K%IH%%?;
=3k 1 ()RR PERSERRMAKD
BREZLEERZBSRE  BERELZAS
SRR (I FFE ISR B MR e R FFRE 7 -
K(v)REERMSERAESHENSMNE - F
BAREEEBRREROME P ARBN AT
REBEREMNEERE I EH (ERNAES
BIREN—ILH) -

—ZT——FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 71



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PR

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2021 2020

20215 2020%F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFT

Revenue A 4,179,704 2,714,830

Store level operating profit JEHEmLERE 809,297 404,602

Profit before taxation PR35 A& A 505,920 176,608

Profit for the year FE & 372,153 138,006
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN B R AR R PEAS

Shareholders of the Company 339,936 124,063

Adjusted net profit TR LR 380,427 116,141

Final dividend proposed after the end of the year FREERBEZZRERE 70,968 24,367

Special dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREEZZFIRE - 24,367

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Relationship with Suppliers

We typically have at least three suppliers for each of our main ingredients
to minimize any potential disruption in our operations, maintain sourcing
stability, avoid over-reliance risk, and secure competitive prices from
suppliers. To safeguard food quality, our comprehensive requirements cover
reputable large suppliers both domestically and overseas. In order to facilitate
cooperation with our suppliers and secure a stable supply of key ingredients,
we have established co-operative relationships with two suppliers of our key
ingredient (i.e. bass) by forming joint venture companies with them. One
of the joint venture companies has been supplying bass to the Group since
January 2021. The other joint venture company has commenced operation of
the breeding process and it is expected that it will be able to start supplying
bass to the Group since around mid-2022. Further, our Company has entered
into cooperation agreements with certain sauerkraut suppliers to obtain early

payment discounts and secure a stable and quality supply of sauerkraut.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the total purchases from our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for 36.79%, and our purchases from
our largest supplier accounted for 19.31%, of our total purchases. On average,
we have over three years of business dealings with our major suppliers. We
did not experience any interruption in our supply of food ingredients, early
termination of supply agreements, or failure to secure sufficient quantities of
irreplaceable food ingredients that had any material adverse impact on our

business or results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Relationship with Customers

In pursuit of our philosophy of serving delicacies at affordable prices ("4F0%,
E&"), we are fully devoted to providing a marvelous dining experience to
our customers through exquisite dishes, high-quality services and unique
brand culture. We have a large and diverse customer base. Revenue derived
from our largest customer and five largest customers both accounted for less

than 1.0% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021.

All of our top five largest customers and suppliers are independent
third parties. None of our Directors, their close associates or any of our
Shareholders (who, to the knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of
the issued share capital of our Company) had any interest in any of our top
five largest customers or suppliers that is required to be disclosed under the

Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Relationship with Employees

Our success, to a considerable extent, depends upon our ability to attract,
motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees. The
remuneration package for our employees generally includes salary and
bonuses. We determine employee remuneration based on factors such
as qualifications and years of experience. Employees also receive welfare
benefits, including medical care, retirement benefits, occupational injury
insurance and other miscellaneous items. We make contributions to
mandatory social security funds for our employees to provide for retirement,
medical, work-related injury, maternity and unemployment benefits. We also
granted restricted stock units as share incentives to qualified directors and
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed “Restricted
Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report. In
order to incentivize Directors, senior management and employees for their
contribution to our Company and to attract, motivate and retain skilled and
experienced personnel, we have granted share options under the Share
Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the section headed “Restricted

Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment and giving
back to community and achieving sustainable growth. Details of such will be
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be published

no later than May 31, 2022.

LICENCES, REGULATORY APPROVALS AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no material breaches
or violations of relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, where the Group
has business entities and operations, and the Group had obtained all
requisite licenses, approvals and permits from relevant authorities that are
material to the Group's operations in the PRC. Details of our compliance with
relevant laws and regulations will be set out in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operation of the
Group. The principal risks and uncertainties that the Group faces and key

mitigations that the Group adopts are summarized as follows:
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description
i
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EEEHRE

Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Uncertainty to successfully

enter into new markets

B )3 B8 37 717 455 69 T e SE
ESES

In obtaining new restaurant sites, we may face
intense competition from our competitors
in the catering service industry. We may also
encounter delays when applying for relevant
material licenses during the approval process
from the government authorities, for which the
timeline is beyond our control. Even if we are
able to open additional restaurants as planned,
these new restaurants may neither be profitable
nor have results comparable to our existing

restaurants for a period of time.
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We adopt a prudent approach in entering
into new markets and conduct a detailed and
comprehensive due diligence exercise which
includes researches on the overall market trend,
development schedule for new shopping malls
and information in relation to the regulations,
policies and taxation system of the cities where
we intend to open our new restaurants. We
have strong preference for top commercial
districts in a city with convenient transportation
and high pedestrian flow. We deploy at least
one restaurant staff for each key operational
function from our existing restaurants to the
new restaurant to ensure an efficient transfer of
our operational procedures and best practices

to the new restaurant.

HARBBENTDEEE 5 MR A
MEENERRAEL  ZPELEEEETS
B FBEYHONERERER KA BREM
EEFRMEEMERTONET  BEREM
Wbl H B R EVFTTT © TV RIS BRB(E
FMRAREBANBTEERNER - RMA
MERNESIRZZEREZIHE—BRE
BEEET  UERERMNZERFERE
EREMMERENMEERE -

—ZT——FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 75



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description
i

Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Uncertainty to maintain
and increase the sales and
profitability of our existing

restaurants

MR RIE MR IR A ERE
HHE 5 R B FIBE h )T
nalaSES

Our ability to increase existing restaurant sales
depends in part on our ability to successfully
implement our initiatives to increase
customer traffic, seat turnover and spending
per customer. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to achieve our targeted
sales growth and profitability for our existing
restaurants. Also, we cannot ensure that
existing restaurant sales will not decrease. If
we are unable to achieve our targeted sales
and profitability goals in our existing markets,
our business, financial condition and results of

operations may be materially adversely affected.
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We endeavor to offer tasty cuisines with
optimal presentation to our customers by
constantly improving the quality and flavor of
our dishes which cater to the specific tastes of
local customers. For example, we review and
update Jiu Mao Jiu menu quarterly based on
evaluations from customers. We also strive to
provide our customers with superior services
and distinctive dining experience. For example,
Tai Er pursues unique and interesting dining
culture and builds rapport with customers
through eye-catching and off-the-rail slogans.
Further, we introduce a variety of interesting
and interactive activities carefully designed by
our dedicated team for our online members
to boost our sale of featured products on our
online platforms and increase their frequency
of visits to our restaurants. We build our brand
image through a combination of online and

offline promotional campaigns.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description

gl
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Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Risks related to changes
in consumer taste and

discretionary spending

BB & E QR R A AL
2 B iR R RO E B

The catering service industry is affected by
consumer taste and preference. We cannot
assure you that we can continue to maintain our
menu to develop new products and maintain
an attractive menu to suit changing customer

demands.

To a significant extent, our success also
depends on discretionary customer spending,
which is influenced by general economic
conditions. Accordingly, we may experience
declines in sales during economic downturns
or prolonged periods of high unemployment
rates. Any material decline in the amount of
discretionary spending in the PRC may have a
material adverse effect on our business, results

of operations and financial condition.
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We closely monitor changes in consumer taste
and preference. We conduct customer surveys
to collect feedback from customers so that we
update our menus as necessary to maintain a
degree of freshness. We also monitor customer
satisfaction through consumer review websites
and through our frontline staff who interact

with our customers to collect feedback.

When experiencing material declines in sales,
we will adjust our strategies to counter their
effect on our business such as by boosting
our delivery service and by developing semi-
processed products for sale. We will adopt
a more prudent restaurant opening strategy
and freeze non-essential hiring to minimize

expenditures.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description

gl

Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Risks related to quality

control and food safety

B i B BEYE I
EzLeol N

RmR2A

The catering service industry in the PRC as a
whole is subject to concerns over food safety
and quality related issues. The catering service
industry as a whole can be negatively impacted
by reports and negative publicity related to
food safety and quality incidents. Our prospects,
business, results of operations and financial
condition can be negatively impacted if the
catering service industry experiences slower
growth from concerns over food safety and
quality related issues even if such concerns are
through no fault of our own or are not related

to our business.
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We have implemented a comprehensive set
of stringent food safety and quality control
standards and measures covering different
aspects of our operations, including (i)
procurement, (ii) food processing, (iii) storage,
(iv) logistics and (v) restaurant operations.
In particular, our quality control department
conducts, or engages third parties to conduct,
regular and ad hoc spot-checks on our
restaurants from time to time to identify and
rectify potential quality and food safety issues.
We also continuously provide training programs
to our restaurant staff to ensure that they have
clear understanding on operating procedures
and quality standards.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description
i
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Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Risks related to events that
disrupt the operations of
any of our restaurants or our

central kitchens

BB PR R S R
FEENSHRRNER

Our operations are vulnerable to interruption
by fires, floods, earthquakes, other natural or
man-made disasters and other events beyond
our control. Our business is also dependent on
prompt delivery and transportation of our food
ingredients and raw materials. Certain events,
such as adverse weather conditions, natural
disasters, severe traffic accidents and delays and
labor strikes, could also lead to delayed or lost
deliveries of food supplies to our processing
plants, logistics facilities and our restaurants. In
addition, fires, floods, earthquakes and terrorist
attacks may lead to evacuations and other
disruptions in our operations, which may also
prevent us from providing quality food and
service to customers, thereby affecting our

business and damaging our reputation.

In particular, the Pandemic has significantly
affected the global economy including
the economy of the PRC and has not been
completely contained. The Pandemic may

continue to affect our business operations.
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We are determined to mitigate the impact
on our business caused by events which are
beyond our control such as the Pandemic. We
have implemented several cost-saving initiatives
to reduce costs on rentals, raw materials and
consumables used as well as other operating
expenses. As part of such initiatives, we closed
down restaurants with relatively low customer
traffic and ceased to operate Jiu Mao Jiu
restaurants outside of Guangdong province and

Hainan province.

We have continued to adopt the set of internal
protection measures handbook covering
prevention controls of sterilization standards
over restaurants, delivery, logistics, storage,
central kitchens and functional departments
and have closely monitored the development
of the Pandemic so as to adjust our restaurant
network expansion plans as and when

appropriate.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the year ended December 31, 2021 are stated in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the state
of the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated

financial statements from pages 116 to 240 of this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKD0.06 per
ordinary share for the year ended December 31, 2021 (for the year ended
December 31, 2020: a final dividend of HKDO0.02 per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HKD0.02 per ordinary share). The proposed final dividend
is declared and will be paid in Hong Kong Dollars. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the AGM, the proposed final dividend will be paid to
the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, June 14, 2022. The proposed final dividend is expected
to be distributed to the Shareholders on Thursday, June 30, 2022.

Distributable Reserves

As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate amount of distributable reserves of
the Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act, amounted
to RMB2,640,634,000 (as of December 31, 2020: RMB2,758,369,000).

Reserves

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this

annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2021 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings and other Loans

Details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group as at December 31,
2021 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

Charge on Assets

There was no charge on the Group's assets as at December 31, 2021.

Donation

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2021
was RMB221,000.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out from pages 11 to 12 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

[LES
AARREE2021F12A31 BIEEEZRAE
BFEBRAF RS M BIMRME26 -

RITERREMER

REBMR2021F12 A3 B ZRITEREHEME
HHBENAF RIS M RERMIE23 -

EEER
202112 A31 8 » REBEBEEREEER -

B
HE2021F12A31HIEFE » AEBELHER
ANFR#221,0007T °

MHRE

AEEBETREMBRFE 2 RAHERAARE
ENAERIHERAFRENE2E - HE
TEREEZR AV REZED -

BE  HElgBEOARAQATN LS
EH

REZE2021F 12831 BIEFENEEAFHRH
ik ARBRETFAMNBRARALEEE - H
ERERADRNEM LETES -

—ZT——FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 81



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT SCHEME AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

Restricted Stock Unit Scheme

The Group’s controlling shareholder, Mr. Guan Yihong, operated a
share-based incentive scheme (the “Old RSU Scheme”) under which the
restricted stock units (‘RSUs") of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu were granted as share
incentives to qualified directors and employees of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
and its subsidiaries (the “RSU grantees”) through an employee shareholding
platform (the “RSU platform”), Guangzhou Maixuan, which was a shareholder
of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu prior to the Reorganization. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the restricted stock units scheme (the
“RSU Scheme”), which largely mirror that of the Old RSU Scheme, approved
and adopted by the board of Directors to govern the RSU granted under
the Old RSU Scheme approved and adopted by the board of directors of
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu on December 3, 2014. All RSUs granted under the Old
RSU Scheme were converted into the shares of MT BVI and MX BVI upon
the completion of the Reorganization on June 14, 2019. No restricted stock
units have been granted or will be granted under the RSU Scheme. No more
RSUs will be granted under the Old RSU Scheme. If any RSU lapses, the
corresponding Shares will be transferred to Mr. Guan Yihong or his wholly
owned investment vehicle after the Listing. The RSU Scheme will terminate

as soon as all the RSUs granted under the Old RSU Scheme lapse or vest.

Persons eligible to receive RSU(s) under the RSU Scheme are employees,
senior management, directors (whether executive or non-executive, but
excluding independent non-executive directors) or officers who have worked
in Guangzhou Jiumaojiu or any of its subsidiaries for two years or more (the
“RSU Eligible Persons”). The board of directors or the sole director (as the
case may be) of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu selects and approves the RSU Eligible
Persons, and the chairperson of the board of directors or the sole director (as
the case may be) of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu reserves the final right to confirm

the RSU Eligible Persons at his/her own discretion.
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Each participant in the RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participant”) shall remain in
service with Guangzhou Jiumaojiu or any of its subsidiaries for five years from
the date of granting the RSUs (the “Service Period”) and the RSUs shall vest
at the end of the Service Period. Once the vesting conditions underlying the
respective RSUs are met, the RSUs are considered duly and validly issued to
the holder, and free of restrictions on transfer. The RSUs granted pursuant to
the RSU Scheme are personal to each RSU Participant, and are not assignable

during the Service Period, unless otherwise permitted under the RSU Scheme.

There are certain circumstances the occurrence of which during the Service
Period will result in the lapse of the RSUs granted to the RSU Participant,
including, among others, (i) the RSU Participant ceases to be an employee
of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) serious breach of
employment contract or any other internal guidelines by the RSU Participant;
and (iii) serious acts of misconduct committed by the RSU Participant leading

to loss suffered by Guangzhou Jiumaojiu.
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Details of the RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme and the movements in BHZE2021F12A31 BIEFE - RIBEZR BN
RSUs during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out below: B E BRI 2 X PR I A% 1 B8 A K PR il AR 19
BAEFBFEHINNAT

Number of
Shares
represented by
Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed RSUs at
Number of Shares represented by during during during during  December 31,
Name of grantee of RSU Position held with the Group RSUs at January 1, 2021 the year the year the year the year 2021
R2021%
12A318H0
R202151B1BHZRA ZRHRHER
SRAIURBENARALE  RAREEENEL ROEARZZRAHE RERRE  REREE  REREE  RERKY AR2RHER
Date of grant
RABH
Director of the Company
RNRES
Cui Longyu Executive Director, vice president 981,875  Jun8, 2018 - - - - 981,875
EET of our Group, director of human W018%F6A8A
resources of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
WTEE  REEFRHREN
NENNEREE
Senior management of the Group
rEEEHEER
Hu Zhonghua Director of development of 157,100 Jun8 2018 - - - - 157,100
il Guangzhou Jiumaojiu 2018%6 A8H
BINENRZEE
Huang Bobo " Former director of engineering of 1571,000  Jun8 2018 - (1,571,000) - - -
Y Guangzhou Jiumaojiu 2018F6F8A
HNEMNENTRGE
Other employees of the Group
rRERAMES
15 other employees of the Group 6109628  Jun8, 2018 - (194,893) - - 5914735
AEERMISLER 201856 A8H
Oct 12,2018
2018104128
Total 8,819,603 - (1,765,893) - - 7,053,710
it
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Note: 1,571,000 RSUs were vested at the discretion of the Board during the six months
ended June 30, 2021 before Mr. Huang Bobo ceased to be the director of
engineering of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu.

Details of movements in the RSUs under the RSU Scheme are also set out in

note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

On December 6, 2019, the Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted
by the then shareholders of the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide our Company with a means of incentivising any director
or any employee or officer of any member of our Group who in the sole
discretion of our Board has contributed or will contribute to our Group (the
"Eligible Persons”) and retaining any employee or officer of any member of
our Group (the “Employees”), and to encourage Employees to work towards
enhancing the value of our Company and promote the long-term growth of
our Company. The Share Option Scheme will link the value of our Company
with the interests of the Eligible Persons, enabling the Eligible Persons and
our Company to develop together and promoting our Company's corporate

culture.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, our Board shall be entitled
at any time within the period of ten years after the Adoption Date to grant
options to any Eligible Person as our Board may in its absolute discretion
select. As at December 31, 2021, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately seven years and eleven months. No offer shall be
made and no option shall be granted to any Eligible Persons in circumstances
prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Eligible Persons would
or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules or
by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of: (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval
of our Company'’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim
period; and (i) the deadline for our Company to publish its interim or annual
results announcement under the Listing Rules, and ending on the date of

actual publication of such results announcement.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
option schemes existing at such time of our Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 133,340,000 Shares, being 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date (the "Scheme Mandate Limit"), which represents
approximately 9.17% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and (as the case may be) such other share option
schemes of our Company will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. Our Company may renew the Scheme Mandate
Limit at any time subject to prior Shareholders’ approval but in any event,
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the renewal of the Scheme
Mandate Limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible Person under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
twelve-month period shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue, unless otherwise separately approved by Shareholders in general

meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates abstaining from voting.

An offer made to the Eligible Person is open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person for a period of 28 days from the date of the offer made. The Eligible
Persons shall accept the offer by returning the duly signed duplicate letter
clearly stating the number of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted,
with payment of HKD1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of an option

granted to them.

Subject to such terms and conditions as our Board may determine, there
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee

before the options can be exercised.

Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be exercised
by the grantee of the option at any time during the option period and in
accordance with the vesting schedule and other terms specified in the offer.
No option may be vested more than ten years after the date of the offer
made. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date.
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The exercise price shall be a price determined by our Board at our Board’s
absolute discretion and notified to an Eligible Person but in any event shall

be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheets on the date of the offer made;

(i) the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer made (provided that the new issue price
shall be used as the closing price for any business day falling within the
period before listing of the Shares where our Company has been listed

for less than five business days or at the date of the offer made); and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of the offer made.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out

in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

The table below sets out the details of share options granted and

outstanding during the period from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021
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under the Share Option Scheme: 1% -
Outstanding as at
Outstanding as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed December 31, Exercise price
Name of grantee January 1, 2021 Granted during the year during the year  during the year ~ during the year 2021 (HKD per Share)  Exercise period
2001
R0 E1818 128318 i
REARS HARITRE RERRH RERFE  REREE  RERKN WAGE  (BRRGER) GREE
Date of grant
RiiAH
Directors of the Company
ARAES
Guan Yihong - 200000 Oct 29,2021 - - 200,000 2024 0ct 29,2022 -
ERZ WIE0AVE Oct 28,2004

W0E10A098 -
2045108288
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Outstanding as at
Outstanding as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed December 31, Exercise price
Name of grantee January 1, 2021 Granted during the year during the year  during the year ~ during the year 2021 (HKD per Share)  Exercise period
R
R2021E1818 12831H Tk
ARARE BRI REARH RERGE  REREE  RERXY HATE  (BRERMER)  TEDH
Date of grant
RiLAH

Li Zhuoguang 222500 - 0ct28,200 - - - 122,500 1798 0ct28,2021 -
£ 0 00105288 0ct 27,203
W1E10A8R -
W3E10R27R

- 321200 Oct 29,2021 - - - 321,200 2024 0ct29,202-

110898 Oct 28, 2024
W0F10A98 -
204107287

Cui Longyu 222500 - 0ct28,200 - - - 122500 1798 Oct28,201-
EFF W20F10A 288 0ct 27,2003
W1E10A8E -
W3E10R277

- 299800 Oct 29,2021 - - - 299800 2024 0ct29,202-

110898 Oct 28, 2024
W0F10A98 -
204107287

He Chengyiao 289,200 - 0ct 28,200 - - - 289,200 1798 Oct28,2021 -
AR 020107288 0ct 27,203
W1E10A8A -
WBE10RVA

- 389800 Oct 29, 2021 - - - 389,800 2024 0ct29,202-

2214104298 Qct 28, 2004
W0E0AVE -
W4E10A28H

88 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRER AR AR



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

Outstanding as at
Outstanding as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed December 31, Exercise price
Name of grantee January 1, 2021 Granted during the year during the year  during the year ~ during the year 2021 (HKD per Share)  Exercise period
2001
RaonE1A18 128318 i@
ERALR BRI REREH RERFTE  REREE  REREN WAGR (BRRHER) GREE
Date of grant
RHAH
Employees of the Group
REES
Employees of the Group 960400 - 0ct 28,2020 - (125,700) 834,700 1798 Oct 28,2021 -
£EEE 00E10A288 0ct 27,203
015108288 -
ABENAVE
- 2547500 Qct 29, 2021 - - 2,547,500 2024 0ct 29,2022 -
W1%10A98 Oct 28,204
WNENAVE-
045107288
Total 1,694,600 3,758,300 - (125,700) 5,327,200
it

Note: The closing price of the Shares immediately before October 29, 2021 was
HKD19.74.

Subject to the vesting conditions, the share options granted on October 28,
2020 and October 29, 2021 under the Share Option Scheme are vested on
the date ending 12 months after October 28, 2020 and October 29, 2021,

respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, the number of Shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme was 5,327,200, representing 0.37% of the total number of Shares
in issue at that date, and the number of Shares in respect of which options
may further be granted under the Share Option Scheme was 128,012,800,

representing 8.81% of the total number of Shares in issue at that date.

Further information of the Share Option Scheme and the value of share
options granted during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in

note 25(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

M5+ BEE2021F10 A29 BRI BB £19.7478
ﬁ o

RIESEEBEME - 720206108 28H K%20214F10
R20 AMREEARERTEIE H e iERE - 702020
#£10H288 K20215E 10208+ @A Em

CELT R

HE2021F12A318 - REBEERETIERD
BERARITERERENRNEE /£5327,2000 -
EE BB BITROAEE0.37% - MIRERERE
SETE-SRENEREEENROEE &
128,012,800/% - {HE H 2 BITIRH B E8I8.81% °

BRETEIZE—PERRRBE2021F12 8
STHEFEEREERE BERRGEATHE
SRERMFE25(D) ©
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DIRECTORS 2

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the Latest HE2021F12A3ALEEREEHEMTH
Practicable Date were: B AREIEER

Name Position/Title

®E B

GUAN Yihong Executive Director, chief executive officer and chairman of the Board
ERE WITES  (TRERREFSEE

LI Zhuoguang Executive Director and chief financial officer

ES b HTESRERYBE

CUI'Longyu Executive Director

EFRF WITES

HE Chengxiao Executive Director

fRI AR WITES

DENG Tao Independent non-executive Director

iy WIFMITEE

TANG Zhihui (appointed on April 16, 2021) Independent non-executive Director

BRI (R2021 54 16 REERE) BIYERITES

ZHU Rui (appointed on April 16, 2021) Independent non-executive Director

K& (R2021F4 16 BEZT) BIYFRITESR

ZHONG Weibin (resigned on April 16, 2021) Independent non-executive Director

BEW (R2021F4 A 16 ABHE) BIFRITES

Ivan XU (resigned on April 16, 2021) Independent non-executive Director

R (0202154 A 16 HEHE) BIERITES

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Li Zhuoguang, Ms. Cui RIBEABERMA - =Nk E EFFLL
Longyu and Mr. Deng Tao will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves REEEEBRERFEERBEERERRE
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. RERE LEREE -

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the RExEAITHE  ARAEEREREEREDN
Company as at the Latest Practicable Date are set out in the chapter headed BREFEEAAFREZTREREEE | ZE -

“Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
our Company on December 6, 2019, except for Mr. He Chengxiao who has
entered into a service contract with our Company on July 2, 2020. We have
issued letters of appointment to each of our independent non-executive
Directors. The service contract with each of our executive Directors and the
letter of appointment with each of our independent non-executive Directors
are for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from December 6,
2019 except for Mr. He Chengxiao's service contract which is for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from July 2, 2020, and except for
Ms. Tang Zhihui's and Ms. Zhu Rui's letters of appointment which are for
an initial fixed term of three years commencing from April 16, 2021. The
service contracts and the letters of appointment are subject to termination in

accordance with their respective terms.

The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with our Articles of
Association and the applicable Listing Rules. None of our Directors proposed
for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with members of our Group
that is not determinable by our Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors (being Mr. Deng Tao, Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu
Rui), and the Company considers such Directors to be independent for the

year ended December 31, 2021.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions as
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this directors’
report, there was no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director and/or any of his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, and there was no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, subsisted at

the end of, or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2021.
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BRI EITESZ N 2019512 A BEA R A
I RIS E K - MRS A B 202057 A2
HEARRGZRBEELN - RMERZELIE
WITEEELETE - BMISHTESFTHORY
BRI REBIERTEENZERE 2019512
BeBi#est M ETTHAZF » MK
EHREAHBE 202057 A28 £ - VIFETE
THAE=F MESEZTRAELINEML
KAIE2021F4 A16 BT - WIFEETEHA=
FoRBEHNREZFHABRBEES BERT A
Ak o

IRIGE L RBEAMEREMAFER EWRR
TLRES BEXRBRBFASREZETECE
FHEAEEEMKE AR AEE AR —
FRRIEMBASNEE CEERBERIN) BR
BaK -

BRBVIFNITESHELE

RARICEESBIINTES (AIHELEE -
FEREBZtTRAEZL)BELETRANEIIG
BHEMFEBLUEERE  BEARTRBZSE
BEEREE2001FN2A3ALEEFEHAEBIA
+ o

EERERRRREARS - Z¥HE
AP AR

MEZE M HREMF20MEZENBEET TS R
AERGHRE(BERSH ] —HMEENEER
S8 ARRIKEFEMMBARBEITIES
K/ SEEMREERNE R E N (F
WEEEE) HERNERRS - THSEL
AN B B EL T AR B A ) ER A B 2 A A BR K
HAEMMB AR ET I REZE 202112 A31
HiIEFERSZABEMSETFENTMNEKR
RS BHEHEHL -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at December 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code were as follows:

(1) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERSRITHRAERKRS - HER®G
REEENERRKXE

M2021F 128318 - EFRARASHRITEA
BRARRISEE AR EE (TxREFH L
EAEBIEXVED) B - ABRERRD I EREE Pk
BIRBFES R EAEXVEBE7 ReD EE A
EARNARBRZAHER AR (BIERIEES
MEE KOO B BEGEEE R AR MR
R#KB) - REE S RIS RO E 3526785
ERMANRE AR - IRERETRZE
HMERAR LB RS RAR T -

(1) RARBEBRHOEFE

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held interest”
EEpE EEME FsRHEE RESLES LD
Guan Yihong? Interest in controlled corporation 590,945,000 40.66%

BRE EEGDEE R

Notes:

1. The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares interested divided
by the number of the Company's issued shares as at December 31, 2021.

2. GYH BVl is owned as to 1% voting shares by Mr. Guan Yihong and as to 99%
non-voting shares by GYH LIMITED. GYH LIMITED is wholly-owned by M.T.B., a
nominee shareholder appointed by J.P. Morgan (in its capacity as the trustee
of the Guan Family Trust). The Guan Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Mr. Guan Yihong as the settlor for the benefit of his family
members. Accordingly, GYH BVI is controlled as to 100% by Mr. Guan Yihong
and Mr. Guan Yihong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
GYH BVI.
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(2) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company:

Share options — physically settled unlisted equity derivatives
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(2) RARBEBERG TR :

FERE — BEYEEIF FTREITE
TA

Approximate

Number of percentage of

underlying shareholding

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held interestNote

Fifs REBQ

EEnA EEME RDEE B 7 L e

Guan Yihong Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
ERTE BEmEAA

Li Zhuoguang Beneficial owner 543,700 0.04%
ESSbiv BEmfEaA

Cui Longyu Beneficial owner 522,300 0.04%
EFRF BEmBEEA

He Chengxiao Beneficial owner 679,000 0.05%
fa] 3L BEmEAA

Details of the shares options granted by the Company are set out under
the section “Restricted Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme -

Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report.

Note: The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at December 31,
2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

ARABRBOBREFBHARAEZEETER
&[RRI B8 MBS E — B
Petent &) —&f o

M - B kR RIEBREAMERERG BB BRI
ARRIAR2021F12 A31 B 2 BETRM
E o

B EXATIEBEEI  R20219F12A8318 © #HE
EEFXNARRASRITEABRARA Ak H A
EE(ERRBFRBEBROIEXVE) KRG - 18
MR D KB E P A SR IEEE R ARE
FBHERBEGAEXVIBET R8D EBEMGER
AR TS SAR (BREREFFIHE
1EBIB BIE X RERB RIEEA R A
B) NERSNIREEFRIEEIE3521
BEFEMNEDMAMNERZSOAE - RBRE
FRBBITAE AR R R FTHRSIAE
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

FERREREMALRRG REBERSD
MR KRB

R2021F 128318 MEBAMFEM L TFAL
(WIHEERARNRBEITHALR) R kE
B P A BIRIEEHF KRGO EXVERE?
3D EMEX AA R B TR aC 8 AR RIR IR
FRHERGIE3B6GBTFENELMARNEZ
KR

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Number of Shares Company®
RARB RN
BRRERE,HE EEME REE BOEDH®
GYH BVIW Beneficial owner 590,945,000 (Long position) 40.66%
GYH BV EREAA (5F2)
Yang Sanyin® Interest of Spouse 591,145,000 (Long position) 40.67%
B=4R? =L Fn (&)
Citigroup Inc.® Interest in controlled corporation 14,948,327 (Long position) 1.03%
Citigroup Inc.® RiEHEE R (478)
14,682,129 (Short position) 1.01%
O%#)
Approved lending agent 61,572,126 (Long position) 4.24%
KerEERRE (&)

Notes:

1. GYH BVI is wholly-controlled by Mr. Guan Yihong. Such interests were also
disclosed as the interests of Mr. Guan Yihong in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”.

2. Ms. Yang Sanyin, the spouse of Mr. Guan Yihong, is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 591,145,000 Shares in which Mr. Guan Yihong is deemed to be
interested.

3. Citigroup Inc. is deemed under the SFO to be interested in an aggregate of

76,520,453 Shares interested by its subsidiaries and have a short position in
14,682,129 Shares through its subsidiaries.

4. The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares interested divided by
the number of the Company'’s issued shares as at December 31, 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to

be entered in the register referred to therein.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year ended December 31, 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Our Directors believe that the ability to attract, motivate and retain a
sufficient number of qualified employees including restaurant managers and
kitchen assistants is of significant importance to the long-term successful
development of our Group. The remuneration package for our employees
generally includes basic wages, variable wages, bonuses and other staff
benefits. We made contributions to mandatory employee benefit plans
(including pension, work-related injury benefits, maternity insurance,
medical and unemployment benefit plans and housing fund). We also
granted restricted stock units and share options as share incentives to
qualified directors and employees under the RSU Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme, respectively, details of both schemes are set out under the
section headed “Restricted Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme”
in this directors’ report, to motivate our employees. In addition, our brand
managers and their team members hold certain equity interests in the brands
they manage, details of which are set out in “Business — Organizational
Structure — Brand-specific Management” in the Prospectus. Our Group has
established a remuneration committee to review the policy and structure
of the remuneration for our Directors and senior management and make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of individual Directors
and senior management. In general, our Group determines the emolument
payable to our Directors based on each Director's time commitment and
responsibilities, salaries paid by comparable companies as well as the

employment conditions elsewhere in our Group.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee benefits of the Group are set out in note 5(b) to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set

out below:

Remuneration band
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BREBELEERTATINEXEE 151G SRE
BEREZ2021F12A31BIEFERAEEE S
ZEEFHME T

Number of senior management

FrEfEEE EREEREAY
Nil to RMB1,000,000 2

0E AR ¥1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 2
AR#1,000,001 7LE AR1,500,0007T

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 2
AR¥1,500,001 7TE AR #2,000,0007T

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 1

AR#2,000,001 7TE AR 2,500,0007T

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the Latest Practicable Date and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under

the Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Restricted Stock Unit Scheme
and Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report, at no time during the
year ended December 31, 2021 was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their respective associates to subscribe for securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any

equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Guan Yihong owned Machang Restaurant before its deregistration on
January 24, 2022. Machang Restaurant was not transferred to our Group as
Guangzhou Municipal Government did not allow any change of ownership
in the land users or occupiers on the land where Machang Restaurant was

located due to land-use planning.
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To avoid competing business, Mr. Guan Yihong, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu and
Machang Restaurant entered into the Cooperation Agreement, details of
which are disclosed in the section headed “Cooperation Agreement among
Mr. Guan Yihong, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu and Machang Restaurant” in this

directors’ report.

The Cooperation Agreement expired on December 31, 2021 and was not
renewed by the parties. Machang Restaurant was not accounted for or

consolidated in the consolidated accounts of our Group as a subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above and save for their respective interests in the Group,
none of the Directors and the controlling shareholders of the Company was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021 which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the

Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

We have received annual written confirmations from the controlling
shareholders of the Company, consisting of Mr. Guan Yihong and GYH BV,
of the compliance with the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition by
such controlling shareholders and their close associates. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance with the Deed of
Non-competition during the year ended December 31, 2021 based on the
information and confirmation provided by or obtained from the controlling
shareholders, and were satisfied that our controlling shareholders have duly

complied with the Deed of Non-competition.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors, auditors and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices.
Such provisions were in force throughout the year ended December 31, 2021

and are currently in force.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’

liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the Directors

during the year ended December 31, 2021.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING
AND THE TOP-UP PLACING

Our shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January
15, 2020. A total of 333,400,000 ordinary shares comprising the Global
Offering with nominal value of USD0.0000001 each of the Company were
issued at HKD6.60 per Share for a total of approximately HKD2,200 million.
The net proceeds raised by the Company from the Global Offering is
approximately HKD2,057.9 million. On February 7, 2020, the Joint Global
Coordinators exercised the Over-allotment Option granted by the Company
under the Global Offering in full and pursuant to which the Company issued
and allotted an aggregate of 50,010,000 additional Shares at HKD6.60 per
Share for a total of approximately HKD330 million. The net proceeds raised
by the Company from the issue of Shares pursuant to the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option in full is approximately HKD315 million. Details of the
Group's use of proceeds from the Global Offering and the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option in full as at March 15, 2022 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use of Proceeds — Use of

Proceeds from the Global Offering” in this annual report.

The Company entered into a placing and subscription agreement with GYH
BVI, three placing agents and certain other parties on July 16, 2020. The
Company successfully raised total net proceeds of approximately HKD829.5
million through the top-up placing of 70,000,000 Shares to not less than six
professional, institutional and/or individual investors at the placing price of
HKD11.99 per Share on July 30, 2020. Details of the Group's use of proceeds
from the top-up placing as at March 15, 2022 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use of Proceeds — Use of

Proceeds from the Subscription” in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We set out below a summary of the connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) conducted by the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2021.
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Connected Transaction
Acquisition of 3% Equity Interest in a Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiary

On September 5, 2021, Tai Er Investment, which is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the purchaser and Huzhou Jiajun as the vendor
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the vendor
agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to purchase 3% of the equity interest
in Tai Er Catering, which is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, (the "Acquisition”) at a total consideration of RMB300,000,000,
which was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties
with reference to the valuation conducted by an independent valuer using
market approach technique known as the guideline public company method.
The purchaser shall fully settle the consideration in cash in one lump sum

with the internal resources of the Group before October 10, 2021.

As all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Acquisition were
below 5%, the Acquisition did not constitute a notifiable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Since (i) Huzhou Jiajun was
a substantial shareholder of Tai Er Catering holding 15% of its equity interest
immediately before the Acquisition and hence was a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules; (ii) the Board has approved the Acquisition; and (iii) the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that the Acquisition is on normal
commercial terms and its terms are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the Acquisition constituted a
connected transaction with a connected person at the subsidiary level and is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt from
the circular, independent financial advice and independent shareholders’

approval requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, (i) Tai Er Catering is an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the vendor and Mr. He Chengxiao (an
executive Director), Mr. Fu Tianliang (the general manager and executive
director of Beijing Tai Er Catering Management Co, Ltd. Qt R A ZERE
AR AF]) and Shenzhen Maidian Jiumaojiu Catering Management Co.,
Ltd. CRYIEBNENEREEBR AR, which are subsidiaries of the
Company) and Mr. Zou Liang (the general manager and executive director
of Shanghai Er You Catering Management Co,, Ltd. (F/B - BZEHER AR
A |]) and the executive director of Nanjing Jiumaojiu Catering Management
Co, Ltd. (AMRNENEREE AR AT, both of which are subsidiaries
of the Company), who are limited partners of the vendor, are connected
persons of the Company; and (iii) save for Mr. He Chengxiao, Mr. Fu Tianliang
and Mr. Zou Liang, the partners of the vendor are third parties independent

of the Company and its.connected persons.
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Mr. He Chengxiao, an executive Director and a limited partner of Huzhou
Jiajun, was required to abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolutions
approving the Acquisition. Save for the above, to the best of knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors having made all reasonable enquiries,
no other Director has a material interest in the Acquisition and was required
to abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolutions approving the

Acquisition.

Following completion of the Acquisition, the Company’s equity interest in
Tai Er Catering increased from 85% to 88% and the Company will be able
to enjoy more benefits arising from the future growth and success of Tai
Er restaurants managed by Tai Er Catering. Prior to the Acquisition, the
15% minority equity interest in Tai Er Catering was ultimately owned by
employees of the Company who are all members of the brand team of Tai
Er for the sole purpose of motivating them to promote the success of Tai
Er, which in turn brought benefits to the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Company implements brand-specific management which
encourages brand-specific and bottom-up upgrade and innovations by
granting flexibility and incentives to the brand manager and competent staff
members under each brand for their devoted work. Typically, the Company
confers on the brand managers and their respective teams the opportunities
to invest in and own certain percentage of equity interests in the brand that
they manage. The feasibility and effectiveness of such brand management
strategy depends on the possibility to monetize minority equity interests
held by brand team members which binds their personal interests with
the interest of the Company together. The Directors considered that the
Acquisition, which provided an opportunity for the brand team of Tai Er to
monetize their minority equity interest, motivates the brand team of Tai
Er to devote themselves more in Tai Er's operation, and will in turn bring
benefits to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Based on the
foregoing, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
considered the terms of the Acquisition are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The completion of the Acquisition shall take place upon completion of the
change of the industrial and commercial registration procedure in respect of
the transfer of 3% equity interest in Tai Er Catering within 30 days from the
date of the equity transfer agreement. The completion of the Acquisition has
taken place and Tai Er Catering remains as an indirect non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the Company's announcements dated
September 5, 2021 and October 15, 2021.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

Mr. Guan Yihong, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, is our connected person upon the Listing and Machang Restaurant,
being an individual business entity established in the PRC which was owned
by Mr. Guan Yihong before its deregistration on January 24, 2022, was our
connected person upon the Listing and before its deregistration. Accordingly,
the following transactions, which continued after the Listing and ceased
on December 31, 2021, constituted continuing connected transactions of
our Group which are exempt from the independent shareholders” approval
requirement, but subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Cooperation Agreement among Mr. Guan Yihong, Guangzhou
Jiumaojiu and Machang Restaurant

Mr. Guan Yihong, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu and Machang Restaurant entered
into a cooperation agreement on March 31, 2014, which was subsequently
replaced by a new cooperation agreement dated December 9, 2019
(the "Cooperation Agreement”), pursuant to which, (i) Guangzhou
Jiumaojiu shall be responsible for the operation of Machang Restaurant;
(i) management fees (deductible from the operation fees as set out in (iii)
below) determined with reference to the total management expenses of
all restaurants of our Group and the revenue of Machang Restaurant as a
percentage of our total revenue shall be paid to Guangzhou Jiumaojiu by
Machang Restaurant; (iii) all profits before taxes of Machang Restaurant
during the cooperation period shall be paid to Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
as operation fees; and (iv) all losses before taxes (as the case may be) of
Machang Restaurant during the cooperation period shall be compensated by

Guangzhou Jiumaojiu.

Machang Restaurant was owned by Mr. Guan Yihong before its deregistration
on January 24, 2022 and had not been transferred to our Group as
Guangzhou Municipal Government did not allow any change of ownership
in the land users or occupiers on the land where Machang Restaurant was
located due to land-use planning. To avoid any competition with our Group's
business, Mr. Guan Yihong, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu and Machang Restaurant

entered into the Cooperation Agreement.
The Cooperation Agreement was effective from the Listing and expired on

December 31, 2021. It was not renewed by the parties. Please refer to the

section headed “"Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus for details.
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The annual caps for the transactions under the Cooperation Agreement
are RMB6,300,000, RMB6,800,000 and RMB7,500,000 for the years ended
December 31,2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.

The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with the
Cooperation Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2021 was
RMB153,000.

Framework Purchase Agreement with Machang Restaurant

Our Company (on behalf of itself and all its subsidiaries), Mr. Guan Yihong
and Machang Restaurant entered into a framework purchase agreement on
December 9, 2019 (the “Framework Purchase Agreement’), pursuant to
which Machang Restaurant purchased food ingredients and semi-processed
food from us. The term of the Framework Purchase Agreement commenced
on the Listing and ended on December 31, 2021. Under the Framework
Purchase Agreement, the sale price of our food ingredients and
semi-processed food shall be determined on a cost basis, including but
not limited to costs of food ingredients, food processing, transportation
and storage. In addition, the sale price to be paid by Machang Restaurant
shall not be lower than the price we charge other subsidiaries within our
Group, which also purchase food ingredients and semi-processed food
from our central kitchens. For each purchase agreement entered into under
the Framework Purchase Agreement, the actual costs were accounted on
a monthly basis and regularly reviewed by our independent non-executive

Directors to ensure that the pricing policy had been strictly followed.

Reasons for entering into the Framework Purchase Agreement are that
supply of food ingredients and semi-processed food from our central
kitchen to Machang Restaurant helps (i) ensure the consistency of quality,
appearance, smell, taste and shape of dishes to be served at each Jiu Mao
Jiu restaurant; and (ii) lower the procurement costs of Machang Restaurant
by taking advantage of the economies of scale of bulk procurement by our
Group, which in turn increases the operation fees payable to our Group
which is equivalent to Machang Restaurant’s profit before tax. Please refer to

the section headed “Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus for details.

The annual caps for the transactions under Framework Purchase Agreement
are RMB8,700,000, RMB8,900,000 and RMB9,200,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.
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The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with the
Framework Purchase Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2021 was
RMB1,350,000.

The Acquisition, and the transactions contemplated under the Cooperation
Agreement and the Framework Purchase Agreement also constitute related
party transactions of the Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in

note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions have been entered into: (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of the Group's business; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company

and the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmations from the auditor

The auditor of the Group was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised) "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules" issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his letter
to the Board containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as set out above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange which stated that:

a) nothing has come to the attention of the auditor that causes the auditor
to believe that the above continuing connected transactions have not

been approved by the Board;

b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the attention of the auditor that causes the
auditor to believe that the above continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies

of the Group;
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c) nothing has come to the attention of the auditor that causes the auditor
to believe that the above continuing connected transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing such transactions; and

d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the above continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe that the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above have exceeded the annual cap as set by

the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, save as disclosed above, no
related party transactions disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group during the

year under review.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Thursday, June 2, 2022. A notice convening the
AGM and all other relevant documents will be published and dispatched to

the Shareholders in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members will be closed from Monday, May 30,
2022 to Thursday, June 2, 2022, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Link
Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower,
28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, May 27, 2022.
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In order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the
proposed final dividend, the register of members will be closed from Friday,
June 10, 2022 to Tuesday, June 14, 2022, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of share will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive
the proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
shall ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1607,
16/F., Central Tower, 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, June 9, 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report from pages 50 to 70 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting matters with the
management. The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 have been
audited by KPMG who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the

forthcoming AGM to re-appoint KPMG as the auditor of the Company.

Save as otherwise stated, all references above to other sections, reports or

notes in this annual report form part of this directors’ report.

On behalf of the Board
GUAN Yihong

Chairman

March 23, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT:

To the shareholders of Jiumaojiu International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiumaojiu
International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 116 to 240, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code") together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman lIslands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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RREZSEERERMANERABERME
ARG EVBRRETHERTRA/EEN
B - ZHEHES M BRRETERBERR
BEZFR BEHMUNGEEYBRRLKE
S ZATHRAREZEREBREHRER

AEEENERAREEURYE  BERRENETRE

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

ERELGAMBFIRENTI0KFE 141 143 IS IHFE -

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page from 141 to 143.

The Key Audit Matter
BRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMESKTEEZSZEANSRX

Local economic conditions, competition from other restaurants
impact the performance of the Group's restaurants. Therefore,
there is a risk that the recoverable amount of right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment of certain
restaurants of the Group falls below the future net cash flows
to be generated from the operations of such restaurants or
from disposal of related right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment.
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Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in
restaurants included the following:
BMHEEREREEENRDE - BEREFHELRERN
EZREFOT

understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over the
impairment assessment;

W Rt A R ERT (AR R A BRI R E
i

evaluating the methodology adopted by management
to identify Impairment Indicators with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
SERTETERNSRE - SHAEEEBRREERM
RAMAE
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HE R E

HREEXEE %)

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

AEEENERREEUARYE  BERRENETRE

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page from 141 to 143.

EREGABIREMTI0RFE 141 B 143 IS IKE -

The Key Audit Matter
HRESRER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEELPEEZSBENSR

Each of the restaurants of the Group is identified as a cash
generating unit ("CGU"). Management reviews the performance
of individual restaurants at the end of each reporting period
to identify if there is any indicators of impairment of assets
("Impairment Indicators”). Such indicators include:
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- operating losses sustained in a specific period of time by
restaurants that have been in operation for more than
three months; or

- REEE-EAANERENSTHREXLLER X

- management plans to close a restaurant.

- EEEFEEE-REE -

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the methodology adopted by management in
its preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

EHRMABEREEIROBET - 2ERITEAEANH
FAEEREEGREERRRERARAERAN T
=

comparing the actual performance and results of selected
restaurants for the current year with forecasts adopted by
management in the prior year and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant variations
identified and considering if there was any indicator of
management bias;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

HREEXEE %)

AEEENERREEUARYE  BERRENWETRE

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

FRZEEBHREZMNTI0RFE 141 E143 HA)EFHE -

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page from 141 to 143.

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEFRTEEZSBENSRK

The recoverable amount of each of the restaurants with
Impairment Indicators is assessed at the end of each
reporting period. The recoverable amount of each CGU is
determined by management on a restaurant-by-restaurant
basis based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use calculation of the relevant CGU.
Based on the recoverable amounts derived from value-in-
use calculations, the Group recognised an accumulated
impairment loss of RMB32,662,000 as at 31 December 2021
and an impairment loss of RMB18,800,000 for the year then
ended.
BRERSHEEEBNAKRE AN SRS RARET
Hh e RREEABEMNAIROSERERERAAT
BEROEXAEFEERAReELELEREEZER
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A #18,800,0007T °

The value-in-use model used to assess the recoverable
amount of each CGU involves significant management
estimation and judgement, in particular in determining
the key assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue, food costs, staff costs and the
discount rate applied.

FHERIR S EE BRI E S R PERNEREE
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evaluating the appropriateness of key assumptions
adopted by management in the discounted cash flow
forecasts, including growth rate of revenue and major
costs to revenue ratio by comparing to recent financial
performance, and management’'s budgets for the
operations in 2022;

FRLLBCO P BRBEREBER2022FNEER
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3

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar listed
catering groups; and

EBRMABEEZERAOBET - 2REMBEULETE
REE - FHEREREEAFEANTRE &
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HE R E

HREEXEE %)

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

AEEENERREEUARYE  BERRENWETRE

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page from 141 to 143.

FRZEEBHREZMNTI0RFE 141 E143 HA)EFHE -

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEFRTEEZSBENSRK

We identified assessing potential impairment of right-
of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in
restaurants as a key audit matter due to the significance of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment to
the consolidated financial statements and the significant
degree of management judgement involved in forecasting
future cashflows, which are inherently uncertain and could
be subject to management bias.
HRNMERBEEEANRYE - BFERREHHFEMBHRER
WEZMHNURRKRBeREBA (FERENTHEN A
AREXIEEEBRANTE) DERENEEEHE -
BAETEERERAREEURDE  BEMRENE
FEREBN R —HRRERZEE -

performing a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
charge for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias.
ETHARRBRROBRESTAUZEEEHFEREERD
TEULREESFEENERERENIR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 BE RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

M A4S 32
:%/T\IZI (=kiny

for the year ended 31 December 2021 2 Z£2021F 12 A31 B IFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
liips: AR¥T T AREBTFT
Revenue A 3 4,179,704 2,714,830
Other revenue HAdg A 4 64,236 83,928
Raw materials and consumables used FiT R TR R e A1 5(e) (1,537,366) (1,045,784)
Staff costs 8 TR 5(b) (1,056,868) (747,850)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 5(e) (342,546) (243,044)
Other rentals and related expenses HiH& KA 5(e) (96,885) (49,810)
Depreciation and amortisation of Hith & EmiTE g iE
other assets 5(e) (159,142) (110,588)
Utilities expenses KEMAZ (132,352) (94,657)
Travelling and related expenses ik RABRE R (23,624) (16,693)
Listing expenses il 53 5(e) - (7,344)
Advertising and promotion expenses & R E RS (47,722) (21,399)
Other expenses HmfAx 5(d) (259,814) (194,184)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FEARERE RN EIRER(EE) 13 984 (8,242)
Other net incormne/(losses) HiR A /(F518) F58 5(c) 11,422 (28,175)
Finance costs BB R 5(a) (75,307) (67,418)
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y BEREBEBAREREEE
equipment and right-of-use assets RIEBE 5(e) (18,800) (23,411)
Interest income on subscription monies EEARRBE ([EXAREE]D
received from initial public offering ("IPO")  WEXEIRHE FIEA)F B A 5(e) - 36,449
Profit before taxation R Bt AT 2 5 505,920 176,608
Income tax FTig%t 6 (133,767) (38,602)
Profit for the year FERA 372,153 138,006
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS

SFRBRER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 £ 2021F12 31 B IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN BEZIR)

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mat AR¥T T AREBTFT
Attributable to: BTN :

Equity shareholders of the Company AN BT R 339,936 124,063
Non-controlling interests FEPEIRE 32,217 13,943
Profit for the year FEERF 372,153 138,006

Earnings per share BRER 9
Basic B 0.23 0.09
Diluted e 0.23 0.09

The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements. Details

of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to

the profit for the year are set out in note 26(d).

FI125BEEFE 240 B NKI B AT BRI —
By o mh A R I E A AN 2 R 2R AR BUK 1+ IR

BHFBEHNME26) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GermkHEMEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 2 Z£2021F 12 A31 B IFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTT
Profit for the year FERN 372,153 138,006
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEE KGR
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: BT EEH S EEEmmEER -
Equity investments at fair value through other BATEFAEMEERGETER
comprehensive income - net movement RiERE — AT ERBEEEFE
in fair value reserve (non-recycling) (e #[E) 132,771 3,902
Items that may be reclassified subsequently R eE@r 7 B2 BmrEE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of HE R B A A
financial statements of operations outside BB HRER
the mainland China ME 3 = (79,770) (136,050)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEZEKE 53,001 (132,148)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHERZERE 425,154 5,858
Attributable to: BT :
Equity shareholders of the Company PN 535 392,937 (8,085)
Non-controlling interests JEIERR R 2R 32,217 13,943
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXERSEE 425,154 5,858
The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements. F125BEE240E MM B AT BTN —
o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e R

as at 31 December 2021 722021412 A31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN E#ZIR)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
MtaE AR®T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB k& 10 572,178 445,031
Right-of-use assets EREEE 10 1,444,128 1,215,952
Intangible assets mLEE 11 18,389 11,914
Interests in associates REE A B = 13 13,085 3,401
Other non-current financial assets HtIERBemEE 14 320,602 68,338
Deferred tax assets IR & B 24(b) 82,219 86,753
Rental deposits HEHRe 75,599 60,274
Other non-current assets HmIERBEE 15 49,466 53,078
2,575,666 1,944,741
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 70,750 51,094
Trade and other receivables B R EAMEWFIE 17 408,958 293,274
Restricted bank deposits ZRHRITER 18(a) 1,792 127
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEFEY 18(a) 1,342,090 1,843,903
Deposits with banks with original maturity — RE|H} A &R1E =8 A MIRTTF R
date over three months 18(a) 735,840 673,312
2,559,430 2,861,710
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E A ETFRIE 19 369,730 347,560
Contract liabilities GREE 20 5,871 4,065
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 390,685 317,205
Bank loans HRITER 23 - 42,950
Current taxation BIVERR T8 24(a) 38,259 37,165
804,545 748,945
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,754,885 2,112,765
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTESAE 4,330,551 4,057,506
The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements. FID5BEFUOBENWNTEKR AT B SRR —
o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BN R

as at 31 December 2021 FA2021512 A31H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #ZIR)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mat AR®T ARBEFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 1,114,106 966,977
Provisions B 22 31,645 27,050
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE 24(b) 47,204 3,077
1,192,955 997,104
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,137,596 3,060,402
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital &N 26(a) 1 1
Reserves Ee) 26(c) 3,082,573 3,016,554
Total equity attributable to equity BATERRREGERERE
shareholders of the Company 3,082,574 3,016,555
Non-controlling interests FEERR 55,022 43,847
TOTAL EQUITY FEZAREE 3,137,596 3,060,402
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March LEEGHN2022F3 A23 BiLE RIEEEMS -
2022.
GUAN Yihong Li Zhuoguang
ERE E P
Chairman Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
FE HITEZEREENBE
The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements. F125BEF2H40EMMFBR AT BIRFTN —
B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY:
efEmBER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2021F 12 A31 B IEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA REZIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RLARERREE
Share- Fair value
based reserve Non-
Share Share CGapital ~ payments  Statutory  Exchange (non- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium eserve Teserve Teserve reserve  recycling) profits Total interests equity
AR
REUN ATERE FEk

BE BRbEE  AREE  NRBE  teRE  EXRR (TUER)  REEH it B BEs

Note RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBO00O  RMBO0O0  RMB0O0  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO000  RMBO00O

M ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTL ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
note 263 note 26(c)i)  note 26(c)i)  note 26(c)(ii) note 26(c)iv)  note 26(c)(y)  note 26(c)(vi)
Wiitose) Mitze0m  Metacn Hitmom WiEzon K600 s

Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020%1B1B AL E 1 - - 2,783 56,144 (291) - 55451 133,088 37588 170676
Changes in equity for 2020; R2020FHERED
Profit for the year EERT - - - - - - - 14083 124063 1398 138006
Other comprehensive income EhrEha - - - - - (136050) 3902 - - )
Total comprehensive income SAbELE - - - - - (136050) 3902 124063 (8085) 13943 5,858
Equity settled share-based R BERHE

transactions 525 5 - - - 7,40 - - - - 7,40 - 740
Capital njection from non-controling ~ HB AR HERER 1B

interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - -+ -+
Issuance of ordinary shares upon ~~ NERDFEEREH

PO and over-allotment, net of RERENLER

issuance coss (MREARE) %99 - - - - - - 213599 - 21399
Issuance of ordinary shares upon ARG B1TEBR

subscription, net of issuance costs  (HIRE{TAE) S IREN - - - - - - 748609 - T8

Dividends approved and paid to BHEREENTHBAR
non-controlling interest holders FARERRAANRE

in a subsidiary

. . B ) B . B, . - 730 050

Appropriation to statutory reserve AR ETEE 26(cl) - - - - 38590 - - (3850) - - -
Acquisition of subsiciaries hEnBA - - - - - - - - - 209 209
Acquisition of non-controlling WEsaRER

interests - - - - - - - (248) (248) (2.287) (2539)
Disposal of interests in subsidiary Y EEHEHIERNLE

without a change in control WELRELEEE 260)() - - 2 - - - - - 2 8 10
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020512831 BILES 1 2884558 2 29023 94,734 (136,341) 3902 140676 3016555 43847 3060402

*  The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000. *  BETEIHARE1,0007T °
The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements. FI2SEEF 240 MM B AT BHREA —
il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EERBER
for the year ended 31 December 2021 £ 202112 A31HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA R #5I7)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AATARERFELN
Share- Fair value
based reserve Non-
Share Share Capital ~ payments  Statutory  Exchange (non- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) profits Total interests equity
NRHE
ERM AVERE
ks RGEE ARG (REE  iERE  EXRE (TUER) REER B FeRER 48R
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Mt AR¥Tn ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARTR ARWTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
note 26(3)  note 26(ci)  note 26(c)fj) note 26(c)(ii) note 26(c)iv)  note 26(c)(y) note 26(c)(vi)
Hiitose) Miizeon Wit Himom RiEzon  HEe0n Hiso)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020F128318 R
and 1 January 2021 WNF1A1BRER 1 2884558 2 2903 %74 (136341) 3902 140676 3016555 43847 3,060,402
Changes in equity for 2021: RANENERRE
Profit for the year FRAEF - - - - - - - 339936 33993 AT 37N
Other comprehensive income Et2EkE - - - - - (197700 137N - 53,001 - 53,001
Total comprehensive income 2ENGRER - - - = - (797700 13771 339936 392937 32217 425154
Equity settled share-based R BERRE
transactions 525 5 - - - 8274 - - - - 8274 - 8274
Dividends declared in respect BEEENEERRE
of the previous years 26(d) - (48,734) - - - - - - (48,734) - (48,734)
Dividends approved and paid to B EREEA THBAR
non-controling interest holders FEREREEANRE
in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (7,500) (7,500)
Appropriation to statutory reserve AR FTEEE 8(0)01) - - - - 41839 - - (47839) = = =
Acquisition of non-controlling Wi hEs
interests 26(c)vi) - - - - - - - (286458)  (286,458) (13,542)  (300,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R0 E12831B0ER 1283584 23297 4573 (16111) 136673 146315 3082574 55022 3,137,5%
The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements. FI15BEE 240 BB A B MwEA —
B e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mERERNER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2021F 12 A31 B IEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R#ZI7)

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mat AR¥T T ARBTFT
Operating activities BEE
Cash generated from operations KEMFIRE 18(b) 989,604 582,532
Income tax paid B ETS R 24(a) (133,426) (48,028)
Interest income on subscription monies EEPNNGE SN S oE N
received from IPO ORI NON - 36,449
Net cash generated from RETHRABRSTFE
operating activities 856,178 570,953
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchases of property, plant BEME  BELRBAR
and equipment, and right-of-use assets EREEENNK (336,273) (280,459)
Payment for purchases of intangible assets B B B & EM R (6,309) (870)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREBEUR
and equipment, and right-of-use assets FREEENMESIIER 9,114 -
Payment for investment AR - (46,621)
Interest received 2 YF B 14,664 27415
Payment for interests in associates BN WL O] (8,700) (3,500)
Advances to associates M E N AR E R (24,900) (51,520)
Repayment from associates Bt A RIER 4,900 -
Payment for deposits with banks with JREIEA A &80 = 18 A e ERT
original maturity date over three months TR (735,840) (1,586,752)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks with RSP EBRE=RAN
original maturity date over three months RITIFER 673,312 913,440
Payment for purchases of other BEAMIERSEMEENNR
non-current financial assets (116,982) (50,000)
Proceeds from disposal of HEHEMIERBDEREED
other non-current financial assets Frig k18 40,000 -
Restoration costs paid [RENECRID®IN (2,370) (8,194)
Settlement of consideration TR R RE
payable for acquisition 12(b) (1,049) -
Net cash acquired through acquisition of FRWENBARESNES
subsidiaries, net of cash paid FE KRENRS 12(b) = 3,030
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFARSFRE (490,433) (1,084,031)

The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

,w'_l_\AIE,ﬁ/JlLE%%

for the year ended 31 December 2021 2 Z£2021F 12 A31 B IFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mat AR¥T T ARBTFT
Financing activities RMEEE
Issuance of shares upon IPO and RERAFEE RBRERER
over-allotment, net of issuance costs paid BFITRAD (FNBRE AT BITRA) - 2,135,929
Issuance of shares upon subscription, RREBIEEITRG
net of issuance costs paid (FOBREFEETTRCAS) - 748,629
Proceeds from bank loans RITERMERIEA 18(c) - 130,483
Repayment of bank loans BERRITER 18(c) (42,950) (307,996)
Advances from a related party R E BB 18(c) - 50,000
Repayment on advances from a related party {Ei% 3 B B 5 B3R 18(c) - (50,000)
Payment of capital element and interest HEBEEAREHS
element of lease liabilities FEE DR 18(c) (387,371) (278,097)
Interest of bank loans paid BEfHIRITTERFE 18(c) (537) (4,093)
Other finance charges paid EfEMEEER 18(c) - (216)
Capital injection from non-controlling D EISEE R g S E
interests of subsidiaries - —*
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling  WEMT B A B FEE R IT R
interests of subsidiaries 18(c) (301,500) (1,035)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders BRARR TR S
of the Company (48,734) (50,625)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B 3EERERRE ARNRKRE
interests holders (7,500) (7,500)
Proceeds from disposal of interests in WEmBHIEHIEZ B L E
subsidiary without a change in control BB A Fl R BB KA - 10
Net cash (used in)/generated from RVEEE) (FTR),/ Fris
financing activities REFHE (788,592) 2,365,489
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREFEBYHF
cash equivalents CRiA),/ 380 (422,847) 1,852,411
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M AR SRR EEY 18(a) 1,843,903 127,170
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN [ 3R 5 B Y s 2 (78,966) (135,678)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December  R12A31BHIRE KIREEEY 18(a) 1,342,090 1,843,903
* - The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000. *  H#Ee AR#1,0007T °

The notes on pages 125 to 240 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 % &% B95h

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
which collective term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period reflected in

these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as

the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associates.

[tem included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance
of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the entity
(the “Functional Currency”). The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand except for earnings
per share information. The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

(FVPL) are stated at their fair value as explained in note 1(f).

1

e R ERRME

* LA RHEESIF)
EEETTHE

a) BRER

AHBHRERDIREEREH LRSS
(THERESHERIBES ) BHOMEE
PR BIRR B 15 5 22 A ([ BER B 5 3R 5 8
Al]) (RHHE R 2 P E M A 18 B B PR B %
i&i‘/‘ﬁtﬁu BEEet A RRE) FER
RE R R BB R AR B R E R
B AWBRRTBETEABARIMA
AEFEF ETRAMBERRERE - A
SEMRANESEAERBELT -

FERet AR BHE TARAS

= R s AR IR AT A A T ET RASHEET
BB B A5 R 2ER) o FER AL B AREMNE
(B A &K IE FE L BT R] M A B 5T RO ZE RIFT
SIME R AN ER S BERE
ERAFFREANRYE - BEERSHTIR
FFEE1(0)

g RRERELE
HE2021F 1231 BIEFENEGE PR
KBEREARARNMEMBAR (KB ARE
E ) RAREERE A QTR
AEESEENTERRAIEENER )
FRAZERMEZEEHABNEESER

EANKEEENER ([DeE8 )5t
2 -UBEBREUAREZHR - BESEY
MERAZGEELZ TR - EERAT
BRI  BEMBREMRAHTER
ERBELRAEE  HERAFEFTAHMD
2EHREFTENSREERIZATFERA
BErNemEEREATEYE - mk=E
(Rt o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the

IASB to this financial statements for the current accounting period:

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendment to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest

rate benchmark reform — phase 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Other than the amendment to IFRS 16, the Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended IFRSs are

discussed below:

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (2021 amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in IFRS 16 such
that as lessee it was not required to assess whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease
modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met (see note 1(i)). One of
these conditions requires the reduction in lease payments affect only
payments originally due on or before a specified time limit. The 2021

amendment extends this time limit from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment in this financial year.

There is no impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2021.

Amendment to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest
rate benchmark reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting for
changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii)
discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest rate benchmark is
replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform of
interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The amendments do not have
an impact on this financial statements as the Group does not have
contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject
to the IBOR reform.

1

BEESHBE #)

(0 EFBERE® (&)

BB g E ERIF 165% 2 ERT RS -
AR B R AR AN & ST HIR R &
MEFER LR - RAKETERIS B
REEMFZEN T XA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i
i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

1
(d)

B BWKRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)

are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition

of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i
i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

B BWKRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,

including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate that forms part of the
Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment losses relating to the investment (see note
1()(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method, together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in

the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Associates (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 1(f).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries and associates, are set out below.

All investments in equity instruments must be measured at fair value.
However, in limited circumstances, cost may be an appropriate estimate
of fair value. That may be the case if insufficient more recent information
is available to measure fair value, or if there is a wide range of possible
fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair

value within that range.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 27(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for equity investments, depending on their

classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(f)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other investments in equity securities (continued)

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition
of the investment the Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(t)(iii).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(j)(ii). No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item

and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold Improvement Over the shorter of the lease term

and 5 years
Kitchen equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures and 5 years

other equipment
Freehold land Not depreciated as the freehold land
has unlimited useful life

Buildings situated on Over their estimated useful life,
freehold land being no more than 25 years after
the date of acquisition

Leasehold land Depreciated over the unexpired

term of lease

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:
- Software 5 years
- Brand name 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and

to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily apartments and electronic devices. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised are

recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of
the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes
1(g) and 1()(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced

to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope
of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not originally provided
for in the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 468
of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in consideration as negative
variable lease payments in profit or loss in the period in which the event

or condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BMBIHRMEE

i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

1
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current portion

of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present value of

contractual payments that are due to be settled within twelve months

after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and presents lease liabilities

separately in the statement of financial position.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including

cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables);

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in equity
securities measured at FVPL and equity securities designated at

FVOCI (non-recycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following

discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum: contractual period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result

from possible default events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from

all possible default events over the expected lives of the items

to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general

economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since

initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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=
=)

AR MR
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1
(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 30 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial

instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the

Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on
either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past

due status-and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

1 BEESTTHE®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve

(recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(t)(iv) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross

carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

() FEFEREERE#E)

(i)

REEMTANEEER(#)
=B A W15 0 (&)

EHEEBENS RS AHEMT
E URMERIAGERRBE VG
HRAKRNES  BHEEHEDRE
M EM ZE BN IB SRR ER AL
BiE - ARBEYHME SR T ARERR
BERESEE  TEBEBRRERY
HEEEETARERAE  HEZQFE
ArARMEEKE (ATER) S ENE
BEFRERN  HEBEREREM
2HWBEER RN A FERE (7] #
[l) K&t -

FATEFERA B

B (0 (V) ERZ MBI ATIER
TRMEEZRENEFE  BEZD
BEEHRERERE  EHERT
MEBWATIERNCRE EZHHKAN
(R mEREREYE) FHHE -

RERERY  AEESFESRE
ETEHBREERE - E¥E—HNK
ZHRETMEEMFARAKRRERER
BMAFZEZ FHE - eREENDH
REERE -

ZE - —FF W ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
=)

AR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1 BEESTTHE®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the

following observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the

period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets;
- intangible assets;

- investments in associates; and

- investments in a subsidiary in the Company’s statement of

financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting period whether

or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a

cash-generating unit).
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AR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the periods

in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see note 1()(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year

to which the interim period relates.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in

the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is

recognised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

1
(k)

(

B BWKRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a
net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net

basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective interest

method (see note 1(t)).

m) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised before the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount

is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(j)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit

losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 1()(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.
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1 BEESTTHE®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in a defined contribution basic pension insurance in the
social insurance system established and managed by government
organisations. The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the defined contribution basic pension
insurance. There are no forfeited contributions for the defined
contribution basic pension insurance in the PRC social insurance
system as the contributions are fully vested to the employees upon

payment to the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately. There are no forfeited contributions for the the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes as the contributions are fully

vested to the employees upon payment to the scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as part of the cost of assets or charged to profit or loss

as the related services are rendered by the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)
BEESTBUR (&)
(q EERH (&)

(i) ARBDAER ZF

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of shares or share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a share-based payments reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the income approach model, in
case of shares granted, and binomial option pricing model, in
case of share options granted, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the shares/options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares/options, the total estimated
fair value of the shares/options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the shares/options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares/options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of shares/options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payments reserve). The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payments reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

(iii
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
each reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss

or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale

of goods and the provision of services.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition are

as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group principally generates revenue from restaurant
operations, delivery business, sales of specialities and franchise
business. Revenue excludes value added tax and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

For restaurant operations and delivery business for which the
control of services is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the related services have been rendered to

customers.

Revenue from the sales of specialities for which the control of
goods is transferred at a point in time, is recognised when the

goods are delivered and title have passed.

For initial franchise fee arising from the franchise business, revenue

is recognised over time during the franchise period.

(i) Management and service fee income

Management and service fee income is recognised when related

services are rendered.

(iii) Dividends

=

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

1
(t)

BEESHBE 2
PN =1 PN

& BT B 8 E B MR AR A U A
DERBA -

EEMIMBOEFREZASEBHAE
ERNAERESR (TRERRFE=0%K
BHeER) BEERER - WA T LR
WATBREEBER - YEHNBREREST
e

S ESS VIS EXON = P2 S8
BT

() REBEFSHYHEA

AEEETENRAREERRLE I
BXER BFEHERMNBARR - KA
TEERER  TEHNREAE S
e

PR IZEG RN ARG EENER
RERIIBEXRBME - WARBER
REARRIRE R RER o

KEHERE (ERZEFENE —KH
HER) N ARINEY RN ER
R HER

HRNMEEBREENVRMNESE - K
ATEINERER A H) — B BE R RERR ©
(il EERREEKRA
EENREE W ARIRE A 8RS
(i) BRE

FEETIRE 2 BB WA TE BRER M BUR
B2 IR RN ML B RERR

ZE - —FF W ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 151
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mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1
(t)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue and other income (continued)
(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset

to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

(v) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the

asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of each reporting period.

Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Statement of financial position items, are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in

the exchange reserve.

Research and development expenses

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities or that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the nature
of the Group's research and development activities, the criteria for the
recognition of such costs as an asset are generally not met until late in
the development stage of the project when the remaining development
costs are immaterial. Hence both research costs and development costs
are generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they are

incurred.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EESTTEE %)

(x) Related parties (continued) (x) BEBER (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (b) MG THEREM - Bl —fE L
applies: NEE B R
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group () ZEREAEEER -—SBZKE
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow 2E (SRR WBARKE
subsidiary is related to the others). RH B AR IR B RAEE) ©
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or iy —FAERAS—ERZBEAANK
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which GEAT (KB —EEARKE A
the other entity is a member). ZEEETKE QAR ZEE ARk
ENWNEIDI
(iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (iy MAEBARA-—F=F26%A
7 o
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy " HAEBAFE=-FTEBZEER
entity is an associate of the third entity. A ME—BERAZE=FERZ

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit ) ZEBDAANSEESEASEEHR
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the B2 B ptiE B8 M a3 2 B
Group. ‘NS .

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZEBEX ()T A TESskH
identified in (a). A

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (i) R@OMBIATHZERBERK
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the FEBNLBZER (IZEE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). RNANEEEBABZ— -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (vii) ZEBIEMBEE ZEAKER
provides key management personnel services to the Group or AIAASERAEEEGNEREE
to the Group's parent. 2ERBABR -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who BRIATZEBRREXNENIEEEERE
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their BRI HZATHETRESEZA
dealings with the entity. TREZHRBKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance

of, the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 25 and 27 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of restricted stock units/share
options granted and financial instruments. Other significant sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to assess whether there is any indication that
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion of
whether an indication of impairment exists and revised estimates of

recoverable amounts, which would affect profit or loss in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

2

(b)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are material changes from previous

estimates.

Provision for restoration costs

As explained in note 22, the Group makes provision for restoration
costs based on the best estimate of the expected costs to be incurred
upon expiry of the respective rental agreements, which are subject to
uncertainty and might differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase

or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future periods.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 1(i), the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group's operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group's control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term would
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised

in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARSER®E
(a) Revenue (@) WA
The principal activities of the Group are restaurant operations, delivery AEENFEEBRALEER  RHHNE
business and sales of specialities. X RIBERE -
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WADE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major RIERBEBIDHETAOWA
service lines is as follows: DM
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers BRI HE RS ZE RSB 1555

within the scope of IFRS 15: HEANEFSHWA :
Restaurant operations B 3,524,424 2,213,459
Delivery business INE T 621,506 473,792
Sales of specialities IHERE 15,855 3,070
Others HAh 17,919 24,509

4,179,704 2,714,830
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition  ¥ZUR A 52 6 48 5
— Point in time — X — (A2 4,179,261 2,714,081
— Over time (note) — R—EREFEA (M) 443 749
4,179,704 2,714,830
Note: Initial franchise fee was recognised as revenue over time during the MI5E - #04A 00 B2 25 54 00 BR EA A — ER R ) I e
franchise period. RAWA
No revenue from individual customer contributing over 10% of total 15 22 B 1) R R RO A £ 2021 F K 2020 4F
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and NAJNBILEFEHAREENERAR
2020. BB 10% °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

B BWKRME

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising

from contracts in existence at the reporting date

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under
the Group's existing contracts is RMB4,751,000 (31 December
2020: RMB2,848,000). This amount represents the customer
loyalty scheme and revenue of initial franchise fee expected to
be recognised in the future from franchise contracts entered into
by the franchisees with the Group. The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future over the remaining contract period,

which is expected to occur over the next 12 to 36 months.

(b) Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by restaurant brands. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has

presented the following reportable segments.

Jiu Mao Jiu: this segment operates restaurants and delivery business

offering family-oriented food under Jiu Mao Jiu brand.

Tai Er: this segment operates restaurants featuring Chinese

sauerkraut fish and Sichuan cuisine under Tai Er brand.

Others: this segment includes restaurants operating in other brands
such as Double Eggs, Song, Uncle Chef and Lai Mei Li, as well as

franchise business of Double Eggs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interests in associates, other
non-current financial assets, deferred tax assets and other head
office or corporate assets. Segment liabilities include lease liabilities,
provisions, trade and other payables and contract liabilities
attributable to the restaurant operations activities of the individual

segments and bank borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those

segments.

“Non-GAAP

i.e. revenue deducting (i) raw materials and

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
Operating Profit”,
consumables used, (i) staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use
assets, (iv) other rentals and related expenses, (v) depreciation
and amortisation of other assets, (vi) utilities expenses and (vii)

transportation and related expenses under “other expenses”.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
Non-GAAP Operating Profit, management is provided with
segment information concerning inter segment sales, expense
from borrowings managed directly by the segments, net gains/
(losses) on restaurants closures, impairment losses and expenses for

opening new restaurants used by the segments in their operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) DEfEE - -EEREE(E)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided RELE2021F K%2020F12 A31BIEF
to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes E#/EEREFESBREAMASE
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for EsaETHREEABRENTEER
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out below. AERE D AR E RIS AT -

JiuMao Jiu Tai Er Others Total
RER e Eff Eh
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
2W01E WNE W15 W05 W15 W05 W15 W00
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB1000
ARETR  ARETT ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETH  ARETR  ARETR
Reportable segment revenue ~ THESBUA
Revenue from extemal customers  RESMIBPHIA 760,462 715513 3292184 1961811 127,058 7506 4179704 2714830
Reportable segment profit/(loss)  THEIBER /()

(Non-GAAP Operating Profit) (A& A LEFE) 70,707 3265 684,683 316990 (1,184) (147 754,206 348165
Finance costs BERL (20,260) (27,621) (51,258) (38.940) (3,789) (857) (75,307) (67,418)
Gains/(losses) on restaurants RERL UG /(BB 58

closures, net 201 (21,754) (5,288) (4836) 524 808 (4,563) (25,782)
Impairment losses of property, 0% BRREER

plant and equipment and FREEERERR

right-of-use assets (11,092) (10409) (4,941) (9,569) (2,767) (3437) (18,800) (2341)
Expenses for opening RANEEZEY

new restaurants (968) (1427) (24123) (32124) (8,768) (993) (33,859) (34544)
Reportable segment assets THEITEE 659,268 513 258370 1741373 202,353 8§51 3389991 2076117
Reportable segment liabilities TREIDER 359,786 288,945 2,381,107 1561,147 260,809 110,945 3,001,702 1961037
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mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDEIRE (&)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued) (b) 7 EBHE (&)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets (i) AIREDHIER EEREEBZ
and liabilities iR
2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBETT

Profit R Al
Reportable segment profit Al ¥ 5 565 A

(Non-GAAP Operating Profit) (FEAREFTERKEFHE) 754,206 348,165
Other revenue H A 64,236 83,928
Travelling and related expenses Z Rk R ABRAR (23,624) (16,693)
Listing expenses FrRX = (7,344)
Advertising and promotion expenses B RERRY (47,722) (21,399)
Other expenses (other than “Transportation — E b F X ([E& & ABRER S | BRIM)

and related expenses”) (159,475) (119,252)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FEEBE AR 25 F (EE) 984 (8,242)
Other net income/(losses) Hilas S (F518) F58 11,422 (28,175)
Finance costs AE KA (75,307) (67,418)
Impairment losses of property, plant and YEE -~ BB LA K

equipment and right-of-use assets FRAEEERBERE (18,800) (23,411)
Interest income on subscription monies EREPNGE:E30E)EGY

received from IPO e ok UESC I ON - 36,449
Consolidated profit before taxation FAEBRBIAR A 505,920 176,608
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

3 WARDEHRE @)

b) 7 &R E (&)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets EoEEm  BEREBEZ
and liabilities (continued) R ()
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Assets 5=
Reportable segment assets AmEDHEE 3,389,991 2,076,117
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 B fA FE W SR I8 2 1 68 (1,242,530) (594,759)
2,147,461 1,481,358
Interests in associates B D TR RS 13,085 3,401
Other non-current financial assets HtnEmsemiE 320,602 68,338
Deferred tax assets T IEE B 82,219 86,753
Unallocated head office and corporate assets RO 7 42 E iR R P EE 2,571,729 3,166,601
Consolidated total assets REBERE 5,135,096 4,806,451
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities AESEEE 3,001,702 1,961,037
Elimination of inter-segment payables 5350 PRl e < R I8 2 Hf 8 (1,242,530) (594,759)
1,759,172 1,366,278
Current taxation BIHEARS 18 38,259 37,165
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRTEEE 47,204 3,077
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities RO BZ@RERZE N CEEE 152,865 339,529
Consolidated total liabilities FeEMBaRE 1,997,500 1,746,049
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDEIRE (&)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued) (b) DR (&)
(iii) Geographic information (i) HEE R
Analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers as well as A REBBIBI0%HWA K IEREE
analysis of the Group's carrying amount of non-current assets by ERBRMAFEH - W EZHE T
geographical market has not been presented as over 90% of the HENAEBREIINTEZHRAZ
Group's revenue and non-current assets are generated and located DA - ARAREERSEEREE
in the PRC. s i
4 OTHER REVENUE 4 HWA
2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Interest income on: AT HIENFSBA

- bank deposits — RITFER 4,699 28,202

- rental deposits —HEHS 1,774 2,496

- others — Hi 7,686 1,993

14,159 32,691

Income from value-added tax super RE AR MR R E

deduction and exemption (note (i) FUE A (B EEG)) 43,461 48,172
Government grants (note (ii)) AT e B (B 5 Gii)) 6,616 3,065
64,236 83,928

Notes: KT -

(i) Income from value-added tax super deduction and exemption represented () PRBEEEBIET R R 2 % 8 WA R Bk
the super deduction and exemption on value-added tax granted by the TR PR E R INEHE R R 2 e -
government authorities in the PRC.

(i)  Government grants mainly represented unconditional cash awards granted (i) BUNHEIE 2+ BIBRAT R T 60 & i

by the government authorities in the PRC. Rg HEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BR¥LAEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRFLAT SR DR (FEA) LTS IHER S
o
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

(a) Finance costs (a) AEHK
Interest on bank loans (note 18(c)) |ITEFHME (FIFE18(c) 537 4,093
Interest on lease liabilities (note 18(c)) HEAEFE (H3E18(0) 73,402 61,716
Interest on provisions (note 22) BEF S (H322) 1,368 1,393
Other finance charges HihmE &R - 216

75,307 67,418

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BEIRZF (BIZEFFHH)

emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other benefits o TERHMET 1,027,992 733,688
Contributions to defined contribution TERRMEROGR ARG B (B EEG)
retirement plan (note(i)) 20,602 6,922
Equity-settled share-based payment VAR SS A5 B AR (5 B R AY
expenses (note 25) R (M3E25) 8,274 7,240
1,056,868 747,850

Note: MIaE -

(i) To relieve the difficulties encountered by enterprises due to COVID-19 () AFEER0MGFETRFRSRZBEECEREK
pandemic, pursuant to related policies consented by the State Council of KRR - R BB P R 2 e AR -
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company in PRC were entitled to exempt its AARRFEAKB AR N20208 28 %
contributions to the pension insurance, unemployment insurance, and 2020F 12 A - BEREHMITRKESERE -
work injury from February 2020 to December 2020, no such exemption was KERBE R TEHHER - MEZE2021F12A8
granted for the year ended 31 December 2021. VB IEFERIER @R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

5 BRBIADGER (&)

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBETT

(c)

Other net (income)/losses

Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Losses on rental deposits

Gains on reassessment of right-of-use assets

Income on COVID-19 rent concessions

Losses on inventories due to COVID-19

Losses on deemed disposal of an associate

(note 12(b))
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses
Donations
Net fair value changes of financial assets
measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL")
Gain on disposal of the other

(c)

B () EEFEE
HEWE - BEREHEUR

FREEAEZBE 2,468 13,029
HERE 2 EE 2,095 12,753
FAEEEENTH 2 KE = (1,726)
20198 AV EARESHE

R 2 WA (1,345) (2,000)
20197 BV AR TR S5 P B 5K

2 FEEBE = 3,923
[ENE—MBERR)Z

518 (FizE12(b)) = 71
HNE (U ss) /518 R 5 (17,893) 200
B 221 1,200

BAFEF A B ((RAFE

AIABGEDEREE

N EZEFE 2,389 -
HE R IER B & BUA A 2 ek

non-current financial assets (601) -
Others Hh 1,244 725
(11,422) 28,175
(d) Other expenses (d) EfbFsz

Auditors’ remuneration IZE AN &
- audit services — FEH R 2,600 2,500
- non-audit services — FEF RSB 800 1,420
3,400 3,920
Other external professional service fees HinNE B REE A 64,409 41,612
Expenses for opening new restaurants FRITE RN 33,859 34,544
Transportation and related expenses B AR X 100,339 74,932
Maintenance expenses HIEHX 9,816 8,444
Bank charges RITWE 8,813 4,954
Insurance expenses RBFX 2,161 1,750
Business development expenses EBEREMY 5,323 4,082
Office expenses MERFE 9,780 10,172
Research and development expenses R 1,816 709
Cleaning fees BREMA 14,776 5,102
Others HAh 5,322 3,963
259,814 194,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br = B 185N + XA R BESITR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRBIADGER (&)
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBET T

(e) Other items (e) EftEH
Amortisation (note 11) B (fEE1) 3,412 2,215
Depreciation (note 10) & (fsz10)

- property, plant and equipment — W% - BENKEE 155,730 108,373
- right-of-use assets —EREEE 342,546 243,044
498,276 351,417
Impairment losses (note (i) REEE (HEE0)
- property, plant and equipment (note 10) — W% - BB RERAE (MEE10) 18,800 9,578
- right-of-use assets (note 10) —ERREEE (FIFE10) - 13,833
18,800 23,411
Raw materials and consumables used FiT AR R AT R A1 1,537,366 1,045,784
Cost of inventories (note (ii)) (note 16(b)) FEARA (M) (HiEE16(0) 1,580,604 1,079,627
Listing expenses WX - 7,344
Other rentals and related expenses HibfH & R IEREFR 96,885 49,810
Interest income on subscription monies EEPANGE: Gk
received from IPO (note (jii)) BB B A (B EEGiT)) = (36,449)

Notes: MiaE -

(i) “Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets” () [¥03 - WG KRB I (o A M & A A (B 5 18
was presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit REE2021F % 2020F12 A31 A IEFEAR
or loss of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. NAREEERTUBILIEE 25 -

(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB43,238,000 for the year ended 31 December iy FERABIEEIB TA] - [IT8E KEH
2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: RMB33,843,000), relating to X | BEMNEZE2021F 12831 HIEFEER
“staff costs”, "depreciation and amortisation expenses’, which amount is also ARM43,238,0007T (B ZE2020F12 A31H
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in L5 - ARM33,843,0007T) ° Ll & E IR
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses. FFADRIE X ENERERERSZER

SARBIEIFEES (b)

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the interest income of (iii) E§§2.020¢12ﬁ STHIEFE - m@ﬁ?%?'ﬂ@
RMB36,449,000 arising from the subscription monies locked-up and FEEREMNB YN EZRE T TRINRE
subsequently refunded to unsuccessful subscribers during the IPO were A RREE R 8 7 B A AR ¥ 36,449,000
credited to profit or loss. Interest income of RMB459,000 arising from gross TEFAER o REREXAREEIHEN
proceeds locked-up and. subsequently transferred to the Company's share BBAD A EL AR B AR R AR A KR AR 10 3% B B9 BT
capital-and share premium during the IPO were credited to the Company's ISR A B UA AR 459,000 T2
share premium. FFARR BN EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SZeBEERAMNAAES

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) AREBERABIELRE

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or loss

represents:
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Current tax B EAL 1R
Provision for the year FEEE
- PRC income tax — PEPMEH 128,802 61,783
— Other jurisdictions — Efh RDEER 1,157 401
Over-provision in respect of prior years BB FEMNBREE (376) (105)
129,583 62,079
Deferred tax BB IA
Origination and reversal of accumulated tax EAREEZETIAEER
loss and temporary differences (note 24(b)) B E R (FFFE24(0)) 4,184 (24,689)
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January TREBE A1 HARERIE
resulting from a change in tax rate EERER R - 1,212
4,184 (23,477)
133,767 38,602
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

6

(b)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

REBRBERANAER @)

(b) BiIRFIZEIRB AR KT ENE TR

at applicable tax rates: FIRE Bk -
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Profit before taxation BR A% A& A 505,920 176,608
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRABRBA SN BELIE -
calculated at the rates applicable to REBRVEERERL
profits in the jurisdictions concerned w ARG E 124,081 31,238
Effect of non-deductible expenses TAR RS 2 6,623 3,367
Tax effect of unused tax losses and deductible  RERHIARE AFBEEE KL
temporary differences not recognised AENEREEZNHIATE 7,393 2,553
Tax effect of using the deductible losses 152 F AR AR 89 AT S A0 18 2
and deductible temporary differences ENERNEEENFIELE
not recognised (145) -
Over-provision in respect of prior years BRABTFEMNBREE (376) (105)
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January =1 A1 BRLERIA
resulting from a change in tax rate EERER IR - 1,212
Others Hit (3,809) 337
Actual tax expense ERBIERY 133,767 38,602
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6

INCOME TAX

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G &850 + UA RBEZITR)

REBRBERANAER @)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong of the Group did not have any other
assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Taxable income for the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are subject
to PRC income tax rate of 25% for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, unless otherwise specified below.

Hainan O Ye Catering Co., Ltd.,, Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co., Ltd.
Hainan Branch, Hainan Tai Er Catering Management Co., Ltd., Mi Liang
Ren Liang (Haikou) Supply Chain Co., Ltd. and Haikou Maidian Jiumaojiu
Restaurant Management Co., Ltd. met the criteria for enterprises/branches
in catering industry established in Hainan Province in the PRC and were
entitled to the preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2024.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated overseas, other than Hong Kong
and the BVI, are subject to overseas profits tax at 3% to 27% on estimated
assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends and interest receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The
withholding tax rate of 10% was applicable for the Group for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

REFASEE L EEERRESNRA R
B AEEBABNFERERABHEBR
BB ERPAEH o

AEBEBMBRATNREE2021F12A318
LEFFE I AT (] Ho A JEER B ) (20204 -
;) o

BRTXBEHAIN - REE2021F & 2020F
12A31ALEFERRARNFENERRRE
ARFULA B IZ R B TR TR R 25% BUANFT 15
i o

HRMRBEREEEGRAA - BMAZER
EHEERAREEO AR BEA_ERE
HARAR KRAR(CER) HEEGR
NEIRGOEBNENEREBEBR AR
EFESEEEREDE DA RNGEE
WHR2020F E2024F ZH 15% B BFTEH
T o

RABREINEMK OB AR (FE K
EEERAHSHRN) ARBE20201F K
20209 12 A31 B IEFE (AT FERR T & AR
R 39 27% BN F NGRS

BECEMSTEREERIED - PESZE
R E 200891 A1 B & BEREEFI T 3E
FREMEERE - BRIERHEEHE S ZEER
% EFENERREREKE RFE R
10%%8 EHUTFETL © B E 2021 F 2 20204F
12A31BIEEE  10%R9FBINHH R ERR
AREE -

ZE - —FF W ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EBHM
Directors’ emoluments as recorded in the financial statements are set FFAMBRENESHESEIIOT ¢
out below:
Year ended 31 December 2021
200 F12ANBLEE
Directors' Salaries,
and allowances Retirement Share-based
supervisors' and other  Discretionary scheme payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note (b)) Total
DA
ESR IE EER BB
2 RtiRR) BERA BRI gt (a(b) #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARBTR  ARETr  ARBTR  ARBTR
Chairman £
Mr. Guan Yihong (‘M. Guan) EREEE(TEEE)) - 819 68 17 904 125 1,029
Executive directors YiES
M. Li Zhuoguang £ Q) i - 692 120 16 828 848 1,676
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFNL - 692 120 2 832 1,063 1,895
Mr. He Chengxiao Rt E - 879 202 2 1,101 1,085 2,186
Independent non-executive directors B FH1TEZ
Mr. Zhong Weibin ERULE
(resigned on 16 April 2021) (214 R16BEH) 30 - - - 30 - 30
Mr. Deng Tao i)yt 120 - - - 120 - 120
Mr.lvan Xu (resigned on 16 April 2021) %54 (R0 F4A 16 BEE) 200 - - - 200 - 200
Ms. Tang Zhihui (note (2) ERELL (M) 90 - - - 90 - 90
Ms. Zhu Rui (note (3) KEn (HiE) %0 - - - 9% - %0
Total 5t 530 3,082 510 I£] 4195 312 7316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE BT ERERMIEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7 EEHM &)

Year ended 31 December 2020
HENNENANBILEE

Directors’ Salaries,

and allowances Retirement Share-based

supervisors' andother  Discretionary scheme payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note (b)) Total

WAt RER

E2L  IE ER BTt
EEHe AR WERL  RAGTEER It (FtzE ) a5t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000

ARETE  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Chairman B3
Mr. Guan ik - 632 - 13 645 - 645
Executive directors UnES
Mr.Li Zhuoguang ES 0Dt - 646 il 1 758 133 891
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFRL - 656 11 2 769 450 1219
Mr. He Chengxiao fREE - 414 7 I 487 75 762
Non-executive director Fathy
Mr. Zou Dinghang PEMEE

(resigned on 2 July 2020) (R00%7 B2REH) - - - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors B FH1TEZ

M. Zhong Weibin ERILE 120 - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Deng Tao Pers 120 - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Ivan Xu BRRE - - - - - - -
Total &t 240 2348 29 17 2899 858 3757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

7 EEHM =

fias -

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(@ Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui were appointed as independent

non-executive directors of the Company on 16 April 2021.

(b) These represent the estimated value of restricted stock units and share
options granted to the directors under the Company's restricted stock units
scheme and share option scheme. The value of these shares/share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(q)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years

where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no amounts paid or
payable by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals
set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as a compensation for loss of office (2020: nil). There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

(d) The executive directors confirmed that their emoluments shown above were
paid for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of

the Company and the Group.
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SERARFBRAEEEHZREMIA -



8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2020: three)

are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument

in respect of the other one (2020: two) individual is as follows:

8

=
o)

EEMEz AL

BA SRR B RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G &850 + UA RBEZITR)

EeMEz AN ATHBEIENSA (20209 :
ZR)EE EHFBHNMNMERE AHE
fth— (2020%F : M) ATHBEST -

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREETF T

Salaries and other emoluments e REAMME 931 1,362
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL 83 132
Share-based payments LARRAD B B S 3R 187 437
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B R 27 20
1,228 1,951

The emolument of the one (2020: two) individual with the highest

emoluments is within the following bands:

—% (2020F - MB) mmHF ALTHEESN

TR -

2021 2020
20214 20204F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AH

Nil - HKD1,000,000 0Z 1,000,000 7T - -
HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7L 2 1,500,000 7T 1 2

HKD1,500,001 - HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 - HKD2,500,000

1,500,001 7% 7T £ 2,000,000,8 7T
2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,00078 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9
(a) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB339,936,000 (2020: RMB124,063,000) and the
weighted average of 1,453,410,000 shares (2020: 1,393,324,000) in issue
during the year.

BRAER
BRESEF

HE2001F12A31BEFEMNERE
AR F IR F N A R E) IR R A T
AR #339,936,0007T (2020%F : AR
124,063,0007T) * LA RFRE BEITINEFH
% 1,453,410,000 8% (20204F : 1,393,324,000
IR)FHE

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

Shares Shares

IR& & &

Issued shares at 1 January* R1A1THBEEITIRD 1,453,410,000 1,000,000,000
Effect of share issuance upon IPO BRARBEE RBEELRET

and over-allotment IR H R 2 - 363,871,000

Effect of share issuance upon subscription REHRNOBETOLE - 29,453,000
Weighted average number of shares at 712 A31 BEAR 5 it 9

1 December 1,453,410,000 1,393,324,000

* The number of shares is based on the assumption that the 1,000,000,000
shares (being the number of shares after the subdivision on 15 January 2020)
of the Company had been issued before the IPO on 15 January 2020.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share during the year ended 31
December 2021 is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB339,936,000 and the weighted average of
1,453,970,000 shares, calculated as follows:

RO EBEBEERBRIRARANR2020F1 A
waémﬁﬁﬁﬁmaﬁﬁkﬁﬂﬁﬁ
1,000,000,000 % (EN20204E 1 A 15 BB D 3
BRRMEE) °

) BREHER

HE2001F12A31BILEENERE
SR AR A QA SR EEGSER A
R ¥339,936,0007C + LA K hniE 19 A
1,453,970,000f% 518  stE AT :

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 12 A31 BRI AR INRE T 5%

at 31 December 1,453,410,000 1,393,324,000
Effect of deemed issue of shares under IRIRAN D B BB AR S EIAR 1R A

the Company’s share option scheme for nil TREFTROOZE (MsE25)

consideration (note 25) 560,000 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares P12 A31 BRI AR IR T8

(diluted) at 31 December (#58) 1,453,970,000 1,393,324,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 10¥¥ BERZBREAES

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET E
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) FREIEYER

Kitchen  Leasehold Furniture Buildings
equipment fand - and fixtures situated on

Property - and others - Right- Leasehold Kitchen  Electronic Motor  andother  Frechold freehold ~Construction

Right-of-  Right-of- ofuse improvement equipment- equipment-  vehicles-  equipment- [and - fand - in progress -

useassets  use assets assets  Subtotal -Ouned Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned  Subtotal Total
HERE £l BAfR

WE- REE- EEiR- HREE KAER

ERE  RRE  &RR 2 £t L B REE  BRAX M2t 2

iz iz 4 N BERE BRRE BTG e B ERty BET  RRIR it it
RUBOD  MBON  RVOD  RMBOD MO MBON R RUBOD  MBON  RMON  RWBOD  MBOD  RUBODD  RMBOD
ARETR ARBTR ARETL ARMTR  ARETR ARMTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR ARRTR ARETT ARETR ARRTR ARETR

Cost: A
At T January 2000 RonE1A18 1481971 5,366 - 1487337 395947 12399 5896 3 475% - - 10097 639,668 2127005
Other additions AfiRE 766,541 1103 - 76764 103173 44526 13116 2348 1304 - - 9097 207143 1034787
Addiion through acquision FENE-TNE

of a subsidiary AAhRE 509 191 - 5290 58 - 3 - 338 4612 30 - 6069 11359
Tinser fiom constuction inprogress BB AERTR - - - - 065 11015 %I - 7486 - - ) - -
Disposals it (24889%) - - (248,8%) (92007) (25218) (14430 9 (10848) - - - (142,600) (391.49)
Transer tointangible assets SRnEpEE - - - - - - - - - - - B791) (79 (3799
Exchange adjustments EfE (1) 0 - (14) (14 - -* - ] (108 (1) - (14 (269
4131 December 020and VM

1 January 2021 ikl 200459 6656 - 201151 468530 154330 38002 5380 57,567 4504 518 17516 766347 277759
Additions #E 594304 - B9 617901 108172 53806 17741 1935 11438 - - 120021 33013 931,014
Tengerfom constucton nprogress. - BREERTR - - - - afil 210 - - 13149 - - (7 - -
Disposals it (209657) (6465) - (216122) (12651) (14616) (6082 (153) (5659) - - - (69.161) 285,83)
Transer tointangible assets gpnEpaE - - - - - - - - - - - (672 (672 (3672
Exchange adjustments Efag (484) ] - (438) (174) 5] ] - ) (s8) 1) 0] (34 (839)
At31 December 2021 DIEEELE 2388758 187 B9 241254 621507 214617 69657 1162 76470 4406 506 595 1,006,280 341882
Accumulated depreciation: ZifhiE:
AtT January 2020 HonEIf1R 65250 2955 - 055475 208703 51714 081 1859 17746 - - - 31289 968370
Chaefortie e i WE A S ngWm 6% w4 : 6 ¥ T
Wit bickon disposds BitEHE (18212 - - (mm el TG E U I X ) ] . . R0 T 1]
Exchange adjustments Eiigx 1) - - 1) -t E - - -t - - - B ]
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mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B i BFS) + AN R H5)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 10¥¥ BERZBREAES

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued) E (&)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) BREELER &)
Kitchen ~ Leasehold Furniture Buildings
equipment fand - and fixtures situated on
Property - and others - Right- Leasehold Kitchen  Electronic Motor  andother  Freehold  freehold Construction
Right-of-  Right-of- ofuse improvement  equipment- equipment-  vehicles-  equipment - fand - and - in progress -
useassets  useassets assets  Subtotal -Ouwned Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned ~ Subtotal Total
HERE BERL BAfiR
#%-  REM- EEiR- HRzE KAER
fERE  HRE  BRR Bt EL EL B RE®  BERA izt £t

i i i N BEEE BRRR  BTER i B OEEix BB GRIR it it
RBDD  RBON  RVBOD  RMBOD MBOD  RBON RO RUBDD  RBON  RWBOI  RWBOD  RBOD  RWLI  RMBOD
ARRTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARRTR ARRTL ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETL ARMTR

At31 December 2020 and HOwENAIIR

1 January 2021 Ram#1R1R 77534 4964 - TR W76% 55904 21705 pAk) 17797 - § S 1090488
Charge forthe year Emils 341,449 605 0 W 1070 %1 8201 86 11639 - ] B 2 )3
Witten back on disposals itit=pd {2 (157671) 5533 - (163 B9 (1019 (499) (150 (£354) - - N % < I
Exchange acjustments EngE (191) ) - (19) (8) U 5 - (14 - il - (112 (304
At31 December 2021 iEDER]E 958920 k) 9 954 454 TI%4 299 2868 25068 - b B 15 ;I k174
Impairment; HE:
At January 2000 KRR 0% - - % 24 % 100 - I - - - 3550 30676
Additon i 13633 - - 13433 5850 201 515 - 8 - - - 9578 B4
Witen back on disposdls RHEZHE (159%) - - 5% 1329 ) (594) - m - - - 1
At31 December 200 and RUNEA3IE

1 January 2021 Rwig1R18 1499 - - 14993 6%2 238 Wl - 856 - - - iy 2,30
Addiion b - - - E 1109 5690 - - 2081 - - - 18800 18800
Witen back on disposals iy {2 (6033) - - (6035) (3789) (1064) (591) - 389 - - - 633 (1019
#t31 December 2021 H0IE0AIIR 8958 - - 8958 1420 6954 - - 2548 - - - B 3266
Net Book Value: REFE:
At31 December 2001 KOVENANA 1408 18 BIS 14418 BB 1969 378 4% 44854 4406 49 S5 S8 20630
A3 December 2020 AONENANA 124200 169 BT 25393 %008 30306 3048 34914 4504 51 UsE B 16609
¥~ The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000. * B2z PN ARY1,0007T °
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iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

(a)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)
Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
Impairment loss

As at the end of each reporting period, in view of the unfavourable
future prospects of certain restaurants, the Group’s management
estimated the recoverable amount of each such restaurant
(cash-generating unit (“CGU")) with indication of impairment. The
recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based on the
value-in-use calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the
relevant CGU derived from the most recent financial forecast approved
by the management covering the remaining lease term. Based on the
result of the assessments, the management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amounts of certain CGUs are lower than the
carrying amounts. The impairment amount has been allocated to each
category of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets such
that the carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero.
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 23.87% as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: 17.24%). The discount rate used is

pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

As at 31 December 2021, an impairment loss of RMB18,800,000 (31
December 2020: RMB23,411,000) was recognised in profit or loss to write
down the carrying amounts of respective property, plant and equipment
to their recoverable amounts of RMB19,343,000. The above impairment
loss was allocated to the assets including leasehold improvement and

other equipment within the CGU on a pro rata basis.

109X BERREBRERAEER

EE

(a) BREE¥AR (&)

REEE

REREREEHR - ERETEREORRA
ETE AEEEEEEMHTARETR
MEEMRERE (REEEBEMN) JKE®
o SHRSEABMNMATKESETIRE
EREEFEFEETE - FEA  RIEE
EEMENSIHRVBEENCREHRTH
EH)HEHEBRCELAENNBESRE
TR - RIBETHAER  AEBEEEEET
ETHRESEEEMMAIKE S BERNER
B RESHEEOIRESEVE BER
FBEAREAREE  NESEEENR
EENMEREAFER L EKA - HEH
BERZEZENZSE °2021F12H31
H - BEanERKAR%23.87% (2020512
A318 :17.24%) #7131 - FIEABITIEERT
AR R e EE BN EAN
FERRE -

R2021F12A318 - EREFERRES
BAR®18,800,0007T (2020612 A31 8 -
ANER#23,411,0007T) © A HEBEYZE - K
EREFENEROEMRELATRBSEA
R#19,343,0007T ° Ll (B 18 Thik 7]
PHRERSELEEMAZAENERER
HMRESEE -
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R BRI

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br = B 185N + AA R BESITR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

(b)

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

10¥% BERREREAEER

E®)
ERREEE

REREEDBENEREEENKREFE
DT

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Property — Right-of-use assets, carried at

Yk - EREEE

depreciated cost (note (i) LASTE RS HIBR (B 3EG)) 1,420,871 1,214,260
Kitchen equipment — Right-of-use assets, BE&E — AREEE -
carried at depreciated cost (note (ii)) LAST 88 B 7R 1 BR (B (i) 152 1,692
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets, HELH — EREEE -
carried at depreciated cost (note (iii)) LAYT B8 B 7R 51 B (B 5 (i) ) 23,105 -
1,444,128 1,215,952
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iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

(b)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or

loss is as follows:

10%  BERRERFEAESE
B

(o) EHEEE (&)

BN BT RRNEEEENMATIEE W
DT -

2021 2020
20215 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets BEEEENENEREEE
by class of underlying asset: T ERX
Property - Right-of-use assets ME - EREEE 341,449 241,035
Kitchen equipment and others - Right-of-use assets  EERE R EM — FEHEEE 605 2,009
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets HELH —EAREE 492 -
342,546 243,044
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEEENHE (HEs5a) 73,402 61,716
Expense relating to short-term leases B8 B SRR N A 36,215 10,768
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets REEBEEEESREMMS -
(excluding short-term leases of low-value assets) TEEEEEEENEHREE 47 98
Variable lease payments not included Rt AHEBEFENTEEENTK
in the measurement of lease liabilities 63,583 63,093
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BUER019F B BRI ZEEE SR E (4,305) (26,149)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease

liabilities are set out in notes 18(c) and 21, respectively.

As disclosed in note 1(c), the Group has early adopted the Amendment
to IFRS 16, Leases, Covid-19 — Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 (2021 amendment), and applies the practical expedient introduced
by the Amendment to all eligible rent concessions received by the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Further

details are disclosed in (i) below.

HEReREAERAEARIHELITHEB
DRI M FE18(c) & 21 °

MRV (O FTIR TR - AN MR PR B B S o
HEBIE 1658 - HEEEIA - 2021F6 A30H %
201 9FT 2V Ak s AT 2 B (2021 FAEET
&) WERAEEREZE2021F %2020%F12 8
JTAIEFERBBAE S ERES R RERZ
BEIASIAMPIITRE X - E—SFHIEHRE
RT() e

ZE - —FF W ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 179
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 109% BERRERERAEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued) E (#)
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) ERAEEE (&)
Notes: ffsE -
(i)  Property — Right-of-use assets (i) M¥E-—-FEREEE
The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its restaurants through AEBERBHERRESKYEIEREE
tenancy agreements. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 11 years. EERVRER] - HAOZRYABENRENF -
The Group leased a number of restaurants which contain variable lease TEBZHEENHERLEERBEREE
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the restaurants and B iHE 58 R E T R FHE NG ]
minimum annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms BHREMNRIER - ZENRGEREREEE
are common in restaurants in mainland China where the Group principally SREMNTREAMEEBRSR - REZE2021
operates. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group FR2020F12A31HIEFE - AEBEE RS
received rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed payments 1E201 98T BT AR R 51 45 1 B HE AR AR 41 3B
during the period of severe social distancing and travel restriction measures B K b 2 PR IS ME R HARE - DAR E A AT
introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19. The amount of fixed and K MR TR R 2 o SR EY [EE K AT &R
variable lease payments for the year is summarised below: EffReEgmT
2021
20214
COVID-19 rent concessions
2019 EERFEFHERR
Variable Deducted
payments from
Fixed and other variable Recognised Total
payments rentals payments as income Subtotal payments
SRR RATENSR
EREEN HitE$ M BRAEEA Nt B

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTRT AR®TR ARETR ARBTRT AR®TR

Leased assets HEEE 391,676 99,845 (2,960) (1,345) (4,305) 487,216

2020
2020%F
COVID-19 rent concessions

2019 BB MBS E SRR

Variable
payments Deducted
Fixed and other from variable ~ Recognised Total
payments rentals payments as income Subtotal payments
AR R RATERR
& < 5% Hipfs kg BERABWKA 2\ B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIL ARETRT ARETEI ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

Leased assets THEEE 304,246 73,959 (24,149) (2,000) (26,149) 352,056
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R SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5= BEi 85N + AAREZTR)

109% BERREREAEER

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Kitchen equipment - Right-of-use assets

The Group leases certain kitchen equipment under leases expiring from 3 to
5 years. None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets

The Group has obtained the 20-year land use right through a land use rights
transfer agreement to construct and establish a multifunctional national
supply chain center base. A lump sum payment was made upfront to acquire
the land use right and there are no ongoing payments to be made.

Rental deposits

The refundable rental deposit itself is not part of the lease payments and is in
the scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, the rental deposit should be measured at fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposit is an additional lease payment made by the
Group and it is included in the measurement of the right-of-use assets.

E
(b) ERESE (&)

(if)

(ii)

BE®RE - EREEE
AEBRBEOEEETHERE - BRA
3ESF - HBHEERSAZBENK -

HELH — (EREEE

AEEE B (E RS R ARG SH20
FELIE MR NERILETZINEEEE
HAEHE T O RN - B RIS i RETEE
AT —EHIE - BEFFENR -

HERe

IR B RS 5 2T E A — 3
5 WMEBH B REENFORMEE -
By - RS R SRR 1A T (Et
- ALONS AT EREENOZEAA
S5 IR ORIV B L R A A
B E -
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mEMBIRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1M EBEEE
Software Brand name Total
HeE  RESE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETET

Cost: R
At 1 January 2020 202061 A1H 8,827 - 8,827
Purchases BE 870 - 870
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary FERWE—ENBARNRE - 6,543 6,543
Transferred from construction in progress WERAEETE 3,791 - 3,791
Exchange adjustments M 5 A& - (154) (154)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 202012 A31A &

20211 A1 H 13,488 6,389 19,877
Purchases Be 6,309 - 6,309
Transferred from construction in progress EREERTR 3,672 - 3,672
Exchange adjustments M H R - (139) (139)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 23,469 6,250 29,719
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 5,747 - 5,747
Charge for the year FERNLR 1,791 424 2,215
Exchange adjustments P H PR - 1 1
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020124318 &

202141 A1 H 7,538 425 7,963
Charge for the year FRM 2,126 1,286 3,412
Exchange adjustments b 5, R E - (45) (45)
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 9,664 1,666 11,330
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2021 202112 H31H 13,805 4,584 18,389
At 31-December 2020 2020612 A31H 5,950 5,964 11,914
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(a) List of subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally and significantly affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

12 RMBARNERE
(a) FIEBLREFIE

TREBSHAKRENEE  EEXARE
EEBARERZENMBARIMNFS -

Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
FrEERRLA
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Group's
operation/date of issued and effective  Held by the Held by
Company name establishment paid-up capital interest Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
dfREE BETR rEE M8
DAER %/ HIBH HREARE  BEER ALAKE  LEBE  IERH
Jiumaojiu (Guangzhou) Holdings Limited The PRC RMB 234,058,200 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("JMJ Holdings") (i)ii) 27/05/2019
NENBM) BRARAR (ThEAER (6 & ARH234058, 2007 REER
2019558278
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Catering Chain Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB133,690,000 100% - 100%  Restaurant operations and
("Guangzhou Jiumaojiu”) (ii) 30/08/2005 relevant delivery business
BMNENEREHEERAA(EMNAEAD () & ARH133,690,0007C ZEESTUAMNESH
200568 A30H
Foshan Maidian Food Co, Ltd. (i) The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Food processing and
23/08/2016 central kitchens
FrLPESRBERAR M AR 50,000,007 RENIRPAER
201658 A23H
Nanjing Jiumaojiu Restaurant The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100%  Restaurant operations and
Management Co, Ltd. (ii 22/12/2014 relevant delivery business
BRNENBRERBRAA) ME AF%30,0000007T EREERNBNERT
0145128228
Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB140,376,028 88% - 88%  Restaurant operations and
('Tai Er Catering") (i) 25/01/2016 relevant delivery business
BMA—2REsBRAR (KK 60 el ARH140,376028 7 LREENABNERR
016518258
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R BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 855h

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) List of subsidiaries (continued)

F UABRHEST)

12 RBATINKRE (&)
a) MEBARSIE (£)

Proportion of ownership interest

FiEEERLA
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Group's
operation/date of issued and effective  Held by the Held by
Company name establishment paid-up capital interest Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
afREE BEAR r5E &
DRER W/ RyAH BREAFE BiER FLARF DABE  FEER
Shanghai Er You Catering Management Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB30,000,000 88% - 88%  Restaurant operations and
("Shanghai Er You') (i 30/09/2017 relevant delivery business
PE-ERRERERAA (I LEZF) HE AE%30,0000007 EEESAMNESH
2017697308
Tai Er (Guangzhou) Investment Co,, Ltd. (il The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
28/06/2020
A= (BM) REBRAR) el AR 10,000,007 RARER
2020564288
Guangzhou Pin Xin Yue Gu Enterprise Management ~ The PRC RMB99,800,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd. (ii) 23/06/2016
BHRERACKERERAR) TE AR%99,8000007C RARR
2016564238
Notes: sk
(i) This entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. The official name of () ZEBRAEPEMINEBEELE - ZTELS
this entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the name is for reference BEHFEBARY  HELENEXHEZEH
only. fE o
(i) These entities are PRC limited liability companies. The official names of these iy ZEEEATRBREMTAR - ZEFETEN

entities are in Chinese. The English translation of the names is for reference

only.
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iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Acquisition of Too Two Gourmet Inc. (“TT Gourmet”)

The principal activities of TT Gourmet are restaurant operations in
Canada. As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 40% equity interests
in TT Gourmet which was accounted for as an associate of the Group. In
August 2020, the Group entered into another acquisition agreement and
increased its interest in TT Gourmet from 40% to 60% for a consideration
of CAD200,000 (equivalent to RMB1,049,000) (the "Proposed
Acquisition”).

On 31 August 2020, the Proposed Acquisition was completed after the
Group has obtained control over the operations and acquired the assets
and assumed the liabilities of TT Gourmet. Accordingly, TT Gourmet
became a subsidiary of the Group on 31 August 2020 (the “Acquisition
Date”). The series of the Group's acquisitions in TT Gourmet were
accounted for as a step acquisition under IFRSs, where the fair value of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree that was held immediately
before obtaining control has been used in the determination of the total
consideration of the step acquisition.

(i) Information relating to the interest in an associate:
The following table summarises the information relating to the
interest in an associate immediately before the completion of the
Proposed Acquisition in TT Gourmet:

12 AMBRARINERE #)

(b) BB Too Two Gourmet Inc. ([TT

Gourmet])

TT GourmetMEZFZEF AR MEALLEE
EE - W2019F 128318 AEEEATT
Gourmet 40% %1 + EABRAANEE 2B
ANAE] ° R2020F8 A AEERIL S —HIK
B WHEENTT Gourmet 8 A% #E H140%
BINZE60%  RIBA200,000017T (HERA
R¥1,049,0007T) ([FEZZWHESIE]) -

20208 A31H - @miEEEEAEER
EUSETT Gourmet & 3B Ay 4 SR Y BE H &
EEEEBEETTA o TT Gourmet A LR
2020568 A31 R (WA B ) K AAREE
RIBAR] o AEEETT GourmetH)— &5
U i =5 15 B AR 1R B R B 75 5 ZE R ABR 5
ED PR ER U EE - T R EUS I B AT R 18
WA RFBNEMIEERESHATFER
FAREE RN ESIENENRE -

() BE—HBEATNEZNER :
TRBIEZEETT Gourmet M2 S =
HEKABBR —HHEAREENE
o

RMB'000
ARBTT
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 M2019F 12 A31 HMEREE 5,572
Share of loss of an associate from 1 January 2020 E2020F 1 A1 BZUHE B IR FE(L
to the Acquisition Date — BB A A 518 (757)
Dividends entitled to the Group as at the Acquisition Date AEERWIEBREEZANRE (2,649)
Carrying amount as at the Acquisition Date RUHE B BRR AR E(E 2,166
Disposal of interest in an associate HE — B E AR R E R (2,166)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31 BWEREE -
Carrying amount of 40% equity interests in TT Gourmet SREBUSEHIRERTNTT Gourmet
held immediately before obtaining control FB 40% R ER REE 2,166
Fair value of 40% equity interests in TT Gourmet SREBUSEHIRERTTT Gourmet
held immediately before obtaining control FB 40% R EN A TE
(note 12(b)(ii)) (M EE12(b)() 2,095
Losses on deemed disposal of an associate (note 5(c)) REDE —HBERRNEE
(HH3E5(c)) 71)
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mEMBIRAME

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br = B 185N + AA R BESITR)

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 RIFBARNRE @)
(b) Acquisition of Too Two Gourmet Inc. (“TT Gourmet”) (b) WBEToo Two Gourmet Inc. ([TT

(continued) Gourmet]) (%)

(i) The following summarises the nature of consideration transferred, (i) ARRBARBHEEEMNRERE UKk
and the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities PUWEEERCAEEENRARASHE
assumed at the Acquisition Date: BRI T -

Recognised

Carrying Fair value values on

amount adjustments acquisition

R R

BEE AFHERE BRNEE

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ik ARETR ARETR ARETR

Right-of-use assets FREEE 10 5,290 - 5,290
Property, plant and equipment ER NS 10 5436 633 6,069
Intangible assets EVEE 1 - 6,543 6,543
Inventories RE 83 - 83
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMmEUNKIE 2,197 - 2,197
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 3,030 - 3,030
Deferred tax assets BRERBEE 24(b) 108 - 108
Trade and other payables B 5 RE M fERFIE (10338) - (10338)
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) HEEE(RBRIERD) (5,776) - (5,776)
Current taxation ENEARIE (29) - (29)
Deferred tax liabilities ERHBAEE 24(b) - (1938) (1938)
Net identifiable assets AHAEEFE 1 5,238 5,239
60% share of identifiable net assets JE(R AT A& R E A 60% 3,144
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5= BEi 85N + AAREZTR)

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 R B R ANKRE @)
(b) Acquisition of Too Two Gourmet Inc. (“TT Gourmet”) (b) WBEToo Two Gourmet Inc. ([TT
(continued) Gourmet]) (%)
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
R R
HREE AVERE BANEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
st ARBT T ARET T AR®T T
Consideration for 20% equity FATT Gourmet 20% R )X B
interests in TT Gourmet 1,049
Fair value of 40% equity interests in ZRIEERIENR
TT Gourmet held immediately before TT Gourmet 5 40% & #E )
obtaining control (note 12(b)(1)) ATE(HE120)0) 2,095
Total consideration BRE 3,144
Goodwill of a subsidiary —RNBARNEE -
Analysis of cash flow: RERED
Cash consideration ReRE 1,049
Less: consideration payable for A - AE AR
acquisition of a subsidiary MERRE (1,049)
Less: cash acquired of a subsidiary o WE-RNBATNES (3,030)
Net cash acquired through acquisition of FRWE-FRBEARESS
a subsidiary, net of cash paid Be38E NREAEe (3,030)
TT Gourmet contributed a revenue of RMB3,564,000 and net profit HZE2020F12A31BLIEFE - TT Gourmet
of RMB400,000 to the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or ABREEMNGEERRAEBBAARE
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. Should the acquisition 3,564,000 7T & A | A R #400,0007T © fiilL
have occurred on 1 January 2020, the consolidated revenue and the BEEMR2020F1 A1 BE4A - AIAEEE
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December F20205F 12 A31 A IEFEMERE WA RER
2020 would have been RMB2,716,820,000 and RMB135,488,000 Ba D R/ ARKE2716,820,0007T KA

respectively. R #5135,488,0007T °
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12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) The following table lists out the information relating to the subsidiaries
of the Group which has a material non-controlling interest (NCl). The

summarised financial information presented below represents the

12 RBATINKRE (&)

(€) T&IIHARESEAIEERER (GEER
W) A EEIBATER - TX25I4
B AREE A A EIRM AT S E -

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Tai Er Catering

Shanghai Er You

K=E#h LB=H
2021 2020 2021 2020
202145 20204F 20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT AR¥TR AR®ETR
NCI percentage (note (i), note 26(c)(vii)) FERER B S (K5

B3 26(c)(vi)) 12% 15% 12% 15%
Current assets MBEE 205,097 392,133 81,899 37,170
Non-current assets ERBEE 835,127 790,903 218,586 217,508
Current liabilities mEAE 57,044 356,615 21,103 17,793
Non-current liabilities FrRBERE 594,294 578,137 167,606 166,691
Net assets FEE 388,886 248,284 111,776 70,194
Carrying amount of NCI FEREEHNERERNE 46,666 37,243 9,813 6,029
Revenue LON 1,981,766 1,341,994 473,753 285,609
Profit for the year FEHFI 190,591 92,340 41,556 18,132
Total comprehensive income FHEW=EE 190,591 92,340 41,556 18,132
Profit allocated to NC| DR EIERERN T 28,175 13,851 6,070 2,720
Cash flows generated from operating activities ~ &&ZEMBEELRE 305,334 286,310 72,978 66,126
Cash flows used in investing activities REZDMARSRE (70,171) (109,826) (16,461) (34,378)
Cash flows used in financing activities REZBDMARERE (212,930) (175,227) (53,676) (32,346)

Note: M5t -

(i)  Shanghai Er You is wholly owned subsidiary of Tai Er Catering. On 5
September 2021, the Group acquired 3% additional equity interest in Tai Er
Catering, causing a decrease of NCI percentage from 15% to 12% for Tai Er

Catering and Shanghai Er You.
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13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

13 REFE QRN ER

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBEFT

Interests in associates REE N AR 13,085 3,401

The following list contains the particulars of associates, which are

unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available:

TREJBERBNFE  ZFEBHERRLE
R IEWENIF LT ARERE

il

Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of ownership
business incorporation issued and  interest and voting rights
Name of associate structure and business  paid-up capital ~ held by the Groupasat  Principal activities
EMA LK BRTR  AKERUTEREEN
L NCEE SBRER S2HE BRETHE REREERREENLA FEER
2021 2020
2021% 20205
Guangzhou Jiang Er Dai Catering Co,, Ltd. Incorporated  The PRC RMB280,000 30% 30%  Restaurant operations and relevant
(“Jiang Er Dai")(note (i) delivery business, mainly
providing Xinjiang-style cuisine
BMNE_REHKERLA ([BR]) (M) H AEB ZREERERNERY -
280,007 TEREHERKER
Guangzhou Hun Fan Chi Catering Incorporated  The PRC RMB827,129 13% 13%  Restaurant operations and relevant
Management Co,, Ltd. ("Hun Fan Chi") delivery business,
(note (i)(ii)) mainly providing
Chaoshan flavour cuisine
BIERCERERERAT (DRREZ]) Balav # ARE ZBRGERERNERT
(BIEEG) D) 827,197 TERBEBUEKER
Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural Science and Incorporated  The PRC RMB13,000,000 49% 35%  Trading
Technology Co,, Ltd.
("Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural’)
(note (i){ii)
BRAZEREMRERLDA((BRAZER]) #KL HE ARE 25
(H=EG)Gin) 13,000,0007C
Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural Science and Incorporated  The PRC RMB10,000,000 49% 49%  Fish farming
Technology Co,, Ltd.
("Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural’) (note (i)
ERZEERBEBRAR (DTRAZRE]) K i AEE 8
(FEEG) 10,000,007
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13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

financial statements.

Notes:

(i)

(in)

(iif)

The official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English translation of
the names is for identification only.

The Group has nominated one director out of a total of five directors on
the board of the entity, and in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group can exercise significant influence on the financial and operating
policy decision of the entity.

On 24 December 2021, Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural increased its
paid-in capital by RMB200,000 from its retained earnings, and the Group
made additional capital contribution to Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural of
RMB2,800,000, causing an increase of proportionate interests in Guangdong
Tai Er Agricultural from 35% to 49%.

F UABRHEST)

13 REEE N TINER (&)

Mab Ul N

BEAREARENEHE

(i)

(i)

(iif)

BT T BRAT X - HHEA IR E
REHBSA -

ARECREZERESSOHADRESY
EF‘B’J #ZEF AARAREFERAR  A%KE
EZE‘%EZHM%&W%Eﬁzﬁd&ﬁﬁmik

E/Z
rE

R2021F 128248 BERAZEENRE
i A AR NE UWE AN AR 200,0007T A
EEAERK-ZBEIAFIERAARYE
2,800,0007C * FRERKZ R ERBRELFI
FR35%E NNZE49% °

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material: BRI 5 WIEBE AR S A FERER -
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial PRGBS R 8 R 3E
associates in the consolidated financial statements EREENFINERERE 13,085 3,401
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of REBEE S QTR EBEE
those associates’
— Profits/(losses) and total comprehensive income — BEREEBRERN
from continuing operations (E18) R B 984 (8,242)
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14 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

C HARBIT)
HitERBEMEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT AREEF T
Equity securities designated at FVOCI EBEEARALOTFETAEMEZERKS

(non-recycling) IR AR 3 (o #mE)

~ Unlisted equity securities (note (a)) — FELMRAFES (MiEQ) 211,354 28,338

— Listed equity securities (note (b)) — ERAESH (b)) 18,473 -
Financial assets measured at FVPL BATFEFABSTENESREE
— Investments in limited partnership —REREBLENIRE (@)

enterprises (note (c)) 29,601 40,000

— Investments in funds (note (d)) —RESHIRE (@) 61,174 -

320,602 68,338

Notes:

(a)

The Group held unlisted equity investments in several entities. The entities
are incorporated in the PRC and engaged in investing, catering, or food and
beverage industry. The Group designated its investments in unlisted equity
securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic
purposes. Fair value of each unlisted equity securities is measured by
referencing to the latest equity transactions. Otherwise, the costs are used as
approximation of fair value if there is no significant change observed.

The Group held equity securities listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group designated its investment in the
listed equity securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held
for long-term investment purpose. Fair value of the listed equity securities is
measured by referencing to the stock price.

The Group held investments in limited partnership enterprises (the
“Partnership Enterprise(s)”). These Partnership Enterprises are specialised in
equity investment. The Group has an intention of holding such investments
as long-term investments. According to the Partnership Enterprises
agreements, the Partnership Enterprises are managed by their general
partner. The Group participates in the Partnership Enterprise as one of the
limited partners who does not have power on selection nor removal of assets
manager or general partner of the Partnership Enterprise. In addition, the
Group does not have any right on making operating, investing and financing
decision of the Partnership Enterprise. The directors are of the opinion that
the Group does not have any control nor significant influence to affect
the variable returns through its investment in the Partnership Enterprise
and therefore these investments are accounted for at fair value. Fair value
of such investments is measured by referencing to the latest investment
transactions. Otherwise, the costs are used as approximation of fair value if
there is no significant change observed.

The Group held investments in funds operated by a fund management
company. The investments are accounted for at fair value. Since the units
in the funds are redeemable at the net asset value of the funds, fair value
of such investments is measured according to the net asset value as at 31
December 2021.

MiEE

REERETERIBBELTRAKRE - Z
SEENPEEMAY  URERE £
HEBRMEREHTE - ARZEREIE
BEEREE  FALAEEETZSIELTR
REEWRE AR APEF AL E S
(TATEE) &8 - RFELTRAZFLHNA

FEDSESIRRAZHE o MERE
REAES - AERKAERSAFERIL
B

AEEREERBHMARZMERAB IR
ETRBEARRES - MRNZIRE DS EHIRE
BEVR A - FU RSB E R EmBRAES

MEERRAFES AR B2 E (R
BEDE - FHRARSFNAFEDNZE

BB -

TEEBBEERABCE ([ARBEEDN
BE - ZEAERLCEFMRERAKRE -
FEEBEBZSRERBERRBIRE - RE
ARLEWNE  ABRLCERELBEEAEAE
B AEBERERERAZ—2HEEE
EX -MARABABBEENELER
PENEETEARLTBEBEBA - 1IN &K
EEERELABLENEE  RERKBE
R - BEERAE - AEBEILETMIR %'HZE’_X
%K RN WEBEREGEBLEZREAY

B FOR - ALZSRERAFEAR-
EZ%&EE’]’&ifﬁﬂﬂ%réﬁﬁﬁ&;ﬁi%ﬁ

B BAl s AREREBAES - AIERK
RERDFEAELUE -
AEEREH -—FESETEARAKENESD

E’H&ﬁo%ﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁﬁtﬁ)\ﬂé ARES
BUAIREASHEEFEER  BAZSEER
BH AT ER2021F12 B31 BREEFE
% °
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15 HtFRBEE

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBET T AREFIT
Advances for investment KERBNR 46,621 46,621

Prepayment for purchase of other property, ~FLEEHMYE - BE KK HEHO AR
plant and equipment 2,845 6,457
49,466 53,078

16 INVENTORIES 16 #&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial () ZBEHBRRERANEFEEE :
position comprise:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREEF T
Condiment product IR 17,203 12,828
Food ingredients =X 34,919 26,094
Beverage Bkt 2,218 1,167
Other materials H e 16,410 11,005
70,750 51,094

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

(b) EERAFAXALFTABENFESHE

expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DT
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 1,580,604 1,079,627
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BA SRR B RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17 EZ R EABKFRIR

2021 2020

20215 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Trade debtors B 5 W RIA 12,223 15,089
Other receivables and deposits HAb U GRIA R IR 222,238 126,815
Interests receivables JEWLF B 501 2,780
Prepayments TEfF 102,476 73,431
Amounts due from related parties (note 29(d)) B EAEE 75 338 (I 5E29(d)) 71,520 75,159
408,958 293,274

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.

Ageing analysis:

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

debtors (which are included in trade and other receivables), based on

the revenue recognition date, is as follows:

FEESNEMEBUGREERSN —FR

W El sk iER AR o

BREC DA

RB|EBMR  REBEUAEZEHNESE
W (FFAE 5 R E M EKEKIR) M BRER

DT

2021 2020
20215 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREEF T

Within 1 month R1EAR 12,223 15,089

Trade debtors are due within 30 days from the date of revenue

recognition. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in

note 27(a).

B I RYHRIEE W ARR A BRFT30H RN

B - BRAAEEEE
A FE27(a) ©

ROE—FTHEB
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1BRERACEEYUARK MR
EREEH
(a) RERRLZEWEE :

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBETT

Cash on hand FHEA® 33 36
Cash at bank RITR 2,079,689 2,517,306
Less: restricted bank deposits(note(i)) B R EERTTIE R (MIRE®) (1,792) (127)
Less: deposits with banks with original maturity  J& : JREI 8 B B8 = @ B /9 R1 7175

date over three months (735,840) (673,312)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated G AMBERARMGEABESRE

statement of financial position and the K38 & MR & EE Y (M)

consolidated cash flow statement (note(ii)) 1,342,090 1,843,903

(i) As at 31 December 2021, restricted bank deposits of RMB1,792,000
was restricted for two contractual disputes by the Courts and
RMB750,000 has been released as at the date of this financial
statements. There were no restricted bank deposits pledged as

securities for bank loans (31 December 2020: Nil).

(i) As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents placed with
banks in Mainland China amounted to RMB572,712,000 (2020:
RMB321,618,000). Remittance of funds out of Mainland China is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

18BHRERBEEEYUREME
EREER &)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) R AR R L EBFABIRESMNE
from operations: ik -
2021 2020
20215 2020F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
izt ARETR ARBFT
Profit before taxation FRAAT A 505,920 176,608
Adjustments for: RUTEBEELRE
Interest income FIEWA 4 (14,159) (32,691)
Depreciation nE 5(e) 498,276 351417
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 5(e) 3,412 2215
Finance costs AN 5(a) 75,307 67418
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BEREER
equipment and right-of-use assets FREREEE 5(c) 2,468 13,029
Share of (profits)/losses of associates [EMLEE S AR CEF)/ B (984) 8,242
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BE REEN R
equipment and right-of-use assets HEEREEBE 5(e) 18,800 234711
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses P mEE RN AR N TS 5(b) 8,274 7,240
Losses on deemed disposal of an associate BERLE—HEERRNEE 5() - 71
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BUE0O9GHEBRASHEER SRR 100 (4,305) (26,149)
Interest income on subscription monies BERRRAEERIAREBRZ
received from IPO EoRAER N 5(e) - (36,449)
Gain on disposal of the other HEHMIERDEREEN S
non-current financial assets 5(c) (601) -
Change in fair value of other financial asset HemEENLTEE 5(c) 2,389 -
Changes in working capital: HEAARE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE(Em,/md (19,656) 23,893
Increase in trade and other receivables and B 5 I Bt FE MR IE R AR & R &3 0
rental deposits (106,744) (90,836)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R E M RFIENA R g & g m
and accruals 21,066 66918
Increase in contract liabilities BHAEEM 1,806 3319
(Decrease)/increase in restricted bank deposits SIRHRITER CRD),/ (1,665) 24,876
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERSE 989,604 582,532
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18 BRERBEEEEBYUREME
EREER &)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

(0)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or

future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

(0)

BETHELENEBZHIER

TRHANAEEXREMETDHNABEED
(BRASLIFRSEY)  -BELTHAE
ENRERRSRETARRRESARER
ENEANAKREGRARERERNKE
MEEBHNRERENALE -

Consideration
payable for
Finance  acquisition of Advances
costs non-controlling duetoa Lease
Bank loans payable interests  related party liabilities Total
RUBEER Ef-%
#TER  EGRERE BENEGRE BEINZR BERE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR
note 23 note 19 note 21
[GEE] K19 i1
At 1 January 2021 R202151818 42,950 - 1,500 - 1,284,182 1,328,632
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSTEST:
Repayment of bank loans EEROER (42,950) - S - - (42,950)
Interest of bank loans paid BREIERTE - (537) - - = (537)
Payment of capital element and interest HEERERTARAEHANH
element of lease fiabilities - - - - (387,371) (387,371)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling WEHBR AN RER
interests of subsidiaries - - (301,500) - - (301,500)
Totalchanges from financing cash flows HARZRERDAR (42,950) (37 (301,500 - (87371 (7323%9)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5= BEi 85N + AAREZTR)

18BHRERBEEEYUREME
EREER &)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: () METBHEENEEZHER: (&)
(continued)
Consideration
payable for
Finance  acquisition of Advances
costs non-controlling duetoa Lease
Bank loans payable interests  related party liabilities Total
RUBEER Ef-%
RTER  BORERE BENEGRE BRENER HERE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARET T ARETT ARETT ARETR
note 23 note 19 note 21
[GEPE! Hist19 (2]
Other changes: e LR
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FERR (iEse) - 537 - 73,402 73,939
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BB ERESREES

(note 10(0) % (W00 - - - (4,305) (4,305)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WiER SRR R (PHE20(0)i)

(note 26(c)(vil)) - - 300,000 300,000
Addition hE - - - 584,542 584,542
Disposal & - - - (45,659) (45,659)
Total other changes ihEaes - 537 300,000 607,980 908,517
At 31 December 2021 R021E12A318 = = = 1,504,791 1,504,791
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18BHRERBEEEYUREME
EREER &)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: () METBHEENEEZHER: (&)
(continued)
Consideration
payable for
acquisition of Advances
Bank  Finance costs non-controlling due to Lease
loans payable interests ~ a related party liabilities Total
RYEEER Ef-%
RIEY  ENRENA EENEGRE BEHANEX HEEE 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETRT  ARETR  AR%Tn  AR%Tn  ARETR
note 23 note 19 note 21
[EE] K19 a1
At 1 January 2020 R2020%1818 220,463 - - - 897,148 1,117,611
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSTEST:
Proceeds from bank loans BOESHETE 130,483 - - - - 130,483
Repayment of bank loans BERNER (307,996) - - - - (307,996)
Advances from a related party RE-LEENER - - - 50,000 - 50,000
Repayment on advances from a related party ERRE-2BEANER - - - (50,000 - (50,000)
Interest of bank loans paid BRETERTE - (4,093) - - = (4,093)
Other finance charges paid EREMHEER - (216) - - = (216)
Payment of capital element and interest HEEEETHARASHAF
element of lease liabilities - - - - (278,097) (278,097)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling WEH B AN RER A
interests of subsidiaries - - (1,035) - - (1,035)
Total changes from financing cash flows BAREREZYLE (177,513) (4,309) (1,035) - (278,097) (460,954)
Other changes: et L
Interest expenses (note 5) H8 5% (F325(a) - 4,003 - - 61,716 65,809
Other finance charges (note 5(a)) EthBEER (Mise) - 216 - - - 216
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BB RS EERS A
(note 10(5) (HzE100)) - - - - (26,149) (26,149)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WissknhiEs - - 2,535 = = 2,535
Addition WNE - - - - 750,772 750,772
Disposal HE - - - - (121,208) (121,208)
Total other changes EhEaeE - 4309 2,535 - 665,131 671975
At 31 December 2020 R00%12A318 42,950 - 1,500 - 1,284,182 1,328,632
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 18 RERBEEEBYUREME

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EREER #)
(d) Total cash out flow for leases: (d) HEZRE&RHELE
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBETT

Within operating cash flows REEREREN 99,845 73,959
Within investing cash flows RIEEREREN 23,597 -
Within financing cash flows REEReREN 387,371 278,097
510,813 352,056

These amounts relate to the following: IS M T YA -
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBETT

Lease rentals settled EENHEERS 491,521 378,205
COVID-19-related rent concession received BUER 20198 AV E AR R B AR TE SR & (4,305) (26,149)
Purchase of leasehold land EERELT 23,597 -

510,813 352,056
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ES R EMERNRIE

2021 2020

20215 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Trade payables B FHIE 141,207 137,731

Other payables and accrued charges HAth A 5E R FERT B A 212,267 185,930

Amounts due to related parties (note 29(d))  FEAH BEE 77 2B (M 5E29(d)) 12,461 17,470
Consideration payable for acquisition of Wi —EW B AR ENRE

a subsidiary - 1,049

Consideration payable for acquisition of Wi FEIE iR i 2 FE TR (B

non-controlling interests - 1,500

Dividends payable FERTARE 3,795 3,880

369,730 347,560

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

payables (which are included in trade and other payables), based on the

RB|BEMR REBEZFAHBZENHA
(FtAE 5 REMENFR) MRk D

invoice date, is as follows: T
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Within 1 year —FR 141,207 137,731
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20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20 BHAEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Customer loyalty scheme (note) B BT 8 (FFEE) 4,891 2,404
Advanced payment received B # K 980 1,661
5,871 4,065

Note: The estimated loyalty points which can be used in future consumptions in Mzt : REEHR  TE LM EIMELNA B
the restaurants arising from the customer loyalty scheme at the end of the ARIREEE B BT RS - AR

reporting period represented the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied REBTELHEENZFEIR o
performance obligation.

Movements in contract liabilities: BHBENES) :
Contract
liabilities
EHEaE
RMB'000
AREFIT
Balance at 1 January 2020 20201 A1 B & 746
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFEAERBAMEHENEERL
recognising revenue during the year (2,744)
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEM 6,063
Balance at 31 December 2020 M20205F12 A31 B A& 4,065
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of EFAERBAMERE LB ERD
recognising revenue during the year (4,306)
Increase in contract liabilities AEHBEEEM 6,112
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021912 A31 HE 4S84 5,871
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21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the THRENNBEHREEBEEEE BN
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period: TEHEIEE -
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Within 1 year —FR 401,102 326,062
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFN 369,946 324,014
After 2 years but within 5 years MFERERFA 704,712 627,929
After 5 years hFE 226,654 186,995

1,702,414 1,465,000
Less: total future interest expenses W RRFEFRX RRE 197,623 180,818
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 1,504,791 1,284,182

Lease liabilities included in the consolidated s AZABMERARNAEEE

statement of financial position

— Within 1 year ——FR 390,685 317,205
— After 1 year but within 2 years — —FRERFA 343,083 298,819
— After 2 years but within 5 years —MEREBRFA 601,411 531,310
— After 5 years — R 169,612 136,848
1,114,106 966,977
1,504,791 1,284,182
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22 PROVISIONS

22 B

2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Provisions for restoration costs BB R AR 31,645 27,050
The movements of provisions during the year were as follows: RERBEZLEOT

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Balance at 1 January M1 A1 HRE R 27,050 26,739
Additional provisions A 5,597 7,112
Interest on provisions BENFE 1,368 1,393
Provisions utilised B AR (2,370) (8,194)
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 BR&ER 31,645 27,050

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group is required to return its leased properties
to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements at the
expiration of the corresponding lease term as appropriate. The provision
for reinstatement costs was estimated based on certain assumptions
and estimates made by the Group’s management with reference to
historical reinstatement costs and/or other available market information.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where

appropriate.

RIBAEB AT EBEAE R EK -
REBRERERE  AEBEEKEEE
EMEZEBHEHZFTAOMRE (8
) - ERRABBERNAEEEEERE
BEERKAR /SHEMAT G5 E R
EHEE TRELGFHEL AR - HEtE
ETEER - WERKELER -

ZE - —FF W ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 203



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &8558 + AN R¥ZIT)

23 BANK LOANS

The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank loans is as follows:

23 RITERK

RITEREEEESHOT :

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFTT

Within one year or on demand R—FEANEENIRERER
— unsecured and unguaranteed — R R AR - 42,950
- 42,950

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has available banking facilities of
RMB60,000,000 (2020: RMB100,000,000) and none was utilised (2020:

RMB43,500,000).

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

R2021F 128318 - "EBEE AR
A& A R¥60,000,0007T (20204F © AR

100,000,0007T) * RS EEHAKRE A (2020

£ AR¥43,500,0007T) °

24 FEMBARR R FTEHR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

(a) FEPBARRKRWEABIRS

2021 2020

20215 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT

At 1 January M ATE 37,165 23,085

Provisions for PRC income tax HEIFTSTR A 128,802 61,783

Provisions for income tax of other jurisdictions FEMEEEROMSTERE 1,157 401

Acquisition of a subsidiary W —REHE AR - 29

Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEMNBEERER (376) (105)

Income tax paid BEARFER (133,426) (48,028)

At 31 December ®12A31H 33,322 37,165
Representing : A :

Current tax payables JE T ENERRH 18 38,259 37,165

Prepaid current tax under trade and other receivables ‘2 5 & Hfth JEUK B T RO TE BI AT 1B (4,937) -

33,322 37,165
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i)

Movement of each component of deferred tax assets and

liabilities

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

24 IREMBARRERWAEH @)

(b) ERANELERAEERER
(i)

EEBAEEREESHINE

B

RAFEHAMBRARNEBRBIE

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements EHB(EE) aESs REHN
during the year are as follows: D
Fair value Fair value
adjustment  adjustment
Deferred tax (assets)/ RELHE(EE)/ Unused tax Lease  Impairment from business ~from financial
liabiltes arising from: BEEER: losses  expenses losses  acquisition assets Others Total
REEH RESR
ABA WEH BEN
bt i | HERY AEFE ATEIE  ATESBE A &3t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB'000 RVB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
At31 December 2019and 1 January 2020 2019512831 B R
00%1R18 (22377) (31,882) (7,689) - - (1333) (63,281)
Addition through acquisition of subsiciaries  EBNENBAFITE - (108) - 1938 - - 1830
Resulting from a change in tax rate RELangR 4n 62 - - - 118 1212
(Creclitec)/charged to profit or loss (;FA)EE/ BlEENR (22421) 1345 1545 (115) - (5043) (24,689)
Credited to reserves HARRE - - - - 1300 - 1300
Exchange adjustments EREE - 0 - (46) - - 48)
At 31 December 2020 R2020£128318 (44,326) (30,025) (6,144) 1,711 1,300 (6,258) (83,676)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss BREM:/(HA) B2 8900 (6,874) (1,04) (348) = 3,530 4,184
Credited to reserves STAGE - - - - 44,504 - 44,504
Fichange adjustments ERBE - 2 - (29) = = (27)
At 31 December 2021 R021%128318 (35,426) (36,897) (7,168) 1,400 45,804 (2,728) (35,015)
o

=
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 A MBI RARWATER (&)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial

) CHEANELEHREERBE (B)
) ARE BN R IR

position
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the ReFa TR R R
consolidated statements of financial position BEFIBEEFE (82,219) (86,753)
Net deferred tax liability recognised in the ,vT\/\Eﬁk#/R%ﬁﬁ
consolidated statement of financial position BEXERIB B EFRE 47,204 3,077
(35,015) (83,676)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of RMB46,300,000 (2020: RMB30,239,000) and temporary differences of
RMB3,889,000 (2020: RMB16,835,000) of certain subsidiaries located in
the PRC, respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses or temporary differences can be utilised will be

available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

206 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENERRFRERA A

) RIERHIELEBIAEE

BEMEIOAMBMETEE - ART K
AREEEMBIERZERREREEESE
ENBERERUEEZENRARERB S
o MARERTESBINRPEETHE
NEIMRFTHIBE B AR 46,300,0007T
(2020% + AR¥30,239,00070) R E R4
=82 AR#3,889,0007T (2020%F : AR
16,835,0007T,) #EsR B BHEERIB A E ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(d)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the CIT Law and its implementation rules, dividends
receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are
subject to withholding income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties

or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities in respect of the
dividend withholding tax relating to the distributable profits of the
Company's subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls
the dividend policy of the subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at 31 December 2021, it was determined
that the distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries would not
be distributed to the Hong Kong and overseas holding companies
in the foreseeable future. The amounts of undistributed profit of the

Company's subsidiaries are set out below:

24 IREMBARRERWAEH @)

(d) RERELEHRERR

BEEEMEREREEREN - PR
EIREER 20081 A1 AEBRIAEF F
FRBECEERR  BRIFEMREHESE
PR - IEP B E R R EWAR B AR 10%
Tt RGBT R HE -

2021512 A31 8 » BHAEE AR QBB
NEZ A 2k E N A 2 iR BTEH R ER
BEFREEE  RRAEAARZHMEA
AR EIE - RIBEREMN2021F12A
31 BEHMTE - ABEEAQRME AR
WA D IREFRAI KRR TEHIRTEAS
KOGIMNERR AR - RAGIMBRRMNAS
i k= T T N

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
Distributable profits earned by PRC subsidiaries on B BT B8 A Bl 2008 £
or after 1 January 2008 1 A1 Bz & B
A 53 R A 598,776 300,400
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has the following

share-based payment arrangements:

Restricted Stock Units Scheme

The Group's ultimate controlling party, Mr. Guan, operates a share-based
incentive scheme (the "“RSUs Scheme”) under which the restricted
stock units (“RSUs") of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu will be granted as share
incentives to qualified directors and employees of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
and its subsidiaries through an employee shareholding platform (the
“RSU platform”), Guangzhou Maixuan Investment Center (Limited
Partnership), which was a shareholder of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu prior to
the Reorganisation. Pursuant to the relevant terms of the RSUs Scheme,
the RSUs have been converted into shares of a shareholder of the
Company upon the Reorganisation, which principal terms largely mirror
that of the RSUs Scheme.

The RSUs granted would vest on specific dates, on condition that
employees remain in service without any performance requirements.
Once the vesting conditions underlying the respective RSUs are met, the
RSUs are considered duly and validly issued to the holder, and free of

restrictions on transfer.

The total number of RSUs is on the assumption that the 1,000,000,000
shares (being the number of shares after the subdivision on 15 January
2020 of the Company had been issued throughout 2019 and before the
IPO on 15 January 2020).
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

(continued)

Restricted Stock Units Scheme (continued)

During years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2018, Mr. Guan had

granted RSUs to certain directors and employees of the Group under the

Scheme, which vest after five years from the date of grant. Movements in

RSUs granted to the Group's directors and employees and the respective

weighted-average grant date fair value are as follows:

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

iR B RAR R RE

C UARESTR)

B UEBEEURGARERNS

(a)

ZIRGIR MBS E (&)

B E 20144 ~ 20155F R 2018512 A31 A1k
FE  BAEORETEMEAEEETE
EREEBROZRHKRMOELN HFEER
THHEhFERBE ASEEERES
T 5 1) SZ2BR 51 AR 15 B8z K AR B AN SF 19 9%
L EBAFENEEMNT

Weighted

average grant

Number of date fair value

RSUs per RSU

BEZRHIR G

TIRERG EBELHMEFES

BENVHE RBEBHATE

RMB

ARHE

Outstanding as of 1 January 2020 BZE2020F1A1BKE 15,483,621 1.09
Vested during the year FRAEHB (6,664,018) 0.88
Outstanding as of 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12831BREB 8,819,603 117
Vested during the year (note) FANEHB () (1,765,893) 117
Outstanding as of 31 December 2021 HZE2021F 12831 B REB 7,053,710 117

Note: On 31 March 2021 and 4 August 2021, Mr. Guan and two former employees
reached agreements that the former employees were entitled to the
granted RSUs without remaining in service due to the former employees’
contribution to the Group previously as the the former director of
engineering and operation manager, respectively, of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu.
Therefore, the total outstanding 1,765,893 RSUs held by the two former
employees were vested on the dates of the agreement. Accordingly, the
Group recognised related share-based compensation expenses immediately

after the above RSUs were vested.

MiRE « 202143 A31 B X202158 A48 » B
iﬁm%mﬁéi%%mvmﬁMﬁwE
BUEDBIEEEMNNAENLOREIRRZE
EREEEEHASEEELER - Bt
ZRREREBAEATHIRNBATERDE
BHESRABMDEN - Bt - MAAES
FT¥% 4 251,765,893 fE K 53 /8 2 PR HI A% 0 B8
R EE - At - ASER £
i 52 PR ) B 17 B8 57 B 14 S BN R 5 4 B LA

f&1n BER RIS -
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B UEBEEURGARERNS

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)
(a) Restricted Stock Units Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
share-based expenses of RMB1,767,000 (2020: RMB6,244,000).

At 31 December 2021, a total of 17 employees (2020: 19) of the Group
have been granted with a total of 7,053,710 RSUs (31 December 2020:
8,819,603 RSUs), and the outstanding number of RSUs that could
be granted under the Scheme was 6,218,254 (31 December 2020:
6,218,254).

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the remaining vesting periods for RSUs

granted during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

(a)

(&)
ZIRGIR DB ST E (£

REZE2021F12A831BIEFE - KEBRE
RURD AERAFAS ARK1,767,0007T
(2020%F + AR¥56,244,0007T) ©

2021128318 - KB 17EAKEES
(20204 : 194 ) BHRE 7,053, 710X R
HIR% D AL (20209F12 A31H : 8,819,603
BRI BAL) - IBRIFZFT IR A
ZRGIAR () B AL FIEREE /26,218,254 1H
(2020912 8318 : 6,218,2541#) °

2021 202012 A31H » # & 20184
12A3BIEFEEREZRG RGN ELL
FIgrSFBEWOT -

Remaining vesting periods

FerBEH
2021 2020
20215 20204
RSUs granted during the years ended BZE12A31HIEFEERHB
31 December: FRERTEN
2018 20184F 1.4 years 2.4 years
145 244

210 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENERRFRERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

B UEBEEURGARERNS

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

(continued)
Restricted Stock Units Scheme (continued)

Share-based compensation expense relating to RSUs granted to directors
and employees is based on the grant date fair value of the RSUs and is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the entire vesting period. The
fair value of each RSU at the grant dates is determined by reference to
the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
on the date of grant. The grant date fair value of the underlying ordinary
shares was determined with the assistance of an independent third party
valuation firm, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, and discounted cash flow method under the income approach
was used. The discounted cash flow derived by management considered
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu's future business plan, specific business and
financial risks, the stage of development of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu's
operations and economic and competitive elements affecting

Guangzhou Jiumaojiu's business, industry and market.

RSUs were granted under a service condition. This condition has not
been taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement of the
services received. No dividends has been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There were no

market conditions associated with the RSUs.

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 6
December 2019 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options at predetermined
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The options vest
after one year from the date of grant and are then exercisable within a
period of two years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe

for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a)

ZIRGIR MBS E (&)

BETEEREENIRIIBRNEMLERH
B DA B A7 45 25 1 1 3 M 9 S T0 B R X R
BHBELNELRSRIFESE  REE
SEHANIREREER - SXBRGIRNE
NAEREABMOAFEDZEZEEMNAEN
RELAHNEHEETBRAFEMEE
BT BRNEEDASARAFEEBILE=
HERHERRFEMITEEFHRARER
RAMEDTEE  UEAKAEETH
TRREREE - EBESLENTRES
MEZETEMNAENNOARRERE
FEMNESREHRE - BMNAENOL
LERREBUARTZERMNNAENNER
EENTSNRBEMEFHEE -

XRERDECERERBERR - &£
PR MR BB A FEF &P L &S
RBRBRBIER - TMEFREE - XTF
BRI BB TIHIER

EEBRET S

ARRER2019F 12 A6 BEFEH—HEHER
RETE - Bt ARREFERERBE
BAEEEE (BREASEREMAFN
E5)UABEEREESERERBAQAMR
meBRERREAHPE—FERE - A
BRIAMENITE - BHBRER TS
ARBEARNR —REBROEF - W AR

DHRERREE -
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B UEBEEURGARERNS

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)
(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

= =
(&)

b) lEEEIRESTS (&
() FEAMERRIEFDT

Number Contractual
Tranche of options life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
gt MBI R
R B & BREHE BREH BRFH
Options granted to directors and
key management personnel:
RTEERTEEEAR
BB ARAE -
- on 28 October 2020 2020 T1 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 72020910 H28H 2020F E—Ht 894,100 & RAHE—4F 3%
Options granted to other employees:
BT HMESOBRE
- on 28 October 2020 2020 T2 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 72020410 A28 H 20205F 55 it 800,500 #&XHiHHIE —4 3%
Total share options granted
ERHBREAR 1,694,600
Number Contractual
Tranche of options life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
2&d WBIRRER
R B HE# BREZE HREDH BREFH
Options granted to directors and
key management personnel:
RTEERFEZEEASR
BB IR
—on 29 October 2021 2021 T1 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 202110 H29H 2021 E—#t 1210800 & HEIE—F 36
Options granted to other employees:
By A EE R BARE
—on 29 October 2021 2021 T2 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 202110 H29H 2021F 8 4t 2,547,500 HHERHER—F 3
Total share options granted
ERHBREAR 3,758,300
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25 LERGEREURDAHERNS

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)
(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options

are as follows:

(b)

EEERESE ()
(i) PEMCHEENE MNEFEHITHEENT ¢

2021 2020
2021 2020F

Weighted Weighted
average Number of ~ average exercise Number of
exercise price options price options
EFETEE BREHE METHORE BREHE

HKD HKD

BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January P ATERARITE 17.98 1,694,600 - -
Granted during the year FABKY 20.24 3,758,300 17.98 1,694,600
Exercised during the year FREITE - - - -
Forfeited during the year FAEEHK 17.98 (125,700) - -
Outstanding at 31 December W12 831 BEKITE 19.57 5,327,200 17.98 1,694,600
Exercisable at 31 December R12A31BATH 17.98 1,568,900 - -
Non vested at 31 December M2A3IBEREE 20.24 3,758,300 - -

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had an
exercise price of HKD20.24 or HKD17.98 (31 December 2020:
HKD17.98) and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 2.5

years (31 December 2020: 2.8 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses of RMB6,507,000
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB996,000).

72021412 A31 B ARITERERER
118 /20.248 T3k 17.988 7T (2020
F12A31H 1 17.98%870) R ntEFg
Tl B X FEA2.59 (2020912 A 31
H:28%F) -

AREBREZ2021F 128318 1EF

EERBRERAZARYE6,507,0007T
(2020 = AR 996,0007T) °
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 25 UREHRALEUROGEERNA
(continued) R(E

(b) EEERESTE (&)
(iii) BERGHEAFEREBRK :

(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return for the share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimated fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a binomial option pricing model.
The contractual life of the share options is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial tree model. Set out below are the fair value of share
options and assumptions.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

BRELAFERRBRR

B ERERASREN A FE
D2EEREBREN QI FETE -
EREBRENGEFT2FEDRES
BAMEEERIUGE - BREMNS
HFHRRELREOBABE - =22
TTENEHEMAZE —AABRE -
BREN A FERBRRESIAT -

Tranche number
i
20211 2021 T2
2021FE—H#t 2021FEHE

Fair value at measurement date RErE B E (BNE L EE) 5,316,000 10,567,000
(being the date of grant) (HKD) BRAFE (ET)

Share price (HKD) R ER (BT) 19.50 19.50
Exercise price (HKD) 118 (B IT) 20.24 20.24
Expected volatility TEAR 18 34.20% 34.20%
Expected option life TERT B AR i HA 3 years 3 years

3 3F
Early exercise level FERITREGR R 2.8 22
Dividend yield % B s = 0% 0%
Risk-free rate £ i 6 = 0.7025% 0.7025%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. The fair values calculated are inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
limitations of the model used. Changes in the subjective input

assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. Where share options
are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously recognised in relation to such
share options are reversed effective the date of the forfeiture. There
were no market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

26 &7 - fERKRE

(a) Share capital (a) R
2021
20215

Nominal value of Nominal value of
No. of shares fully paid shares fully paid shares
ROBE EBAZROEE DBARROEE
usb RMB equivalent
EY ARWEE

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ERITRBEEER
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 P01 1 AT K2021F12 318 1,453,410,000 145.34 985

The ordinary share of the Company has a par value of USD0.0000001

each.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company's residual assets.

AR 5] A% & A% T E A0.0000001 E T ©

BRBRFEARRKRARERMNRE -
VERERARAREG EAGR-—FENTH
BRE -FATBEREARRRSKEESE
FZERFMAL -
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Movements in components of equity

26 B - EERRE (&)
(b) RERAE RIS EE

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of ARRaHE R = AKE DR e FIERT
equity are set out below: m
The Company FIN/NE|
(Accumulated
Share-based Fair value losses)/
Share Share payment Exchange  reserve (non- Retained
capital premium reserve reserve recycling) profits Total
NRHRER AVERE (RitER)/
Bx  ROEE WAREE  EXRE  (FUBE) REER @it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000
ME ARBTR ARETR  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R0NE1A1H I - - - - (13122 (13121)
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - 50,269 50,269
Other comprehensive income EhrEkE - - - (16433)) - - (16433))
Equity settled share-based transactions MR BERARELERS 5 - - 9% - - - 9%
Issuance of ordinary shares upon PO RENRREEREBNER
and over-allotment, net of issuance costs ?’*ﬂ B (REANE) S 35909 - - - SRR
Issuance of ordinary shares RTBERTEER
upon subscription, net of issuance costs  (FIBRE/TAK) - 748629 - - - - 748629
At 31 December 2020 and R0F1A318R
1 January 2021 WNEIRTH 1 2,884,558 9% (164332) - 37,147 2,758370
Profit for the year EEER - - - - - 3459 3459
Other comprehensive income Az Eks - - - (78,226) (741) - (78,967)
Equity settled share-based transactions MR BERARELELS 5 - - 6,507 - - = 6,507
Dividends declared in respect of BEEENEERRE
previous year 26(d) - (48,734) - - = = (48,734)
At 31 December 201 KanE18318 1 2838 7503 (42,558) (41) 40606 264063

* The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000.
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iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

26 B - HERRKRE &)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Capital reserve

Disposal of interests in subsidiary without a change in
control

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed
20% and 0.1% equity interest of Xi Qin Catering to non-controlling
shareholders at consideration of RMB10,000 in aggregate and retain
79.9% equity interests after disposal. The capital reserve of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 represented
the difference between the consideration obtained and the
disposed proportionate interests in identifiable net assets of the

above subsidiary.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and proceeds received from the

issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payments reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of RSUs and unexercised share options
granted to the directors and employees of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

share-based payments in note 1(q)(ii).

(c) &
(i)

(ii)

(iii

BHEERRE
BEXfEE

AR b 1 E B A B
NAERFR

REZE2020F12A31HIEFE - A%
EARES £ AR 10,0007T M FEZERE
MR HET T ERR20% M 0.1% 04 - I
P EBIRE 79.9% I « 722021412
A318X%2020612A8318  AEEH
BARFERDDERER DS A M
BRAIA#HIFEEN L Pl 2 =
e

A= E

P47 3 18 #5782 Bl AR £ T (B B 3% T AR
X BB BT UCER B P15 SRR 2 TR R &=
25 o

RIEFAEHRBERRZE  MEREZHRIK
ERBERE  AARBREHENR
HEXBBRETINH2EY - AIEXR
Al Btim Bl 2 E & ALK T #E e i
o

ABRAD HER B K e

A RERNMRFHEER TAE
BEENEENZRHIBMDELE L
BEIRFEEE D RORTTE B BE -
HEARIRBT 1 (q) (i) B BE LARR 19 7 2L 1t
B IR & 5T BURFER ©

=
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26 B - EERRE (&)
() HEBHWHER AR )

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the Company's PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation,
as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. For the purpose of calculating the transfer to reserve, the
profit after taxation shall be the amount determined based on the
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC

accounting standards. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous years' losses,
if any, and may be converted into share capital by the issue of new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings
or by increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them,

provided that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of

the registered capital.

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprise all foreign exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial information of

operations with functional currency other than RMB.

=

(vi) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) include post-tax accumulated

gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the unlisted

equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling).

218 | JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENERRFRERA A

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EERE

RIEHREABE - ANQAK T BN E
NAIEEBERBIEEFE10% (RE
FEGHERET) ZAEHRE  BEE
EEEBREEFMERNS0% - AFHE
HRFEENER RAUEENERER
R B & 5T 2E R BT iR 00K 8 01 %5 3R
KBTS HEREHEOEEDY
BR AR D IR SRIEL °

EEAERUAERHBEIFENE
BnE)  WAEREBARRNRE
F& £k 1 1 L 2% 1T 37 AR SR 4 hn L 3R B
BERRMEENTRECRRAE M
FBETROERTSEREMER
#925% °

BE 511
EXFEEREMERBEAAREIL
SNZMBEERBAEXRBZMBERE
EHINEZEE -

DEREE (R ATEE)

NP ERFE (TNAER) BFREERR
NFEFAREMCEEE SN LT
AEZH (TAIEE) BERFEEENHR
& R5tiEm -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRAME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(vii) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

On 5 September 2021, the Group acquired additional 3% equity
interests in Tai Er Catering for RMB300,000,000 and held 88% equity
interests of Tai Er Catering in aggregate upon completion of the
acquisition. The carrying amount of Tai Er Catering’s net assets
on the date of the acquisition was RMB451,400,000. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of RMB13,542,000
and a decrease in retained earnings of RMB286,458,000.

(d) Dividends

o RENHEENABZEE)
(vii) BB JE I B R 2=
R2021F9A5H

BetE - WEEKEZS

286,458,0007T °

AN RESR)
26 B - EERRE (&)

CREEUARK
300,000,000 7T Y2 B8 A —

ERE3%REIN

AEBEARAZER
B 88% Mk o K — & SR Wi B HIEY
BEFEEEEARARE451,400,000
T o ANEE MR IR E R

#13,542,000 7T & 4R B & F) s /\Eﬁ%’;‘

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company () FAE@ARRB]EDRRIRTR
attributable to the year J=
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTT
Final dividend proposed after the end of the ~ FE&EREEZ 2 RIPBREFHK
year of HKD0.06 per ordinary share LiBA0.06787T (20204F - Fh%
(2020: HKD0.02 per ordinary share) @M 0.0287T) 70,968 24,367
No special dividend proposed after the end of B 4RI EEZ TR E
the year (2020: HKD0.02 per ordinary share) (2020F : BRE LHXOOZ}%TE) - 24,367
70,968 48,734

Final dividend and special dividend proposed after the end of the

year have not been recognised as liabilities as at the end of the

year.
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26 B - HERRKRE &)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Dividends (continued)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

(d)

RE (&)

(i) FER L -MHFENBEAED
AEERRNRKRE  ERFAH
T RTRAY

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Final dividend in respect of the previous Bl —BFE 2 RBARE
financial year of HKDO0.02 per ordinary share BREEAR0.02%E T
(2020: nil) (2020%F : #%) 24,367 -
Special dividend in respect of the previous B LE—UBFEZEIRE
financial year of HKDO0.02 per ordinary share BRERAR0.02E T
(2020: nil) (2020%F - f®) 24,367 -
48,734 -

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,640,634,000 (2020:
RMB2,758,369,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the

level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f)

Capital management (continued)

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The Group monitors its capital
structure with reference to its debt position. The Group's strategy is to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure there
are adequate working capital to service its debt obligations. The Group's
debt to asset ratio, being the Group's total liabilities over its total assets,
as at 31 December 2021 was 38.9% (31 December 2020: 36.3%).

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES
Credit risk

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by

the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high-credit-quality, for which

the Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group's trade receivables in connection with bills settled through
payment platforms such as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are with
high credit rating and no past due history. The management of the
Group considers these assets are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, and accordingly, no
provision for impairment of trade receivables is considered necessary by

management for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

26
(f)

27

BR - HEERE &)
BAEIE (48)

REZE2021F %2020 12 A31HILFE -
REENERBRRRETNE KEE2R
HEKBAERAERER REBMK
BERFEEEHRNTEY  BREARH
EEESYNEBEBRME - R20215F12 A
318 - AEEMBEKEEL X (AIXREED
BEBERINBEE) A38.9% (2020912 A31
H :363%) °

TREREERAFE

=EE R

AEBENBAEXBERGELREE  AB
B MERINERR - AEEESZE
R\ ez 1) 2 JE e AN S B U T 3R A% 5 AL B 7 4R
RHE R ERERBER REMEHAMT

EERREXZHFHEREANEEM
BYAKEEGVHEERORR - NEHE
MEERREIEREE S KH M BN
H-\RRZEFRAEERREERR
BENERERSEEEENRITRSRE
B BARERRASLASEEVEER
HiERmEENEERBRAR -

REEMEBARE  INEXIMEZINE
INFEEENZRBEEENE 5 EURE
EAEBRaNEETREEGBESL - RE
E2021F %2020 12 A31AILFE - A&
EERERAZEEEREAMEREY
BMEESEETRETANER LA 20
Tt AL BREERAEENBZE 20214
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27 SREREERAYE )

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

We have concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties as of each reporting period with details set out in note 29. Our
management has made periodic assessments as well as individual
assessment on recoverability based on historical settlement records and
adjusts for forward-looking information. In view of the strong financial
capability of these related parties and considered the future prospects
of the industry these related parties operate, our management does
not consider there is a risk of default and does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these related parties, and accordingly, no
impairment was recognised in respect of the amounts due from related

parties.

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management of the
Group has taken into account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables have not had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and risk of default is
insignificant, and therefore, no provision for impairment of other
receivables is considered necessary by management for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

The expected credit loss rate is insignificant and close to zero.

The Group does not provide any guarantee which would expose the

Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.
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27 SRIAREER ALHEE)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b)

VALUES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the

end of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which

are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contracted rates or, if floating, based on rates

current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the

Group can be required to pay.

(b) RBEE R (&)

TRETAESESRABRHRERROFR
HRAEWIHA  NEHARTHRRERE (B
RERAKHMNEY (BT BN E) RER
BERROE BIFRETEOF BN A

SE

Ny

REZAX VR B EI R AR -

More than More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than 31 December

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2021

#2021 6

15A5 (f: 200 260k 1283181

REX B25 R {B5FR SENLE @t REE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETRL ARBTR AR%TR AR®TR AR®TRT ARWT:R

Trade and other payables B9 REMENTIE 369,730 - - - 369,730 369,730
Lease liabilities HERE 401,102 369,946 704,712 226,654 1,702,414 1,504,791
770,832 369,946 704,712 226,654 2,072,144 1,874,521

More than More than Carrying

Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than 31 December

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2020

R2020%F

1E AR 1EE 2FLE 1243184

REX B2FR B5FR SEUE @t REE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENFE 347,560 - - - 347,560 347,560
Bank loans RITER 43,307 - - - 43307 42,950
Lease liabilities HERE 326,062 324,014 627,929 186,995 1,465,000 1,284,182
716,929 324,014 627,929 186,995 1,855,867 1,674,692
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 ¢RIEREERAFEE®)

VALUES (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group's interest rate profile as mentioned by management is set out

in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's

borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

ESEN
AEBOMERBREBRERITER ° A
TR ERBETOEREAEERER SR
ENERR - EREMERNANEBH
RERB T L) ©

(i) F=EER

TREFINBEBARAEDERO
TR -

2021 2020
20214 2020F
Effective Effective
interest rates Amount interest rates Amount
BRFI= %] EBRF= Gk
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% AR%¥Tx % ARBETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEBR:
Bank loans RITER - - 330%-3.83% 22,950
Lease liabilities HEGE 2.69%-8.52% 1,504,791 4.75%-9.36% 1,284,182
1,504,791 1,307,132
Variable rate borrowings: BEMEN
Bank loans RITEN - - 4.00% 20,000
Total borrowings BT 4EE 1,504,791 1,327,132
Fixed rate borrowings as a EEBERIGEREE
percentage of total borrowings BB 100% 98%
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, since all of borrowings are fixed rate
interest-bearing liabilities, individual companies within the Group

were exposed to limited interest rate risk.

(d) Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group's
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China
or other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are
the rates of exchange quoted by the People’'s Bank of China that are
determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Renminbi (‘RMB") and

United States Dollars ("USD"), Hong Kong Dollars and Canada Dollars.

27 SREREERAYE )

(o) F=REkR (&)

(i) BRBEDH

M2021512 8318 - ARFTAEE Y
AETHNEFEAE  AEERNER
ANREBEROFERR -

(d) E¥ER

HRAEENEI2RBETBEET  KNE
BN ZETEZUAAREE ARETA
BHEBRRINE - AT RARBHINE
PR BATEARRITHEMBERE
BEEIMNENKBET - INEXZRANE
ENHBEARBRITAMROES - ZEXE
BIRHRETE -

AEBAZNEEER T EEL QNUIINE
(MERXZHHEBEHENODEEE AT
B)FHENREMREEFEY  EHREM
FEMTRIR A B B 5 I EL A FE A 5R0R - 5l
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27 SREREERAYE )

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of

reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets

or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation

purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB

translated using the spot rate at the period end date. Differences

resulting from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

(d) EWEE &)

(i)

B ER

TRAVNAEBRN RS BRAASZIA
HEEREEBUIINEEAENE
HREEXRBEMELNEKRAR
REWEW  AXERNEHEDR
BEHEANNHMERRESAR
¥ BTBERAEIINEBNHIBRER
BELSARBENEZRERMELNE

o

id

Exposure to foreign currencies
SRR
(expressed in Renminbi)
(UAARETIR)
2021
20214
United States
Renminbi Dollars
AR E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T

Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEYD 8,473 524,090
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A FEUGRIE 314,597 383
Trade and other payables B 5 B e B (8,897) (17)
Gross and net exposure arising from BREREERBED

recognised assets and liabilities [B\Pe 4B RE N 5 5R 314,173 524,456
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5= BEi 85N + AAREZTR)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

27 TRIERREENR AFEE 2

d) E¥RR (&)
() E¥ERE)
Exposure to foreign currencies
HNES R\ B

(expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFITR)

2020
2020%F
Hong Kong Canada  United States
Dollars Dollars Dollars
BITT il =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARBTET ARBT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 1,583 2,046 505,424
Trade and other receivables B 5 I B U R IE 1,124 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 I B FE A 5E (1,093) - -
Gross and net exposure arising from D HEREERAED

recognised assets and liabilities [\ fex 42 58 J 5 58 1614 2,046 505,424
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2RiERBEELRAEE &)

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure

at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,

) E¥ Rz (8)
) BBE DM
TRIRRREAM A b 2 8RS
P& MR REREREAEERR
SHRAEARER A E R LR E
7N 5% B BR A 1R 5 ) B R B O A AT BE

assuming all other risk variables remained constant. T8 Hy BN A
2021 2020
20216 20204

Effect on Effect on
Increase in profit after Increase in profit after
foreign tax and foreign tax and
exchange rate retained profit exchange rate retained profit
HRHEEZENR HRBEN R
Ext# REENNE Bk A REBEEFNTE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Renminbi AR 1% 3,144 1% -
Hong Kong Dollars BT 1% - 1% 14
Canada Dollars mr 1% = 1% 17
United States Dollars = 1% 5,245 1% 4,220

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at

the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the Group which
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of

foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B RAR R RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G5 855) » U REEZTR)

27 SREREERAYE )

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy

as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance of

the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.

(e) AYFEFTE

(i)

DAREFENEREERER
RFEER
TRIRAEBRRE HRZE T
EENBYEMTANRTE  HB
BRERMBREEANSE 3R FE
FHEMRE = BRTHEEBRRR -

RFEAEMGFERZBHTIZBIAT
MERMABBAREZIBRRZE
MEZRREMETE

— FMAEE  ERE—REARE
(DR EHE AR E R
ERTS A BERE) R
AFE -

- FTRAE: ERE-RBABE
(BIREFTAFE —RREZTNE
R zBARE - ARTERAT
ERFRIZEZRABE)FE
ZRAVE - TABRFZE AR
BEAERETSEE 28R -

- F=AMAE: ERTHERSEIZ
EEPABIBAHEZATE -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are

measured at fair value at the end of the reporting date:

Fair value at

31 December

(i)

27 SREREERAYE )

(e) DFEFTE (&)

URFPEENEMEERAERS

(%)
RFEER (&)

TRIFAEBENRRERRIZQFE
AENEREE

Fair value measurements as at

2021 31 December 2021 categorised into
720215
12A3188 M2021F12A318H
DYHE ATEFAEDER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F-R E=R E=H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®BTRT AR%®TxR
Recurring fair value REMATEFE
measurement
Financial assets: THEE
Other non-current financial assets: HiEngemasE
- Unlisted equity securities and — FEETRARZS KR
investments in limited partnership EREBLENINE
enterprises 240,955 - - 240,955
- Listed equity securities — ETRAES 18,473 18,473 = =
~ Investments in funds —RESHNKRE 61,174 - 61,174 -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2RiERBEELRAEE &)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AFEFTE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i) UAFEFENESHEERER
(continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEZER (&)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at
2020 31 December 2020 categorised into
720205
128318 72020512 A31 BHE)
WAFE NHEFENEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E— FR E=4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL ARBTT ARBTT AR®TZR

Recurring fair value measurement  EBEMAFETE

Financial assets: EMEE
Other non-current financial assets: HiEnEEmAE
- Unlisted equity securities and — ELMRAES KR

investments in limited BREBLENHRE

partnership enterprises 68,338 - - 68,338
The Group held investments in funds operated by a fund AEERFER RESERAFLE
management company. The investments are accounted for at fair WESHRE ZEREERE-_ARD
value in Level 2. Since the units in the funds are redeemable at FEAR BRESBEUAEZESH
the net asset value of the funds, fair value of such investments is BEFEERL HILEZFERENAT
measured according to the net asset value as at 31 December 2021. BIZ2021F 12 A3 BB EFEE °
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were REZE2021F K%2020F12A31BIEF
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of B BEATERF —HARE_HHE
Level 3. B SNEASEEE=A -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

27 SREREERAYE )

(e) DFEFTE (&)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i)

(continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group invested in these unlisted start-up entities and limited

partnership enterprises as its strategic investments. Fair value

of each unlisted equity securities and investments in limited

partnership enterprises is measured by referencing to the latest

equity/investment transactions. Otherwise, the costs are used

as approximation of fair value if there is no significant change

observed.

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair

value measurements is as follows:

DAFESENEREERER
(%)
EHE=RAFETEZEHN
ARERERZEH LT NEEE
BRABORIFAREWRE - &3
EHBREES RRERABLEY R
AOAFENEERAMRE /R&
PR TR WHAEREAR
B - AUEARAT AL ORA -

HNETBATESBEHS 2 EHN
T

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
20215 R 20204F
128318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Unlisted equity securities and investments in FELETMRABZEENBR
limited partnership enterprises: BRTLENRE -
At 1 January ®1A1R 68,338 13,136
Additional investments in limited RAEREGBEENTEIMEE
partnership enterprises 29,000 50,000
Additional unlisted equity securities acquired W HEFEINE E TR AR TE 5 5,000 -
Disposal of investments in limited HEREBREBREENRE
partnership enterprises (39,399) -
Net unrealised gains recognised in other FRRE M A U S R
comprehensive income during the year REBUEFEE 178,016 5,202
At 31 December M®12A31H 240,955 68,338
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

Any gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the Group's
unlisted equity securities held for strategic purposes are recognised
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive
income. Upon disposal of the equity securities, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is transferred directly

to retained earnings.

Any gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the Group's
investment in limited partnership enterprises held for strategic

purposes are recognised in the profit or loss.

(ii) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 because of the short-term maturities

of all these financial instruments.

28 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments of the Group outstanding at 31 December 2021

not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

27 SREREERAYE )

(e) DFEFTE (&)
() ULFEFENSREERERS

(%)
ERE=ZARLAFEATBEZEH
(&

ENEAEBRREANMFEEN
IE b T BN 38 25 T EE A AR I s B
BENEMEAKREER/DFER
B (TAER) - HERAFEFR - R
H 2B a Rt NeBeaRER

EREERN -

ENFEAKERNFERKEAZENE
RE R DENIREPTESNERKRE
SHEIENE R o

(i) FRATFEIERZEHEERE
BEzATE
HREBEZESRIANIHAR
MR REREEAANERE &/
TEREEER2021F %2020F12 A
BNNEZATEIESEAER o

28 &iE

20215128318 » MABITEYL RES
EHRERANEHBHEZ AEE 2 EARAED
T

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Contracted for [SEES) 419,192 136,298
Authorised but not contracted for SHEE R ARETL 5,979 531,093
Total HET 425,171 667,391
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material

related party transactions.

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the directors are

of the view that the following are related parties of the Group:

Name of party

29 BEREHAIRS

BHMBHRREMBOBRBENREE T EH
S REBERIMATERBEIRZS -

(a) BEERTT &7 B2 TS HUBAIR

REE 20215 %2020 12 A31HILEE -
BERAETNXANEBANEBMOEE

Relationship with the Group

MBIRE B8 EARBENEE
Mr. Guan Ultimate controlling shareholder
BhE RIS AR

Wulian Qiaozhanggui Business Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership) * (“Wulian Qiaozhanggui”) (note)
IEBEECEERHAAREE (BREX) REBESE ) ()
Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural Science and Technology Co., Ltd. *
("Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural”)
BRAZBREMBAERAR([ERAZEZE]D
Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural Science and Technology Co., Ltd. *
("Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural”)
RAR ZBRERRARAR (DTRA=ZEX]D)
Guangzhou Tianhe District Zhujiang Jiumaojiu Shanxi Noodles Restaurant *
("Machang Restaurant”)
BRI IMAEA LA EZALE ([FI5EE])
Shanghai Chunsi Business Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(previously named as Huzhou Jiajun Business Partnership
(Limited Partnership)) ("Huzhou Jiajun”)
FERERBHAAREE (BRERE)
(AR EERBEREE (AREE)) (DOMEED

Entity controlled by Mr. Guan

mESREEG 2B

Associate of the Group

REBMEE R E]

Associate of the Group

REBE I LN A
Owned by Mr. Guan

MESLLEER

Under significant influence of

a director of the Company

EARB —HEENERTE

* The official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English translation of
the names is for identification only.

Note: Wulian Qiaozhanggui has been liquidated in September 2020.
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as

follows.

29 BERBEHAERS (#)

(b) EEEEASHMH
REBETBERABNHH (SEM A
BEAARQ R EE I MR8 AT
BnsTRSFHESZAOSB) OT -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 6,740 5,194
Contributions to defined contribution TE R TR RET B LK
retirement plan 150 53
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LAREES 5 B AR () AR R 3R E S 3,475 1,401
10,365 6,648
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). BEFEN T B Ik A (RHFES(0)) °
(c) Related parties transactions (c) BEBARS
During the year, the Group entered into the following material related REA - NEBMITUATERBE SRS :
party transactions:
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFTT
Acquisition of non-controlling interests from [ 35 12 U B SRR i e 2
Huzhou Jiajun (note 26(c)(vii)) (P 5E26(c)(vii)) 300,000 -
Sales of materials to Machang Restaurant M55ERE D EME 1,350 5,387
Provision of services to Machang Restaurant M55 ERRERE 153 2,876
Advances from Wulian Qiaozhanggui REREBEENER = 50,000
Advances to Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural MERK - BERHEAR 20,000 28,000
Advances to Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural ARA Z RERERR 4,900 23,520
Purchase of materials from Guangdong BERA-_BEBEEMH
Tai Er Agricultural 156,221 -
Variable lease payments to Mr. Guan (note (i) MESREZ R EHER K () 977 -
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 9EBERBEEHRLERS (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Related parties transactions (Continued) () BHMERE (&)

Note: ffsE -

(i)  During the year, the Group and Mr. Guan entered into several lease contracts i) RER AEBRELERETHEMER
in respect of certain leasehold properties under variable lease payment terms B 2AENRUER (2020F : EEBEER
(2020: fixed lease payment terms). All of the above lease payment amounts PR RILETHREESH - FrE Ll
was determined with reference to amounts charged by Mr. Guan to third ENREBEHE2EELEME =K
parties. SHETE °

(d) Balance with related parties (d) EEEREET 2 456k

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had the following balances with 2021612 A31H - REBEEEEE B U

related parties: TR

Amounts due from related parties FE Uk BB Bk 5 R E

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETF T

Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A e IR
- Machang Restaurant — BI5EE - 23,639
- 23,639

Advances to associates (notes (i)(ii)) ) HG  A AR AR B ER (PREEG) (i)

~ Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural —ERAZER%E 48,000 28,000

~ Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural —MRRZRE 23,520 23,520

71,520 51,520
71,520 75,159

Notes: MiaE -

() The advances to the associates are interest-free and are included in “Trade () MELEAFIRENBRIAECETARAIEZ
and other receivables” (note 17). 5 K E A e RIE | (MTEE17) ©

(i) No loss allowances have been made in respect of these advances. (i) WMEFRLZEDRIEEERE -
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29 BERBEHAERS (#)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(d) Balance with related parties (continued)

) EARARE TS 2 KR (48)

Amounts due to related parties FESBAE 5 TR E
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBTT

Trade and other payables B 5 I B FE A 50E

— Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural —BRAZEHE 12,185 -
— Machang Restaurant —B5ER - 17,304
- Mr. Guan —ERE 276 166
12,461 17,470

The balances with these related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed repayment terms.

Financing arrangements (e) MMELHE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFIT

Lease liabilities due to Mr. Guan BN TELENHEERE

— Related interest expense (note 29 (c)(i)) — AR B (MFE29 ©0) - 286
Save for above related party transactions and the connected transactions (f) BRAFRIBESS | —HHFRBOBEE T

as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
annual report, there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director and/or any of his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and there was
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of, or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

SHRAERGIN - REE2021F12H318
IFFESHBAREMREREAN - SEFER
ARISEAANB AR AN Z— M
EERNEANEEERRAEPEREY
MEEEEARGNEARS s
2 MEGEHAARSKETAKE QA
7R X AP AR IR SR Bl EL AR (AT B B A B ET S
WEARS « LHEAEX (20204F « &) o
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30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30 A FRIE@EMERRE

POSITION
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 124318
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HtaE AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current asset kREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEWBARMNKE
—~ Investment in a subsidiary — R—ENBARRIRE 7,503 — %
— Amount due from a subsidiary — W — MM B R R FRIE 91,227 -
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB R 7 9
Right-of-use assets EREEE 150 34
Rental deposits HERS 27 -
Other non-current financial assets HMIERBemEE 79,647 -
178,561 43
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables Hfh e W sk IE 2,787 2,582
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BB A R FB 611,775 1,030,454
Deposits with banks with original maturity [REIEA A 8B = & A B ER1T1F 3
date over three months 735,840 673,312
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRSZEY 1,141,312 1,083,410
2,491,714 2,789,758
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H fth T FRIE 29,486 31,431
Lease liabilities HEBR 154 -
29,640 31,431
Net current assets REBEERE 2,462,074 2,758,327
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 2,640,635 2,758,370
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,640,635 2,758,370
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E
Share capital (&N 26(a) 1 1
Reserves i 2,640,634 2,758,369
TOTAL EQUITY RERBEE 2,640,635 2,758,370

* The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000.
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31 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final

dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 26(d).

32 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year's presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect of

items disclosed in 2020.

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

As at the date of this report, the Directors consider the immediate
parent of the Group to be GYH J Limited, which is incorporated in the
BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr. Guan.

31 MEBRNIFAREIR

WEMKS  EERBRBRE - 5
BRI 3 26(0) 3R -
32 kB EF

ETURBEFEHELARE  UFEAFE
ME7) > WA2020FFEMNIEBIRHELLER

B

33 EHERRARERA

RAFRERY  EERAREENEES
REAERBHER RS EMAAGYH J
Limited » ZNR BIM AR TT A& f A& o
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34POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 34cE#EEEXN2021F12A

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ACCOUNTING YEAR BEGINNING ON OR AFTER
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued
a number of amendments, and a new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance
contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be relevant to the

Group.

BMMTHBZEABRBENESSTEELE
MEBTAR - FERZEN
AlRES &

BB

HEAMBRERTIEBAE - BRE2ER
BEeEEMEZEEIT AR —BEHELERH
BHSRELENE17TRRBASL (REE
2021512 A3 1 BIEFERARER - Bk
M BIREFRIRN) - BB ARIER
BIELA T AT e IR B E o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT5I B
ZERBRH

BB AR

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to

BRI BREERFEI R ZEFTA -

1 January 2022

the Conceptual Framework BERMEZERFE M 202291 A1H
Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and R EAE16RZIERTN - YF - FE 1 January 2022

Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts R ETAERIE 375 - EEMAAT —
JETTERIBIL A

- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
FREBGE
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely

to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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